
 

 

Matt Russell, Mayor 
Eric Gerke, Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
Christopher Updike, Ward III 

Jennifer Mitchell, Ward IV 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Gerry Pool, Ward II 

Shane Grooms, Ward III 
Jim Deichman, Ward IV 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
City Council Meeting 

Online Zoom Meeting  

January 18, 2022 at 6:00 PM 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4476275349?pwd=ZTg3Wk9pa0huejRRTGhudUxtYjUrZz09 

Meeting ID: 447 627 5349 

Passcode: 867530903 

One tap mobile 

13017158592, 4476275349 

13126266799, 4476275349 

 

Call Meeting to Order 

Opening Prayer 

Pledge of Allegiance to the United States Flag 

Citizen Participation 

Consent Agenda 

1. Approve January 4, 2022 City Council Minutes. 

2. As As per RSMo. 109.230(4), City records that are on file in the City Clerk’s office and have met 
the retention schedule will be destroyed in compliance with the guidelines established by the 
Secretary of State’s office. 

3. 22-R-02 A Resolution of the City Council, Authorizing Supplemental Agreement No. 1 for Project 

STBG-6900(813) with Olsson Engineering for Additional Engineering Services in the Amount of 

$15,500.00. 

Board, Commission, and Committee Schedule 
City Council Meeting                February 1, 2022 
Board of Adjustment Meeting        February 3, 2022 
Planning & Zoning Meeting         February 7, 2022 
City Council Meeting                 February 15, 2022 

Old Business and Tabled Items 

4. 22-01  An Ordinance of the City Council Approving the Annexation of Approximately 17.52 Acres 
Located at the 6400 Block of South Farm Road 89 and Adjacent Right-of-Way. 

5. 22-02 An Ordinance of the City Council, Authorizing the Execution of an Intergovernmental 

Agreement Between the City of Republic, Missouri, and the City of Springfield, Missouri, for the 

Acquisition of “Pictometry” Providing a More Accurate Geographical Information System. 

 

 

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4476275349?pwd=ZTg3Wk9pa0huejRRTGhudUxtYjUrZz09


 

 

New Business (First Reading of Ordinances) 

6. 22-03 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing and Directing the Issuance, Sale and Delivery 

of Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2022, of the City of Republic, Missouri; and Approving Certain 

Documents and Authorizing Certain Other Actions in Connection Therewith. 

Other Business (Resolutions) 

7. 22-R-03 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the Republic Fire Chief to Apply for the 

Department of Homeland Security SAFER Grant (Staffing for Adequate Fire and emergency 

Response). 

Reports from Staff 

Executive Session:  No further action, other than announcing adjournment by the Mayor, shall take place 
after an Executive Session that is scheduled as the last matter on the Agenda unless otherwise stated on 
the Agenda or as allowed per RSMo. 610.02. 

   1.    RSMo 610.021.1 Pending and/or potential litigation. Closed session. Closed vote. Closed record. 

   2.    RSMo 610.021.2 Real estate acquisition. Closed session. Closed vote. Closed record. 

   3.    RSMo 610.021.3 Hiring, firing, promotion, or disciplining personnel. Closed session. Closed vote. 
Closed record. 

Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Individuals addressing the Council are asked to step to the microphone and clearly state their name and 

address before speaking. In accordance with ADA guidelines, if you need special accommodations to 
attend any city meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s Office at 732-3101 at least three days prior to the 

scheduled meeting. All meetings are tape recorded for public viewing. 

2



 

 
1 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  J a n u a r y  0 4 ,  2 0 2 2  

Matt Russell, Mayor 
Eric Gerke. Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
Christopher Updike, Ward III 

Jennifer Mitchell, Ward IV 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Gerry Pool, Ward II 

Shane Grooms, Ward III 
Jim Deichman, Ward IV 

 
 

MINUTES 
City Council Meeting 

Municipal Court Building, 540 Civic Blvd  

January 04, 2022 at 6:00 PM 

Call Meeting to Order 

The regular session meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Greene County, Missouri, was called 
to order by Mayor Matt Russell at 6:00 p.m. Council Members present included Jim Deichman, Eric Franklin, 
Garry Wilson, Gerry Pool, Eric Gerke, Chris Updike, and Jennifer Mitchell. Others in attendance were: City 
Administrator David Cameron, City Attorney Megan McCullough, Assistant Parks and Recreation Director 
Jennafer Mayfield, Information Systems Director Chris Crosby, Police Chief Brian Sells, Finance Director 
Meghin Cook, Chief of Staff Lisa Addington, BUILDS Administrator Andrew Nelson, Assistant BUILDS 
Administrator Karen Haynes, Assistant City Administrator/Parks and Recreation Director Jared Keeling, Public 
Information Officer Allyssa Dudley, Engineering Manager Garrett Brickner, GIS Manager Josh Jones, Fire Chief 
Duane Compton, Principal Planner Chris Tabor, and City Clerk Laura Burbridge. 

Opening Prayer 

Opening prayer was led by City Administrator David Cameron. 

Pledge of Allegiance to the United States Flag 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Matt Russell. 

Citizen Participation 

Mayor Matt Russell opened citizen participation at 6:01 p.m.  

Carrie Sanders, 6695 W. Farm Rd. 186, spoke regarding her concerns of Shuyler Trail and noted she has 
contacted Bob Dixon and Rusty MacLachlan regarding this matter.  Ms. Sanders asked if there was a way to 
meet outside of Council Meetings. 

In response to Ms. Sanders’ question, Andrew Nelson reported we will have an updated map of the trail in 
the next couple weeks and can set up a meeting with interested parties after it is received. 

Bobby Dimery, 101 N. Matteson Ave, spoke against Shuyler Trail and emphasized that staff, Council, and 
those impacted all need to be part of the discussion and planning. 

Lisa Roller, 6618 W. Farm Rd. 182, spoke regarding her concerns of Shuyler Trail.  Ms. Roller stated she has 
been told that after the trail is completed, the city plans to annex Farm Road 182, which concerned her. 

Mayor Russell closed citizen participation at 6:14 p.m. 

Consent Agenda 

Motion was made by Council Member Deichman and seconded by Council Member Pool to approve the 
consent agenda. The vote was 7 Aye-Deichman, Franklin, Gerke, Mitchell, Pool, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. 
Motion Carried. 

1. Approve December 14, 2021 City Council Minutes. 

2. As As per RSMo. 109.230(4), City records that are on file in the City Clerk’s office and have met the 
retention schedule will be destroyed in compliance with the guidelines established by the Secretary 
of State’s office. 

3. Approve Vendor List. 

3

Item 1.



 

 
 2 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  J a n u a r y  0 4 ,  2 0 2 2  

Board, Commission, and Committee Schedule 
Board of Adjustment Meeting         January 6, 2022 
Planning and Zoning Meeting         January 10, 2022 
City Council Meeting                   January 18, 2022 
City Council Meeting                  February 1, 2022 

Old Business and Tabled Items 

4. 21-78 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Amending the Zoning Code 
and Official Map by Changing the Classification of Approximately 14.04 Acres, From Planned 
Development District (PDD) to General Commercial (C-2), Located at the 600 Block of West Civic 
Boulevard. 

Motion was made by Council Member Wilson and seconded by Council Member Franklin to have the 
second reading of Bill 21-78 by title only. The vote was 7 Aye-Deichman, Franklin, Gerke, Mitchell, 
Pool, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Chris Tabor was available to answer any questions 
from Council. Council Member Deichman motioned for the passage of Bill 21-78. Council Member 
Wilson seconded. A roll call vote was taken digitally.  The vote was 7 Aye-Deichman, Franklin, Gerke, 
Mitchell, Pool, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. 

5. 21-79 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Approving Amending the 
Zoning Code and Official Map by Changing the Classification of Approximately 0.46 Acres from 
Medium-Density Single Family (R1-M) to Heavy Manufacturing (M-2), Located at the 1200 Block of 
South State Highway MM. 

Motion was made by Council Member Pool and seconded by Council Member Franklin to have the 
second reading of Bill 21-79 by title only. The vote was 7 Aye-Deichman, Franklin, Gerke, Mitchell, 
Pool, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Chris Tabor was available to answer any questions 
from Council. Council Member Gerke motioned for the passage of Bill 21-79. Council Member Wilson 
seconded. A roll call vote was taken digitally.  The vote was 7 Aye-Deichman, Franklin, Gerke, 
Mitchell, Pool, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. 

6. 21-80 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Approving Amending the 

Zoning Code and Official Map by Changing the Classification of Approximately 0.69 Acres from 

Medium-Density Single Family (R1-M) to Heavy Manufacturing (M-2), Located at 1249 South State 

Highway MM. 

Motion was made by Council Member Pool and seconded by Council Member Mitchell to have the 
second reading of Bill 21-80 by title only. The vote was 7 Aye-Deichman, Franklin, Gerke, Mitchell, 
Pool, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Chris Tabor was available to answer any questions 
from Council. Council Member Wilson motioned for the passage of Bill 21-80. Council Member 
Mitchell seconded. A roll call vote was taken digitally.  The vote was 7 Aye-Deichman, Franklin, Gerke, 
Mitchell, Pool, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. 

7. 21-81 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Approving Amending the 

Zoning Code and Official Map by Changing the Classification of Approximately 1.22 Acres from 

Medium-Density Single Family (R1-M) to Heavy Manufacturing (M-2), Located at 1235 South State 

Highway MM. 

Motion was made by Council Member Deichman and seconded by Council Member Pool to have the 
second reading of Bill 21-81 by title only. The vote was 7 Aye-Deichman, Franklin, Gerke, Mitchell, 
Pool, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Chris Tabor was available to answer any questions 

4

Item 1.



 

 
 3 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  J a n u a r y  0 4 ,  2 0 2 2  

from Council. Council Member Wilson motioned for the passage of Bill 21-81. Council Member 
Deichman seconded. A roll call vote was taken digitally.  The vote was 7 Aye-Deichman, Franklin, 
Gerke, Mitchell, Pool, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. 

New Business (First Reading of Ordinances) 

8. A Public Hearing of the City Council Regarding Approving the Annexation of Approximately 17.52 
Acres Located at the 6400 Block of South Farm Road 89 and Adjacent Right-of-Way. 

Mayor Russell opened the public hearing at 6:20 p.m.  Chris Wynn with CJW Transportation, 5051 S. 
National Ave, Suite 7A, Springfield, MO  65810 spoke in favor of the annexation.  Mayor Russell closed 
the public hearing at 6:22 p.m. 

9. 22-01 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving the Annexation of Approximately 17.52 Acres 
Located at the 6400 Block of South Farm Road 89 and Adjacent Right-of-Way. 

Motion was made by Council Member Deichman and seconded by Council Member Franklin to have 
the first reading of Bill 22-01 by title only. The vote was 7 Aye-Deichman, Franklin, Gerke, Mitchell, 
Pool, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Karen Haynes provided an overview of the bill. 
Mayor Russell reminded Council this is a first read and to get with staff prior to the next meeting with 
any questions. 

10. 22-02 An Ordinance of the City Council, Authorizing the Execution of an Intergovernmental 

Agreement Between the City of Republic, Missouri, and the City of Springfield, Missouri, for the 

Acquisition of “Pictometry” Providing a More Accurate Geographical Information System. 

Motion was made by Council Member Pool and seconded by Council Member Franklin to have the 
first reading of Bill 22-02 by title only. The vote was 7 Aye-Deichman, Franklin, Gerke, Mitchell, Pool, 
Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried. Josh Jones provided an overview of the bill. Mayor Russell 
reminded Council this is a first read and to get with staff prior to the next meeting with any questions. 

Other Business (Resolutions) 

11. 22-R-01 A Resolution of the City Council Approving an Agreement for As-Needed Land Use Services 

for a Period of Two Years. 

Motion was made by Council Member Deichman and seconded by Council Member Pool to approve 
Resolution 22-R-01. Karen Haynes provided an overview of the Resolution. The vote was 7 Aye-
Deichman, Franklin, Gerke,  Mitchell, Pool, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  

Reports from Staff 

City Administrator David Cameron wished everyone a Happy New Year.  Mr. Cameron shared he hoped 
everyone enjoyed their holiday and reports 2022 is shaping up to be a busy year, adding the next two months 
looks busy for development items on the agendas.  Mr. Cameron announced he is coordinating a Council 
work session to report on the process side of what we do from all levels.  Mr. Cameron shared we need to 
showcase what staff is doing behind the scenes as well as talking about the vision and direction of the 
city.  Mr. Cameron reported he hopes to coordinate this 4-hour session in January or February.  

City Administrator David Cameron congratulated Garrett Brickner for obtaining his PE.  Mr. Cameron shared 
he is very proud of Garrett and has had fun watching his progression.  Mr. Cameron reported he has heard 
what it takes to prepare for the test and Garrett did this while also being a great leader for the city.  Mr. 
Cameron shared he could not be more proud for Garrett as it came from his hard work and dedication. 

City Administrator David Cameron reported to Council that we completed the MM land acquisition to reroute 
MM near the Amazon intersection, which should eventually be a roundabout.  Mr. Cameron thanked Andrew 

5

Item 1.



 

 
 4 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  J a n u a r y  0 4 ,  2 0 2 2  

for the great job he did negotiating the purchase while providing the seller the right to purchase the land 
back if the road doesn't route through the property. 

City Administrator David Cameron reminded Council we have our S and P call next week for the loan to 
address the Wastewater Treatment Plant deficiencies.  Mr. Cameron expressed his excitement to get the 
project underway. 

City Administrator David Cameron reported to Council that he and  Andrew will be working actively on 
funding methods, which includes traveling to Jefferson City and possibly Washington DC in hopes of obtaining 
the additional funding.  Mr. Cameron reported Jared will mostly likely cover meetings in February and we 
may need to change meeting dates as well. 

City Administrator David Cameron reported now that we have the census data, we will begin working on 
redistricting wards.  Considering we don't have to have it completed until the next municipal election, we 
plan to have it to Council by May.  Mr. Cameron reported he will have Megan, Laura, and Chris work on this 
avoiding going down anyone's property line. 

City Administrator David Cameron confirmed that beginning January 1, local receipts now reflect the public 
safety sales tax.  We hope to receive these funds by March or at least April.  Once the funds are received, we 
will then be able to use the funds to meet the promised commitments. 

City Administrator David Cameron reported we issued 251 permits for housing last year.  This year or 2023, 
this number will likely double.  Mr. Cameron reported we have a lot to look forward to coming up including 
the MM widening, Lynn and Hines intersection improvements, and Hines and ZZ intersection 
improvements.  Mr. Cameron shared it has been a pleasure to lead this city.   

City Administrator David Cameron praised Mayor Russell for the fantastic job presenting at the Chamber 
Luncheon today.  Mr. Cameron reported he looks forward to Jared presenting his work on the upcoming 
measures for Parks. 

City Administrator David Cameron thanked Council Member Deichman, Council Member Franklin, and 
Council Member Wilson for attending the Trust Edge Experience.  Mr. Cameron shared his appreciation for 
everyone's involvement as clarity and direction are important. 

Council Member Franklin thanked Mr. Cameron and shared his appreciation for the opportunity to attend 
Trust Edge.  Mr. Franklin shared he appreciates Mr. Cameron bringing this to the city and staff.  Mr. Franklin 
welcomed Megan McCullough and congratulated Garrett Brickner on his PE. 

Mayor Russell reported he had a great time presenting to the Chamber today.  He was able to speak about 
the successes of 2021 as well as the challenges anticipated in 2022.  Mayor Russell announced he could not 
pick a better group of people to go into battle with for 2022. 

Adjournment 

Mayor Russell adjourned the meeting at 6:40 p.m. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________         ___________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk                                    Matt Russell, Mayor 

6

Item 1.



  
 

 

Record Destruction Request Form 

Page 1 of 1 

MISSOURI RETENTION MANUAL CODE NAME/DATE OF RECORDS TO BE 
DISPOSED 

DATE(S) OF 
DOCUMENTS 

RETENTION TIME 
NEEDED FOR 

RECORD 

GS 037 News Releases May include news releases 
announcing routine events or 
actions carried out within the 
scope of existing policies. 

2003, 2010, 
2015, 2016 

2 years 

GS 040 Grant Records Grant Records 2009 Final reports 
permanent.  

Other records 3 
years after final 

submission.  
Unsuccessful 1 

year after 
rejection 

 

7

Item 2.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 22-R-02 A Resolution of the City Council, Authorizing Supplemental 
Agreement No. 1 for Project STBG-6900(813) with Olsson Engineering 
for Additional Engineering Services in the Amount of $15,500.00. 

Submitted By: Garrett Brickner, Engineering Manager 

Date: January 18, 2021 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To authorizing a supplemental Agreement No. 1 for project STBG-6900(813) with Olsson Engineering for 

additional Engineering services in the amount of $15,500. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

As engineering & design moves forward for the Shuyler Creek trail extension, MoDOT has reviewed the 

environmental assessment submitted by Olsson in August 2021 and is requiring additional Archeological 

investigation along the trails path. Olsson has selected Stone Point Services as a third party 

subconsultant to complete the archeologic research and reporting. This will amend the total Maximum 

not to exceed amount with Olsson to $239,211.29.  

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

8

Item 3.



RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 1 FOR 

PROJECT STBG-6900(813) WITH OLSSON ENGINEERING FOR ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING 

SERVICES IN THE AMOUNT OF $15,500.00 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri (herein called the "City" or "Republic") is a 

municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly 

created, organized, and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 5, 2019, in Resolution 19-R-37, the Council authorized the 

Community Development Department and other City departments to apply for a grant to 

extend the Shuyler Creek Trail; and 

 
WHEREAS, on May 19, 2020, in Ordinance 20-20, the Council approved an STP-

Urban Program Agreement for the Extension of the Shuyler Creek Trail with the Missouri 

Highways and Transportation Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, in Ordinance 20-37, the Council approved a First 

Supplemental STP-Urban Program Agreement for the Extension of the Shuyler Creek Trail 

with the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City solicited, through a request for qualifications (herein called the 

"RFQ"), professionals to provide the City with design, engineering, and environmental 

services relating to the Extension of the Shuyler Creek Trail (herein called the "Project"); and 

 
WHEREAS, Council approved a contract with Olsson Engineering for the Project on 

December 8, 2020 via Resolution No. 20-R-51; and 

 
WHEREAS, MoDOT reviewed the environmental assessment and is requiring 

additional Archaeological Investigation along the trail path, which increases the cost of 

engineering by up to $15,500.00. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, 

MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section I . Olsson is authorized to hire Stone Point Services for consultations for said Project, 

increasing the not to exceed amount for the contract with Olsson to $239,211.29. 
 

Section 2. The City Administrator or designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 

enter into Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with Olsson for services 

related to the Project, said Agreement to be in substantially the same 

form as "Attachment 1" in an amount not to exceed $223,711.29. 

 
Section 3. The City Administrator or designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to take 

the necessary steps to execute this Resolution. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-02   Page 1 of 2 

9

Item 3.



RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-02 

Section 4. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference.  

Section 5. This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, 

Missouri, this 18th day of January 2022. 

 
       _____________________________________ 
       Matt Russell, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form:  _____________________________________, Megan McCullough, City Attorney 
 
Final Passage and Vote:  ________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-02 Page 2 of 2 

10

Item 3.



11

Item 3.



12

Item 3.



13

Item 3.



14

Item 3.



15

Item 3.



16

Item 3.



17

Item 3.



18

Item 3.



19

Item 3.



 

 

 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 22-01  An Ordinance of the City Council Approving the Annexation of 
Approximately 17.52 Acres Located at the 6400 Block of South Farm 
Road 89 and Adjacent Right-of-Way. 

Submitted By: Karen Haynes, BUILDS Department 

Date: January 18, 2022 
 

 

Issue Statement 

The BUILDS Department received a Voluntary Annexation Application from Olde Savannah, LLC for the 

Annexation of approximately seventeen point five-two (17.52) acres of land located at the 6400 Block of 

South Farm Road 89 and adjacent Right-of-Way.  

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The property owner, Olde Savannah, LLC, has submitted a Voluntary Annexation Request for the subject 

parcel. 

City of Republic sanitary sewer and water services are available adjacent to the property.  The subject parcel 

is compact and contiguous with the city limits of the City of Republic, as the subject parcel is surrounded by 

properties located in the City to the east and north. 

The Annexation, if approved by City Council, will effectively zone the subject parcel as Agricultural (AG), as 

the property has a current Greene County Zoning Designation of Agricultural, in accordance with City Code 

Section 435.010.B, which requires all annexed properties to be classified in the zoning district corresponding 

to Greene County’s zoning designation. 

Recommended Action 

Staff believes the Annexation of the subject property is consistent with the City’s Adopted Plans and is 

recommending approval of the request. 

 
 

20

Item 4.



BILL NO. 22-01 Page 1 of 3 ORDINANCE NO. 

 
 
 
BILL NO. 22-01 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING THE ANNEXATION OF APPROXIMATELY 

17.52 OF LAND LOCATED AT THE 6400 BLOCK OF SOUTH FARM ROAD 89 AND ADJACENT 

RIGHT-OF-WAY  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called the "City" or "Republic") is a municipal 

corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and 

existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, a voluntary petition for the annexation of approximately 17.52 acres of land 

located at THE 6400 Block of South Farm Road 89 and adjacent right-of-way has been filed with 

the City's BUILDS Department; and 

 
WHEREAS, the realty described in such petition is adjacent and contiguous to the present 

corporate limits of the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council held a public hearing on the said petition on January 04, 2022, such 

hearing being held not less than fourteen days nor more than sixty days after the receipt of the petition 

requesting annexation; and 

 
WHEREAS, a notice of said public hearing was published December 22, 2021, in The Greene 

County Commonwealth, a newspaper of general circulation authorized to publish legal notices, such 

public hearing being held not less than seven days after the date of publication of such notice; and 

 
WHEREAS, at said public hearing, all interested persons, corporations, or political subdivisions 

were afforded the opportunity to present evidence regarding the proposed annexation; and 

 
WHEREAS, no written objections to the proposed annexation were filed with the City Council 

within fourteen days after the date of said public hearing; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council finds the proposed annexation is reasonable and necessary for the City's 

proper development, and the City has the ability to furnish normal municipal services to the area within 

a reasonable time. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC AS 

FOLLOWS: 

Section 1: The following described realty is hereby annexed into, and made a part of, the City 

of Republic, Missouri, and its boundaries are hereby extended to include the same: 
 

ALL OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF SECTION TWENTY- 
EIGHT (28), TOWNSHIP TWENTY-EIGHT (28), RANGE TWENTY-THREE (23) IN GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI, 
EXCEPT ANY PART THEREOF DEEDED, TAKEN OR USED FOR ROAD OR HIGHWAY PURPOSES. 
EXCEPT: 
A TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF 
SECTION TWENTY-EIGHT (28), TOWNSHIP TWENTY-EIGHT (28), RANGE TWENTY-THREE (23) GREENE COUNTY, 
MISSOURI, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT AN EXISTING IRON AT THE 

21

Item 4.



BILL NO. 22-01 Page 2 of 3 ORDINANCE NO. 

 
 
 
BILL NO. 22-01 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF 
SECTION TWENTY-EIGHT (28); THENCE NORTH 01°33’31 EAST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER (SW1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF SECTION TWENTY-EIGHT (28) A DISTANCE OF 
619.94 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 89°12'26" WEST A DISTANCE OF 732.29 FEET 
TO A POINT OF CURVE; THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 640.00 FEET, A DELTA OF 
39°33'24", AN ARC LENGTH OF 441.85 FEET, AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS NORTH 69°25'44" WEST HAVING A 
CHORD 
DISTANCE OF 433.13 FEET TO A POINT ON A LINE: THENCE SOUTH 88°49'12" WEST A DISTANCE OF 36.78 FEET 
TO A POINT FOR CORNER; THENCE SOUTH 46°10'16" WEST A DISTANCE OF 26.30 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVE; 
THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 360.00 FEET, A DELTA OF 44°37'18", AN ARC 
LENGTH OF 280.37 FEET, AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS SOUTH 23°51'37" WEST HAVING A CHORD DISTANCE OF 
273.33 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE SOUTH 01°32’58” WEST A DISTANCE OF 100.00 FEET TO A 
POINT FOR CORNER; THENCE NORTH 88°27'02" WEST A DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST 
LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF SECTION TWENTY- 
EIGHT (28) FOR CORNER, SAID POINT BEING NORTH 01°32'58" EAST A DISTANCE OF 400.34 FEET FROM AN 
EXISTING 1" BAR AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER (SW1/4) OF SECTION TWENTY-EIGHT (28); THENCE NORTH 01'32’58" EAST ALONG SAID WEST LINE A 
DISTANCE OF 928.42 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF THE 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF SECTION TWENTY-EIGHT (28) FOR CORNER; THENCE SOUTH 89°18'36” EAST 
ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW 1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) A 
DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET TO A POINT FOR CORNER; THENCE SOUTH 01°32'58" 
WEST A DISTANCE OF 56.91 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVE; THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A 
RADIUS OF 560.00 FEET, A DELTA OF 90°45'24”, AN ARC LENGTH OF 887.04 FEET, AND A CHORD WHICH BEAR 
SOUTH 43°49'44” EAST HAVING A CHORD DISTANCE OF 797.17 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY: THENCE SOUTH 
89°12’26" EAST A DISTANCE OF 733.36 FEET TO A POINT FOR CORNER; THENCE SOUTH 01°33'31" WEST A 
DISTANCE OF 80.01 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; ALL IN GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI. 

 

Section 2. The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause three certified copies of this 

Ordinance to be filed with the Greene County Recorder of Deeds. 

 
Section 3. The City Clerk is hereby directed to forward to the director of revenue of 

the State of Missouri by the United States registered mail or certified mail 

a certified copy of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 4. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by 

reference. 

 
Section 5. The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provision hereof 

is declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such 

determination shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this 

Ordinance. 

 
Section 6. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its 

passage as provided by la w. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City 

of Republic, Missouri, this 18th day of January 2022. 

22

Item 4.



BILL NO. 22-01 Page 3 of 3 ORDINANCE NO. 

 
 
 
BILL NO. 22-01 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 
 

 

Matt Russell, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 
 

 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 

Approved as to Form: , Megan McCullough, City Attorney 

 

Final Passage and Vote: _  

23

Item 4.



24

Item 4.



25

Item 4.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 
22-02 An Ordinance of the City Council, Authorizing the Execution of an 
Intergovernmental Agreement Between the City of Republic, Missouri, 
and the City of Springfield, Missouri, for the Acquisition of “Pictometry” 
Providing a More Accurate Geographical Information System. 

Submitted By: Josh Jones, GIS Manager 

Date: January 18, 2022 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To enter into an intergovernmental agreement for the cooperative purchase of Pictometry for Greene 

and Christian counties. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

For many years now, the city has participated in an intergovernmental agreement along with Springfield, 

Nixa, Ozark, Greene County, and Christian County for the purchase of airplane captured aerial imagery 

of Greene and Christian County from EagleView. This agreement has been renewed every two years 

followed by the aerial flight that provides us with high resolution imagery published to our Web GIS 

environment and used by a large portion of city staff, becoming an increasing relied upon resource for 

information. The contract pricing is determined by multiple factors including the number of “tiles” (1 sq 

mile) that fall within the districts or city limits of the entity, and then broken into rural versus urban 

areas, and finally, the resolution of the imagery to be processed within the tile. Republic has incredibly 

favorable position in this contract due to the shared coverage areas with Christian County, Greene 

County, and the OTO resulting in shared cost for all of our tiles. The BUILDS department has reviewed 

and agreed to the cost in the included contract and recommends the approval of this agreement. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

26

Item 5.



BtLL NO. 22-02 ORDINANCE NO. 22.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF REP UBLIC, MISSOURI, AND THE CITY

OF SPRINGFIETD, MISSOURI , FOR THE ACQUISITION OF "PICTOMETRY" PROVIDING A MORE
ACCURATE GEOGRAPHICAT INFORMATION SYSTEM

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called the "City" or "Republic") is a municipal
corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized and
existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and

WHEREAS, the City of Republic desires to enter into an agreement for acquisition of
"Pictometry" with the City of Springfield; and

WHEREAS, "Pictometry" is the proprietary name for an aerial photography product from
Pictometry lnternational Corporation which supplies high resolution photography of the ground surface
from multiple angles; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the photography provided by "pictometry,,of realproperty
is needed in order to support a variety of very important decisions ranging from planning, zoning, real
estate acquisition and appraisal, and public safety matters.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBL'C
MISSOURL AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. That the Mayor, on behalf of the City of Republic, is authorized to enter intoan
agreement for acquisition of "Pictometry" said agreement to be in substantially
the same form as "Attachment 1."

Section 2 This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as
provided by law.

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic,
Missouri, this_day of _2022.

Matt Russell, Mayor
Attest

Approved as to Form gan McCullough, City Attorney

Final Passage and Vote

BtLL NO. 22-02 Page 1 of 1. ORDINANCE NO.22-

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk

27

Item 5.



COOPERATIVE INTERGOVERN M ENTAL AGREEMENT

FOR ACQUISITION OF IMAGERY

FROM PICTOMETRY

INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION

WHEREAS, Section 70.220 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri provides that municipalities,
counties, and other persons may contract and cooperate with each other in connection with the
provision of a common service; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of City and Agency collectively to receive the
benefits of a more accurate Geographical lnformation System by acquiring updated aerial imagery; and

WHEREAS, City and Agency desire to cooperate to acquire aerial imagery covering Greene and
Christian Counties from Pictometry lnternational Corporation ("Pictometn/'); and

WHEREAS, at the request of and on behalf of Agency, City has agreed to the terms and conditions
set forth herein, and has aBreed to arrange for the delivery of aerial imagery from pictometry to Agency
("lmagery"); and

WHEREAS, Agency has agreed, pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth herein, to accept
the lmagery and to reimburse City for Agency's share of total costs for the lmagery.

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL COVENANTS HEREIN CONTAINED, CITY

AND AGENCY AGREE AS FOTLOWS:

1. On behalf of Agency, City agrees to be the lead in purchasing approximately 58 tiles of aerial
imagery in 2022, 2024, and 2026 pursuant to a contract between City and pictometry

("Contract"), said Contract to substantially and materially conform to the draft attached as
"Exhibit A" and incorporated by this reference, provided that the Springfield City Council
lawfullyappropriatesfundsforthepurchaseofsuchaerial imagery. Bysigningthis
Agreement, Agency acknowledges and agrees to follow all of Pictometry' s terms of use in

the Contract in consideration of, and prior to, receiving and using the aerial imagery.

2. ln consideration for City taking the lead, Agency agrees to reimburse City for Agency's share
of the total cost of said aerial imagery in 2022,2024, and 2026, as set forth in the cost
sharing document attached as "Exhibit B" and incorporated by this reference, at or before
the time of final delivery of the imagery from Pictometry to City, provided such funds are
lawfully appropriated by Agency's governing body. Agency's cost is estimated to be

54,652.25. City will invoice Agency for payment of its share, and Agency agrees to pay City
within 45 days of receipt of invoice.

1,

THIS AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into this _ day of , 202_
by and between the City of Springfield, Missouri, hereinafter referred to as "City", and the City of
Republic, Missouri, hereinafter referred to as "Agency."

28

Item 5.



3. Upon final payment from Agency, the Pictometry License shall be held jointly by City,

Agency, and other entities who enter into a similar Cooperative ABreement with city for
acquisition of imagery from Pictometry and make timely, final payment of their share of the
total cost ofthe aerial imagery ("Other Entities").

4. ln consideration of the requested Pictometry aerial imagery and monies received for same, and

to the extent allowed by law, both Agency and City hereby release and hold harmless each

other, and their respective Boards, Councils, agents, officers, employees, successors and assigns

with respect to any and all injury, death, loss or damage to person or property, whether caused

by negligence or otherwise, in any way related to use of the Pictometry imagery. Nothing

contained herein shall be considered a waiver of the defenses that may be asserted either party

of sovereign immunity, official immunity, and/or the public duty doctrine.

5. Agency, City, and Other Entities shall have co-ownership of aerial imagery received from
Pictometry as outlined in the Contract and any amendments thereto.

5. Agency and City agree this Agreement and every question arising hereunder shall be construed

or determined according to the laws of the State of Missouri. Should any part of this

Agreement be litigated, venue shall be proper only in the Circuit Court of Greene County,

Missouri.

SO AGREED AS OF THE DAY AND YEAR FIRST ABOVE WRITTEN

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, MISSOURI AGENCY

BY BY:

Assistant City Manager or Delegate
APPRO

12lsolzlAPPROVED AS TO FORM:

BY

B

City Attorney or Delegate

ey

ATTEST

BY

Agency Clerk

FINANCIAL CERTIFICATION

I certify that the expenditure contemplated bythis

document is within the purpose of the appropriation
to which it is to be charged and that there is an

unencumbered balance of anticipated revenue

appropriated for paymentof same.

2

Director of Fina nce

29

Item 5.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 22-03 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing and Directing the 
Issuance, Sale and Delivery of Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2022, of 
the City of Republic, Missouri; and Approving Certain Documents and 
Authorizing Certain Other Actions in Connection Therewith. 

Submitted By: Andrew Nelson, BUILDS Administrator 

Date: January 18, 2022 
 

Issue Statement 

An ordinance to receive special obligation bonds to fund improvements toward the Wastewater 

Treatment Plant and the new BUILDS Department building. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

These special obligation bonds will provide funding for the new BUILDS Department Building and 

immediate action toward coming into compliance with the Missouri Department of Natural Resources.  

Specific actions include: 

 Wastewater Treatment Plant Compliance and Expansion Design – Design and construction of all 

necessary improvements at the wastewater treatment plant to address overflow issues from 

stormwater in order to come into compliance with MDNR, as well as full design of the plant 

expansion that is required within the next five (5) years to facilitate growth of the City. 

 Capital Improvement Plans (CIP) 3 – Improvements to Lift Station 4 and force main to reduce 

restrictions and overflows that will become a violation of permit. 

 Capital Improvement Plans (CIP) 6 – Improvements to collections system from McElhaney Force 

Main to Shuyler Creek Lift Station to prevent restriction and overflow of manholes and facilitate 

growth. 

 Capital Improvement Plans (CIP) 7 – Full rebuild and replacement of McElhaney Lift Station and 

force main.  The lift station is reaching life expectancy and capacity must be upgraded to handle 

continual growth. 

 New BUILDS Department Building – 25,000 square foot facility to house all BUILDS staff and 

equipment. 

Rate increases will need to continue to be implemented over the next several years to fund this debt 

service.  We will continue to evaluate the rates versus the projects and continued growth that exceeds 

our projections. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

30

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -1- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING 
THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND DELIVERY OF SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 
SERIES 2022, OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI; AND APPROVING 
CERTAIN DOCUMENTS AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS 

IN CONNECTION THEREWITH. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri (the “City”), is a constitutional charter city and political 
subdivision duly organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City is authorized under the provisions of the Constitution of Missouri and its 

Charter to issue and sell special obligation bonds for the purpose of providing funds to finance and 
refinance the costs of certain capital improvements and to provide that the principal of and interest on 
such special obligation bonds shall be payable solely from the revenues derived from annual 
appropriations by the City Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City desires to finance the costs of capital improvements, including but not 
limited to improvements to the wastewater treatment center and the construction of a new public 
works facility (collectively, the “Project”) with proceeds received from the sale of an issue of special 
obligation bonds; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is hereby found and determined that it is necessary and advisable and in the best 

interest of the City and of its inhabitants that special obligation bonds be issued and secured in the form 
and manner as hereinafter provided to provide funds for the Project; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 
 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

Section 101. Definitions of Words and Terms. In addition to words and terms defined 
elsewhere herein, the following words and terms as used in this Ordinance shall have the following 
meanings: 

 
“Bond Counsel” means Gilmore & Bell, P.C., St. Louis, Missouri, or other attorneys or firm of 

attorneys with a nationally recognized standing in the field of municipal bond financing selected by the 
City. 

 
“Bond Payment Date” means any date on which the principal or Redemption Price of or interest 

on any Bond is payable. 
 

“Bond Purchase Agreement” means the Bond Purchase Agreement dated February 1, 2022, 
between the City and the Underwriter, in substantially the form attached as Exhibit C. 

31

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -2- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

“Bond Register” means the books for the registration, transfer and exchange of Bonds kept at 
the principal payment office of the Paying Agent. 

 
“Bonds” means the Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2022, authorized and issued by the City 

pursuant to this Ordinance. 
 

“Business Day” means a day, other than a Saturday, Sunday or holiday, on which the Paying 
Agent is scheduled in the normal course of its operations to be open to the public. 

 
“City” means the City of Republic, Missouri, and any successors or assigns. 

 
“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable regulations 

of the Treasury Department proposed or promulgated thereunder. 
 

“Continuing Disclosure Undertaking” means the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking dated as of 
February 1, 2022, delivered by the City, in substantially the form attached as Exhibit D. 

 
“Debt Service Fund” means the fund by that name referred to in Section 501. 

 
“Defaulted Interest” means interest on any Bond that is payable but not paid on any Interest 

Payment Date. 
 

“Defeasance Obligations” means any of the following obligations, if and to the extent the same 
are at the time legal for investment of the City’s funds: 

 

(a) United States Government Obligations that are not subject to redemption in 
advance of their maturity dates; or 

 
(b) obligations of any state or political subdivision of any state, the interest on 

which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and which meet the 
following conditions: 

 
(1) the obligations are not subject to redemption prior to maturity or the 

trustee for such obligations has been given irrevocable instructions concerning their 
calling and redemption and the issuer of such obligations has covenanted not to redeem 
such obligations other than as set forth in such instructions; 

 

(2) the obligations are secured by cash or United States Government 
Obligations that may be applied only to principal, premium, if any, and interest 
payments on such obligations; 

 
(3) such cash and the principal of and interest on such United States 

Government Obligations serving as security for the obligations (plus any cash in the 
escrow fund) are sufficient to meet the liabilities of the obligations; 

 

(4) such cash and United States Government Obligations serving as security 
for the obligations are held in an escrow fund by an escrow agent or a trustee 
irrevocably in trust; 

32

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -3- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

 

(5) such cash and United States Government Obligations serving as security 
for the obligations are not available to satisfy any other claims, including those against 
the trustee or escrow agent; and 

 

(6) the obligations are rated by a nationally recognized rating service in the 
same rating category or higher as United States Government Obligations. 

 
“FAST Agent” means the Paying Agent when acting as agent for the Securities Depository in 

accordance with rules established by the Securities Depository for Fast Automated Securities Transfers. 
 

“Federal Tax Certificate” means the Federal Tax Certificate dated February 16, 2022, delivered 
by the City, in substantially the form attached as Exhibit E. 

 

“Fiscal Year” means the fiscal year of the City, currently the period beginning January 1 and 
ending December 31. 

 
“Interest Payment Date” means the Stated Maturity of an installment of interest on any Bond. 

 
“Maturity” when used with respect to any Bond means the date on which the principal of such 

Bond becomes due and payable as therein and herein provided, whether at the Stated Maturity thereof 
or by call for redemption or otherwise. 

 
“Ordinance” means this Ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Bonds, as amended from 

time to time. 
 

“Outstanding” means, when used with reference to Bonds, as of any particular date of 
determination, all Bonds theretofore authenticated and delivered hereunder, except the following 
Bonds: 

 
(a) Bonds theretofore canceled by the Paying Agent or delivered to the Paying 

Agent for cancellation; 
 

(b) Bonds deemed to be paid in accordance with the provisions of Section 701; and 
 

(c) Bonds in exchange for or in lieu of which other Bonds have been authenticated 
and delivered hereunder. 

 
“Paying Agent” means UMB Bank, N.A., Kansas City, Missouri, and any successors or assigns. 

 
“Permitted Investments” means any securities or investments that are lawful for the 

investment of the City’s moneys. 
 

“Person” means any natural person, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, firm, 
joint venture, association, joint-stock company, trust, unincorporated organization, or government or 
any agency or political subdivision thereof or other public body. 

33

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -4- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

“Preliminary Official Statement” means the Preliminary Official Statement, in substantially the 
form attached as Exhibit B. 

 
“Project” means the capital improvements financed with the Bonds, including but not limited to 

improvements to the wastewater treatment center and the construction of a new public works facility. 
 

“Project Fund” means the fund by that name referred to in Section 501. 

“Rebate Fund” means the fund by that name referred to in Section 501. 

“Record Date” for the interest payable on any Interest Payment Date means the 15th day 
(whether or not a Business Day) of the calendar month preceding such Interest Payment Date. 

 

“Redemption Date” when used with respect to any Bond to be redeemed means the date fixed 
for the redemption of such Bond pursuant to the terms of this Ordinance. 

 

“Redemption Price” when used with respect to any Bond to be redeemed means the price at 
which such Bond is to be redeemed pursuant to the terms of this Ordinance, including the applicable 
redemption premium, if any, but excluding installments of interest whose Stated Maturity is on or 
before the Redemption Date. 

 
“Registered Owner” when used with respect to any Bond means the Person in whose name 

such Bond is registered on the Bond Register. 
 

“Securities Depository” means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York. 
 

“Special Record Date” means the date prior to the payment date of Defaulted Interest fixed by 
the Paying Agent pursuant to Section 204. 

 
“Stated Maturity” when used with respect to any Bond or any installment of interest thereon 

means the date specified in such Bond and this Ordinance as the fixed date on which the principal of 
such Bond or such installment of interest is due and payable. 

 
“Underwriter” means Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated, St. Louis, Missouri, the original 

purchaser of the Bonds. 
 

“United States Government Obligations” means bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, 
treasury bills or other securities constituting direct obligations of, or obligations the principal of and 
interest on which are fully and unconditionally guaranteed as to full and timely payment by, the United 
States of America, including evidences of a direct ownership interest in future interest or principal 
payments on obligations issued or guaranteed by the United States of America (including the interest 
component of obligations of the Resolution Funding Corporation), or securities which represent an 
undivided interest in such obligations, which obligations are rated in the same rating category as the 
United States of America or higher by a nationally recognized rating service and such obligations are 
held in a custodial account for the benefit of the City. 

34

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -5- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

ARTICLE II 

AUTHORIZATION OF BONDS 

Section 201. Authorization of Bonds. There is hereby authorized and directed to be issued a 
series of bonds of the City, designated “Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2022,” in the principal amount 
of $43,020,000 (the “Bonds”), for the purpose of providing funds to (1) pay the costs of the Project and (2) 
pay the costs of issuing the Bonds. 

 

Section 202. Description of Bonds. The Bonds shall consist of fully-registered bonds, 
numbered from 1 upward, in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. The Bonds, as 
originally issued or issued upon transfer, exchange or substitution, shall be substantially in the form set 
forth in Exhibit A and shall be subject to registration, transfer and exchange as provided in Section 205. 
The Bonds shall be dated the date of original issuance and delivery thereof, shall become due in the 
amounts on the Stated Maturities, and shall bear interest at the rates per annum, as follows: 

 

SERIAL BONDS 

 
Stated Maturity 

     (May 1)  
Principal 
Amount 

Annual Rate 
  of Interest   

2023 $ % 

2024   

2025   

2026   

2027   

2028   

2029   

2030   

2031   

2032   

2033   

2034   

2035   

2036   

2037   

2038   

2039   

2040   

2041   

35

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -6- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

TERM BONDS 

 
Stated Maturity 

     (May 1)  
Principal 
Amount 

Annual Rate 
  of Interest   

2044 $ % 
2047   

 
The Bonds shall bear interest at the above specified rates (computed on the basis of a 360-day 

year of twelve 30-day months) from the date thereof or from the most recent Interest Payment Date to 
which interest has been paid or duly provided for, payable semiannually on May 1 and November 1 in 
each year, beginning on November 1, 2022. 

 
Section 203. Designation of Paying Agent. 

 

(a) UMB Bank, N.A., Kansas City, Missouri, is hereby designated as the City’s paying agent 
for the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds and as bond registrar with respect to the 
registration, transfer and exchange of Bonds (herein called the “Paying Agent”). 

 

(b) The City will at all times maintain a Paying Agent meeting the qualifications herein 
described for the performance of the duties hereunder. The City reserves the right to appoint a 
successor Paying Agent by (1) filing with the Paying Agent then performing such function a certified copy 
of the proceedings giving notice of the termination of such Paying Agent and appointing a successor, 
and (2) causing notice of the appointment of the successor Paying Agent to be given by first-class mail to 
each Registered Owner. The Paying Agent may at any time resign and be discharged from its duties and 
responsibilities hereunder by giving written notice by first-class mail to the City and the Registered 
Owners not less than 60 days prior to the date such resignation is to take effect. No resignation or 
removal of the Paying Agent shall become effective until a successor has been appointed and has 
accepted the duties of the Paying Agent. 

 
(c) Every Paying Agent appointed hereunder shall at all times be a commercial banking 

association or corporation or trust company located in the State of Missouri, organized and in good 
standing and doing business under the laws of the United States of America or of the State of Missouri 
and subject to supervision or examination by federal or state regulatory authority. 

 

(d) The Paying Agent shall be paid its fees and expenses for its services in connection 
herewith. 

 
Section 204. Method and Place of Payment of Bonds. 

 
(a) The principal or Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in any 

coin or currency of the United States of America that, on the respective dates of payment thereof, is 
legal tender for the payment of public and private debts. 

 
(b) Payment of the principal of or interest on any Bond shall be made (1) by check or draft 

of the Paying Agent mailed to each Registered Owner as of the commencement of business of the 
Paying Agent on the Record Date for such Bond Payment Date or (2) by electronic transfer to such 
Registered Owner upon written notice delivered to the Paying Agent not less than 15 days before the 

36

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -7- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

Record Date from and signed by such Registered Owner containing electronic transfer instructions 
including the name of the bank, ABA routing number and account number to which such Registered 
Owner wishes to have such transfer directed, together with an acknowledgement that an electronic 
transfer fee may be applicable. 

 

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, any Defaulted Interest with 
respect to any Bond shall cease to be payable to the Registered Owner of such Bond on the relevant 
Record Date and shall be payable to the Registered Owner in whose name such Bond is registered at the 
close of business on the Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest, which Special 
Record Date shall be fixed as hereinafter specified in this paragraph. The City shall notify the Paying 
Agent in writing of the amount of Defaulted Interest proposed to be paid on each Bond and the date of 
the proposed payment (which date shall be at least 30 days after receipt of such notice by the Paying 
Agent unless the City and the Paying Agent agree to a shorter time) and shall deposit with the Paying 
Agent at the time of such notice an amount of money equal to the aggregate amount proposed to be 
paid in respect of such Defaulted Interest or shall make arrangements satisfactory to the Paying Agent 
for such deposit prior to the date of the proposed payment. Following receipt of such funds the Paying 
Agent shall fix a Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest which shall be not more 
than 15 nor less than 10 days prior to the date of the proposed payment, unless the City and the Paying 
Agent agree to a shorter time. The Paying Agent shall promptly notify the City of such Special Record 
Date and, in the name and at the expense of the City, shall cause notice of the proposed payment of 
such Defaulted Interest and the Special Record Date therefor to be mailed, by first-class mail, postage 
prepaid, to each Registered Owner of a Bond entitled to such notice at the address of such Registered 
Owner as it appears on the Bond Register not less than 10 days before the Special Record Date. 

 

(d) The Paying Agent shall keep a record of the principal, Redemption Price and interest 
paid on all Bonds and shall, at least annually and upon the written request of the City, forward a copy or 
summary of such record to the City. 

 
Section 205. Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds. 

 
(a) The City covenants that, as long as any of the Bonds remain Outstanding, it will cause 

the Bond Register to be kept at the principal payment office of the Paying Agent as herein provided. 
Each Bond when issued shall be registered in the name of the Registered Owner thereof on the Bond 
Register. 

 
(b) Bonds may be transferred and exchanged only on the Bond Register as provided in this 

Section. Upon surrender of any Bond at the principal payment office of the Paying Agent, or such other 
office designated by the Paying Agent, the Paying Agent shall transfer or exchange such Bond for a new 
Bond or Bonds in any authorized denomination of the same Stated Maturity and in the same aggregate 
principal amount as the Bond that was presented for transfer or exchange. Bonds presented for transfer 
or exchange shall be accompanied by a written instrument or instruments of transfer or authorization 
for exchange, in a form and with guarantee of signature satisfactory to the Paying Agent, duly executed 
by the Registered Owner thereof or by the Registered Owner’s duly authorized agent. 

 

(c) In all cases in which the privilege of transferring or exchanging Bonds is exercised, the 
Paying Agent shall authenticate and deliver Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance. 
The City shall pay the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent for the registration, transfer and exchange 
of Bonds provided for by this Ordinance and the cost of printing a reasonable supply of registered bond 

37

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -8- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

blanks. Any additional costs or fees that might be incurred in the secondary market, other than fees of 
the Paying Agent, are the responsibility of the Registered Owners of the Bonds. If any Registered Owner 
fails to provide a correct taxpayer identification number to the Paying Agent, the Paying Agent may 
make a charge against such Registered Owner sufficient to pay any governmental charge required to be 
paid as a result of such failure. In compliance with Section 3406 of the Code, such amount may be 
deducted by the Paying Agent from amounts otherwise payable to such Registered Owner hereunder or 
under the Bonds. 

 

(d) The City and the Paying Agent shall not be required (1) to register the transfer or 
exchange of any Bond that has been called for redemption after notice of such redemption has been 
mailed by the Paying Agent pursuant to Section 303 and during the period of 15 days next preceding the 
date of mailing of such notice of redemption, or (2) to register the transfer or exchange of any Bond 
during a period beginning at the opening of business on the day after receiving written notice from the 
City of its intent to pay Defaulted Interest and ending at the close of business on the date fixed for the 
payment of Defaulted Interest pursuant to Section 204. 

 

(e) The City and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the Person in whose name any Bond 
is registered on the Bond Register as the absolute owner of such Bond, whether such Bond is overdue or 
not, for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or Redemption Price of and 
interest on said Bond and for all other purposes. All payments so made to any such Registered Owner or 
upon the Registered Owner’s order shall be valid and effective to satisfy and discharge the liability upon 
such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither the City nor the Paying Agent shall be 
affected by any notice to the contrary. 

 

(f) At reasonable times and under reasonable regulations established by the Paying Agent, 
the Bond Register may be inspected and copied by the Registered Owners of 10% or more in principal 
amount of the Bonds then-Outstanding or any designated representative of such Registered Owners 
whose authority is evidenced to the satisfaction of the Paying Agent. 

 
Section 206. Execution, Authentication and Delivery of Bonds. 

 
(a) The Bonds, including any Bonds issued in exchange or as substitution for the Bonds 

initially delivered, shall be signed by the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor and attested by the 
manual or facsimile signature of the City Clerk and shall have the official seal of the City affixed thereto 
or imprinted thereon. If any officer whose signature appears on any Bond ceases to be such officer 
before the delivery of such Bond, such signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all 
purposes, as if such Person had remained in office until delivery. Any Bond may be signed by such 
Persons who at the actual time of the execution of such Bond shall be the proper officers to sign such 
Bond although at the date of such Bond such Persons may not have been such officers. 

 

(b) The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to prepare and execute 
the Bonds as herein specified, and when duly executed, to deliver the Bonds to the Paying Agent for 
authentication. 

 
(c) The Bonds shall have endorsed thereon a certificate of authentication substantially in 

the form set forth in Exhibit A, which shall be manually executed by an authorized signatory of the 
Paying Agent, but it shall not be necessary that the same signatory sign the certificate of authentication 
on all of the Bonds that may be issued hereunder at any one time. No Bond shall be entitled to any 

38

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -9- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

security or benefit under this Ordinance or be valid or obligatory for any purpose unless and until such 
certificate of authentication has been duly executed by the Paying Agent. Such executed certificate of 
authentication upon any Bond shall be conclusive evidence that such Bond has been duly authenticated 
and delivered under this Ordinance. Upon authentication, the Paying Agent shall deliver the Bonds to or 
upon the order of the Underwriter or shall hold the Bonds as FAST Agent for the benefit of the Beneficial 
Owners (as defined herein), upon payment to the City of the purchase price of the Bonds plus accrued 
interest, if any, to the date of their delivery. 

 

Section 207. Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost and Stolen Bonds. 
 

(a) If (1) any mutilated Bond is surrendered to the Paying Agent or the Paying Agent 
receives evidence to its satisfaction of the destruction, loss or theft of any Bond, and (2) there is 
delivered to the Paying Agent such security or indemnity as may be required by the Paying Agent, then, 
in the absence of notice to the Paying Agent that such Bond has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, 
the City shall execute and the Paying Agent shall authenticate and deliver, in exchange for or in lieu of 
any such mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond, a new Bond of the same Stated Maturity and of like 
tenor and principal amount. 

 

(b) If any such mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond has become or is about to become 
due and payable, the Paying Agent, in its discretion, may pay such Bond instead of delivering a new 
Bond. 

 
(c) Upon the issuance of any new Bond under this Section, the City or the Paying Agent may 

require the payment by the Registered Owner of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other 
governmental charge that may be imposed in relation thereto and any other expenses (including the 
fees and expenses of the Paying Agent) connected therewith. 

 

(d) Every new Bond issued pursuant to this Section shall constitute a replacement of the 
prior obligation of the City and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Ordinance equally and ratably 
with all other Outstanding Bonds. 

 
Section 208.     Cancellation and Destruction of Bonds Upon Payment.   All Bonds that have 

been paid or redeemed or that otherwise have been surrendered to the Paying Agent, either at or 
before Maturity, shall be canceled by the Paying Agent immediately upon the payment, redemption and 
surrender thereof to the Paying Agent and subsequently destroyed in accordance with the customary 
practices of the Paying Agent. The Paying Agent shall execute a certificate in duplicate describing the 
Bonds so canceled and shall file an executed counterpart of such certificate with the City. 

 

Section 209. Preliminary and Final Official Statement. 
 

(a) The Preliminary Official Statement, in substantially the form attached as Exhibit B, is 
hereby ratified and approved, and the final Official Statement is hereby authorized and approved by 
supplementing, amending and completing the Preliminary Official Statement, with such changes and 
additions thereto as are necessary to conform to and describe the transaction. The Mayor is hereby 
authorized to execute the final Official Statement as so supplemented, amended and completed, and 
the use and public distribution of the final Official Statement by the Underwriter in connection with the 
reoffering of the Bonds is hereby authorized. The proper officials of the City are hereby authorized to 

39

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -10- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

execute and deliver a certificate pertaining to such Official Statement as prescribed therein, dated as of 
the date of payment for and delivery of the Bonds. 

 
(b) For the purpose of enabling the Underwriter to comply with the requirements of Rule 

15c2-12(b)(1) of the Securities and Exchange Commission, the City hereby deems the Preliminary Official 
Statement to be “final” as of its date, except for the omission of such information as is permitted by 
Rule 15c2-12(b)(1), and the appropriate officers of the City are hereby authorized, if requested, to 
provide the Underwriter a letter or certification to such effect and to take such other actions or execute 
such other documents as such officers in their reasonable judgment deem necessary to enable the 
Underwriter to comply with the requirements of such Rule. 

 

(c) The City agrees to provide to the Underwriter within seven business days of the date of 
the sale of the Bonds sufficient copies of the final Official Statement to enable the Underwriter to 
comply with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12(b)(4) of the Securities and Exchange Commission and 
with the requirements of Rule G-32 of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

 

Section 210. Sale of Bonds. The Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into the Bond Purchase 
Agreement with the Underwriter, under which the City will sell the Bonds to the Underwriter at a 
purchase price of $ (which is equal to the par amount of the Bonds, plus [*a net*] original 
issue premium of $  , and less an underwriting discount of $ ), plus accrued 
interest to the date of delivery, if any, upon the terms and conditions set forth therein and with such 
changes therein as shall be approved by the Mayor. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the Bond 
Purchase Agreement for and on behalf of the City, and his signature thereon shall be conclusive evidence 
of his approval thereof. 

 

Section 211. Securities Depository. 

(a) For purposes of this Section 211, the following terms shall have the following meanings: 

“Beneficial Owner” shall mean, whenever used with respect to a Bond, the Person in whose 

name such Bond is recorded as the beneficial owner of such Bond by a Participant on the records of 
such Participant, or such Person’s subrogee. 

 
“Cede & Co.” shall mean Cede & Co., the nominee of the Securities Depository, and any 

successor nominee of the Securities Depository with respect to the Bonds. 
 

“Participant” shall mean any broker-dealer, bank or other financial institution for which the 
Securities Depository holds Bonds as securities depository. 

 
“Representation Letter” shall mean the Representation Letter from the City and the Paying 

Agent to the Securities Depository with respect to the Bonds. 
 

(b) The Bonds shall be initially issued as one single authenticated fully-registered bond for 
each Stated Maturity. Upon initial issuance, the ownership of such Bonds shall be registered in the Bond 
Register kept by the Paying Agent in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of the Securities Depository. 
The Paying Agent and the City may treat the Securities Depository (or its nominee) as the sole and 
exclusive owner of the Bonds registered in its name for the purposes of payment of the principal or 
Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds, selecting the Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed, 

40

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -11- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

giving any notice permitted or required to be given to Registered Owners of Bonds under this 
Ordinance, registering the transfer of Bonds, and for all other purposes whatsoever; and neither the 
Paying Agent nor the City shall be affected by any notice to the contrary. Neither the Paying Agent nor 
the City shall have any responsibility or obligation to any Participant, any Person claiming a beneficial 
ownership interest in the Bonds under or through the Securities Depository or any Participant, or any 
other Person which is not shown on the Bond Register kept by the Paying Agent as being a Registered 
Owner of any Bonds, with respect to the accuracy of any records maintained by the Securities 
Depository or any Participant, with respect to the payment by the Securities Depository or any 
Participant of any amount with respect to the principal or Redemption Price of and interest on the 
Bonds, with respect to any notice which is permitted or required to be given to the Registered Owners 
of Bonds under this Ordinance, with respect to the selection by the Securities Depository or any 
Participant of any Person to receive payment in the event of a partial redemption of the Bonds, or with 
respect to any consent given or other action taken by the Securities Depository as Registered Owner of 
the Bonds. The Paying Agent shall pay all principal or Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds 
only to Cede & Co. in accordance with the Representation Letter, and all such payments shall be valid 
and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the City’s obligations with respect to the principal or 
Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No Person 
other than the Securities Depository (or the Paying Agent as Fast Agent) shall receive an authenticated 
Bond for each separate stated maturity evidencing the obligation of the City to make payments of 
principal and interest. Upon delivery by the Securities Depository to the Paying Agent of written notice 
to the effect that the Securities Depository has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of 
Cede & Co., the Bonds will be transferable to such new nominee in accordance with paragraph (e) 
hereof. 

 

(c) If Participants holding a majority position in the Bonds determine that it is in the best 
interest of the Beneficial Owners that they be able to obtain certificated Bonds, the Participants may 
notify the Securities Depository and the Paying Agent, whereupon the Securities Depository shall notify 
the Participants of the availability through the Securities Depository of Bond certificates. In such event, 
the Bonds will be transferable in accordance with paragraph (e) hereof. The Securities Depository may 
determine to discontinue providing its services with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving notice to 
the City and the Paying Agent and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto under applicable 
law. In such event, the Bonds will be transferable in accordance with paragraph (e) hereof. 

 
(d) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, so long as any 

Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of the Securities Depository, all payments with 
respect to the principal or Redemption Price of and interest on such Bond and all notices with respect to 
such Bond shall be made and given, respectively, to the Securities Depository as provided in the 
Representation Letter. 

 

(e) If any transfer or exchange of Bonds is permitted under paragraph (b) or (c) hereof, such 
transfer or exchange shall be accomplished upon receipt by the Paying Agent from the Registered 
Owners thereof of the Bonds to be transferred or exchanged and appropriate instruments of transfer to 
the permitted transferee in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance. If Bonds are issued to 
holders other than Cede & Co., its successor as nominee for the Securities Depository as holder of all the 
Bonds, or other securities depository as holder of all the Bonds, the provisions of this Ordinance shall 
also apply to all matters relating thereto, including, without limitation, the printing of such Bonds and 
the method of payment of the principal or Redemption Price of and interest on such Bonds. If Bonds are 
issued to holders other than the Securities Depository, the Paying Agent may rely on information 

41

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -12- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

provided by the Securities Depository or any Participant as to the names, addresses of and principal 
amounts held by the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds. 

 
 

ARTICLE III 

REDEMPTION OF BONDS 

Section 301. Redemption of Bonds. 
 

(a) Optional Redemption. At the option of the City, the Bonds or portions thereof maturing 
on May 1, 20 and thereafter may be called for redemption and payment prior to their Stated 
Maturity on May 1, 20    and thereafter as a whole or in part at any time at the Redemption Price of 
100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest thereon to the Redemption Date. 

 
(b) Mandatory Redemption. The Bonds maturing in the years 2044* and 2047* (the “Term 

Bonds”) are subject to mandatory redemption and payment prior to their Stated Maturity pursuant to 
the mandatory redemption requirements of this Section at a Redemption Price of 100% of the principal 
amount thereof plus accrued interest thereon to the Redemption Date on May 1 in each of the years 
and in the amounts set forth below: 

 
Term Bonds Maturing May 1, 2044* 

 
Year Principal Amount 

2042* $ 
2043*  

2044†*  

 
† Final Maturity 

 
Term Bonds Maturing May 1, 2047* 

 
Year Principal Amount 

2045* $ 
2046*  

2047†*  

 
† Final Maturity 

 

At its option, to be exercised on or before the 45th day next preceding any mandatory 
Redemption Date, the City may: (1) deliver to the Paying Agent for cancellation Term Bonds, in any 
aggregate principal amount desired, (2) furnish the Paying Agent funds, together with appropriate 
instructions, for the purpose of purchasing any Term Bonds from any Registered Owners thereof, 
whereupon the Paying Agent shall expend such funds for such purpose to such extent as may be 
practical or (3) receive a credit with respect to the mandatory redemption obligation of the City under 
this Section for any Term Bonds which prior to such date have been redeemed (other than through the 

42

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -13- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

operation of the requirements of this Section) and canceled by the Paying Agent and not theretofore 
applied as a credit against any redemption obligation under this Section.   Each Term Bond so delivered 
or previously purchased or redeemed shall be credited at 100% of the principal amount thereof on the 
obligation of the City to redeem Term Bonds of the same Stated Maturity on such Redemption Date, and 
any excess of such amount shall be credited on future mandatory redemption obligations for Term 
Bonds of the same Stated Maturity in chronological order, and the principal amount of Term Bonds of 
the same Stated Maturity to be redeemed by operation of the requirements of this Section shall be 
accordingly reduced. If the City intends to exercise any option granted by the provisions of clause (1), 
(2) or (3) above, the City will, on or before the 45th day next preceding each mandatory Redemption 
Date, furnish the Paying Agent a written certificate indicating to what extent the provisions of said 
clauses (1), (2) and (3) are to be complied with, with respect to such mandatory redemption payment. 

 

Section 302. Selection of Bonds to be Redeemed. 
 

(a) The Paying Agent shall call Bonds for optional redemption and payment and shall give 
notice of such redemption as herein provided upon receipt by the Paying Agent at least 45 days prior to 
the Redemption Date of written instructions from the City specifying the principal amount, Stated 
Maturities, Redemption Date and Redemption Prices of the Bonds to be called for redemption. The 
Paying Agent may in its discretion waive such notice period so long as the notice requirements set forth 
in Section 303 are met. The foregoing provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to the mandatory 
redemption of Term Bonds, and Term Bonds shall be called by the Paying Agent for redemption 
pursuant to such mandatory redemption requirements without the necessity of any action by the City 
and whether or not the Paying Agent shall hold in the Debt Service Fund moneys available and sufficient 
to effect the required redemption. 

 

(b) Bonds shall be redeemed only in the principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple 
thereof. When less than all of the Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, such Bonds shall be 
redeemed in such order of their Stated Maturities as determined by the City, and Bonds of less than a 
full Stated Maturity shall be selected by the Paying Agent in $5,000 units of principal amount in such 
equitable manner as the Paying Agent may determine. 

 
(c) In the case of a partial redemption of Bonds, when Bonds of denominations greater 

than $5,000 are then-Outstanding, then for all purposes in connection with such redemption each 
$5,000 of face value shall be treated as though it were a separate Bond of the denomination of $5,000. 
If it is determined that one or more, but not all, of the $5,000 units of face value represented by any 
Bond are selected for redemption, then upon notice of intention to redeem such $5,000 unit or units, 
the Registered Owner of such Bond or the Registered Owner’s duly authorized agent shall present and 
surrender such Bond to the Paying Agent (1) for payment of the Redemption Price and interest to the 
Redemption Date of such $5,000 unit or units of face value called for redemption, and (2) for exchange, 
without charge to the Registered Owner thereof, for a new Bond or Bonds of the aggregate principal 
amount of the unredeemed portion of the principal amount of such Bond. If the Registered Owner of 
any such Bond fails to present such Bond to the Paying Agent for payment and exchange as aforesaid, 
such Bond shall, nevertheless, become due and payable on the Redemption Date to the extent of the 
$5,000 unit or units of face value called for redemption (and to that extent only). 

 

Section 303. Notice and Effect of Call for Redemption. 

43

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -14- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

(a) Unless waived by any Registered Owner of Bonds to be redeemed, official notice of any 
redemption shall be given by the Paying Agent on the City’s behalf by mailing a copy of an official 
redemption notice by first-class mail at least 30 days before the Redemption Date to each Registered 
Owner of the Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown on the Bond Register. 

 

(b) All official notices of redemption shall be dated and shall contain the following 
information: 

 
(1) the Redemption Date; 

 
(2) the Redemption Price; 

 
(3) if less than all Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, the identification number 

and Stated Maturity and, in the case of a partial redemption of any Bonds, the respective 
principal amounts of the Bonds to be redeemed; 

 

(4) a statement that on the Redemption Date the Redemption Price will become 
due and payable upon each such Bond or portion thereof called for redemption and that 
interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after the Redemption Date; and 

 
(5) the place where such Bonds are to be surrendered for payment of the 

Redemption Price. 
 

(c) The failure of any Registered Owner to receive the foregoing notice or any defect 
therein shall not invalidate the effectiveness of the call for redemption. 

 
(d) Any notice of optional redemption may be conditioned upon moneys being on deposit 

with the Paying Agent on or before the Redemption Date in an amount sufficient to pay the Redemption 
Price on the Redemption Date. If such notice is conditional and either the Paying Agent receives written 
notice from the City that moneys sufficient to pay the Redemption Price will not be received on the 
Redemption Date, or such moneys are not received on the Redemption Date, then such notice shall be 
of no force and effect, the Paying Agent shall not redeem such Bonds and the Paying Agent shall give 
notice, in the same manner in which the notice of redemption was given, that such moneys were not or 
will not be so received and that such Bonds will not be redeemed. 

 
 

(e) Prior to any Redemption Date, the City shall deposit with the Paying Agent an amount of 
money sufficient to pay the Redemption Price of all the Bonds or portions of Bonds that are to be 
redeemed on that date. 

 
(f) Official notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid, the Bonds or portions of 

Bonds to be redeemed shall become due and payable on the Redemption Date at the Redemption Price 
therein specified, and from and after the Redemption Date (unless the City defaults in the payment of 
the Redemption Price) such Bonds or portions of Bonds shall cease to bear interest. Upon surrender of 
such Bonds for redemption in accordance with such notice, the Redemption Price of such Bonds shall be 
paid by the Paying Agent. Installments of interest due on or prior to the Redemption Date shall be 
payable as herein provided for payment of interest. Upon surrender for any partial redemption of any 
Bond, the Paying Agent shall prepare for the Registered Owner a new Bond or Bonds of the same Stated 

44

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -15- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

Maturity in the amount of the unpaid principal as provided herein. All Bonds that have been 
surrendered for redemption shall be canceled and destroyed by the Paying Agent as provided herein 
and shall not be reissued. 

 

(g) In addition to the foregoing notice, further notice shall be given by the Paying Agent on 
the City’s behalf as set out below, but no defect in said further notice nor any failure to give all or any 
portion of such further notice shall in any manner defeat the effectiveness of a call for redemption if 
official notice thereof is given as above prescribed. 

 
(1) Each further notice of redemption shall contain the information required above 

for an official notice of redemption plus (A) the CUSIP numbers of all Bonds being redeemed; (B) 
the date of issue of the Bonds as originally issued; and (C) any other descriptive information 
needed to identify accurately the Bonds being redeemed. 

 

(2) Each further notice of redemption shall be filed on the Electronic Municipal 
Market Access system for municipal securities disclosures (“EMMA”) established and maintained 
by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”) (or any successor to EMMA 
established by the MSRB), at least one day before the mailing of notice to Registered Owners. If 
EMMA ceases to exist, then each further notice of redemption shall be sent by first-class, 
registered or certified mail or overnight delivery, as determined by the Paying Agent, to one or 
more national information services that disseminate notices of redemption of obligations such 
as the Bonds. 

 
(h) Each check or other transfer of funds issued for the payment of the Redemption Price of 

Bonds being redeemed shall bear or have enclosed therewith the CUSIP number of the Bonds being 
redeemed with the proceeds of such check or other transfer. 

 

(i) The Paying Agent is also directed to comply with any mandatory standards established 
by the Securities and Exchange Commission then in effect for processing redemptions of municipal 
securities. Failure to comply with such standards shall not affect or invalidate the redemption of any 
Bond. 

 
(j) For so long as the Securities Depository is effecting book-entry transfers of the Bonds, 

the Paying Agent shall provide the notices specified in this Section to the Securities Depository. It is 
expected that the Securities Depository shall, in turn, notify its Participants and that the Participants, in 
turn, will notify or cause to be notified the Beneficial Owners. Any failure on the part of the Securities 
Depository or a Participant, or failure on the part of a nominee of a Beneficial Owner of a Bond (having 
been mailed notice from the Paying Agent, the Securities Depository, a Participant or otherwise) to 
notify the Beneficial Owner of the Bond so affected, shall not affect the validity of the redemption of 
such Bond. 

 

ARTICLE IV 
 

SECURITY FOR AND PAYMENT OF BONDS 
 

Section 401. Security for the Bonds. 

45

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -16- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

(a) The Bonds are special obligations of the City payable as to both principal and interest 
solely from annual appropriations of funds by the City for such purpose to be deposited in the Debt 
Service Fund. The obligation of the City to make payments into the Debt Service Fund and any other 
obligations of the City under this Ordinance do not constitute a general obligation or indebtedness of 
the City for which the City is obligated to levy or pledge any form of taxation, or for which the City has 
levied or pledged any form of taxation and shall not be construed to be a debt of the City in 
contravention of any applicable constitutional, statutory or charter limitation or requirement but in each 
Fiscal Year shall be payable solely from the amounts pledged or appropriated therefor (1) out of the 
income and revenues provided for such year, plus (2) any unencumbered balances for previous years. 
Subject to the preceding sentence, the obligations of the City to make payments hereunder and to 
perform and observe any other covenant and agreement contained herein shall be absolute and 
unconditional. 

 

(b) The covenants and agreements of the City contained herein and in the Bonds shall be 
for the equal benefit, protection and security of the legal owners of any or all of the Bonds. All of the 
Bonds shall be of equal rank and without preference or priority of one Bond over any other Bond in the 
application of the funds herein pledged to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, or 
otherwise, except as to rate of interest, date of Maturity or right of prior redemption as provided in this 
Ordinance. 

 

Section 402. Covenant to Request Appropriations. The City Council hereby directs that from 
and after delivery of the Bonds and so long as any of the Bonds remain Outstanding, subject to 
Section 401, the City Administrator or any other officer of the City at any time charged with the 
responsibility of formulating budget proposals shall (a) include in each annual budget an appropriation 
of the amount necessary (after taking into account any moneys legally available for such purpose) to pay 
debt service on the Bonds in the next succeeding Fiscal Year, and (b) take such further action (or cause 
the same to be taken) as may be necessary or desirable to assure the availability of moneys 
appropriated to pay such debt service on the Bonds in the next succeeding Fiscal Year. The City is not 
required or obligated to make any such annual appropriation, and the decision of whether to appropriate 
such funds will be solely within the discretion of the then-current City Council. 

 

ARTICLE V 

ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS; 
DEPOSIT AND APPLICATION OF BOND PROCEEDS 

 
Section 501.    Establishment of Funds. There have been or shall be established in the treasury 

of the City and shall be held and administered by the Finance Director (a) a Project Fund, (b) a Debt 
Service Fund and (c) a Rebate Fund. Each fund shall be maintained as a separate and distinct fund, and 
the moneys therein shall be held, managed, invested, disbursed and administered as provided in this 
Ordinance. All moneys deposited in the funds shall be used solely for the purposes set forth in this 
Ordinance. The City shall keep and maintain adequate records pertaining to each fund and all 
disbursements therefrom. 

 

Section 502.     Deposit of Bond Proceeds.   The net proceeds received from the sale of the 
Bonds (less $ withheld by the Underwriter for the reimbursement of certain costs of issuing 

46

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -17- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

the Bonds) shall be deposited simultaneously with the delivery of the Bonds in the Project Fund and 
shall be applied in accordance with Section 503. 

 
Section 503. Application of Moneys in the Project Fund. 

 

(a) Moneys in the Project Fund shall be used by the City solely for the purpose of (1) paying 
the costs of the Project as hereinbefore provided and (2) paying the costs and expenses incident to the 
issuance of the Bonds, including, but not limited to, the fees of attorneys, financial consultants, 
accountants, rating agencies, printers and others employed to render professional services and other 
costs, fees and expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Bonds. 

 
(b) The Finance Director shall make withdrawals from the Project Fund upon satisfaction 

that such payment is being made for a purpose within the scope of this Ordinance and that the amount 
of such payment represents only the contract price of the property, equipment, labor, materials or 
service being paid for or, if such payment is not being made pursuant to an express contract, that such 
payment is not in excess of the reasonable value thereof. Nothing hereinbefore contained shall prevent 
the payment out of the Project Fund of all costs and expenses incident to the issuance of the Bonds. 

 

(c) Upon completion of the Project, any surplus remaining in the Project Fund shall be 
transferred to and deposited in the Debt Service Fund. 

 
Section 504. Application of Moneys in the Debt Service Fund. 

 
(a) All amounts paid and credited to the Debt Service Fund shall be expended and used by the 

City for the sole purpose of paying the principal or Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds as and 
when the same becomes due and the usual and customary fees and expenses of the Paying Agent. The 
Finance Director is authorized and directed to withdraw from the Debt Service Fund sums sufficient to pay 
the principal or Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds and the fees and expenses of the Paying 
Agent as and when the same becomes due, and to forward such sums to the Paying Agent in a manner 
which ensures that the Paying Agent will receive immediately available funds in such amounts on or before 
the Business Day immediately preceding the dates when such principal or Redemption Price, interest and 
fees of the Paying Agent will become due. If, through the lapse of time or otherwise, the Registered 
Owners of Bonds are no longer entitled to enforce payment of the Bonds or the interest thereon, the 
Paying Agent shall return said funds to the City. All moneys deposited with the Paying Agent shall be 
deemed to be deposited in accordance with and subject to all of the provisions contained in this Ordinance 
and shall be held in trust by the Paying Agent for the benefit of the Registered Owners of the Bonds 
entitled to payment from such moneys. 

 

(b) Any moneys or investments remaining in the Debt Service Fund after the retirement of 
the Bonds shall be transferred and paid into the general fund of the City. 

 
Section 505. Application of Moneys in the Rebate Fund. 

 
(a) There shall be deposited in the Rebate Fund such amounts as are required to be 

deposited therein pursuant to the Federal Tax Certificate.   All money at any time deposited in the 
Rebate Fund shall be held in trust, to the extent required to pay arbitrage rebate, and neither the City 
nor the Registered Owner of any Bonds shall have any rights in or claim to such money. All amounts 

47

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -18- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

deposited into or on deposit in the Rebate Fund shall be governed by this Section and the Federal Tax 
Certificate. 

 
(b) The City shall periodically determine the amount of arbitrage rebate due under 

Section 148(f) of the Code in accordance with the Federal Tax Certificate, and the City shall make 
payments to the United States of America at the times and in the amounts determined under the 
Federal Tax Certificate.   Any money remaining in the Rebate Fund after redemption and payment of all 
of the Bonds and payment and satisfaction of any arbitrage rebate, or provision made therefor, shall be 
released to the City. 

 

(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, including in particular Article VII, 
the obligation to pay arbitrage rebate and to comply with all other requirements of this Section and the 
Federal Tax Certificate shall survive the defeasance or payment in full of the Bonds. 

 

Section 506. Deposits and Investment of Moneys. 
 

(a) Moneys in each of the funds created by and referred to in this Ordinance shall be 
deposited in a bank or banks or other legally permitted financial institutions located in the State of 
Missouri that are members of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. All such deposits shall be 
continuously and adequately secured by the banks or financial institutions holding such deposits as 
provided by the laws of the State of Missouri. All moneys held in the funds created by this Ordinance 
shall be kept separate and apart from all other funds of the City so that there is no commingling of such 
funds with any other funds of the City. 

 

(b) Moneys held in any fund referred to in this Ordinance may be invested by the Finance 
Director in Permitted Investments in accordance with the investment policy of the City; provided, 
however, that no such investment shall be made for a period extending longer than the date when the 
moneys invested may be needed for the purpose for which such fund was created. All earnings on any 
investments held in any fund shall accrue to and become a part of such fund. 

 
Section 507. Nonpresentment of Bonds. If any Bond is not presented for payment when the 

principal thereof becomes due at Maturity, if funds sufficient to pay such Bond have been made 
available to the Paying Agent, all liability of the City to the Registered Owner thereof for the payment of 
such Bond shall forthwith cease, determine and be completely discharged, and thereupon it shall be the 
duty of the Paying Agent to hold such funds, without liability for interest thereon, for the benefit of the 
Registered Owner of such Bond, who shall thereafter be restricted exclusively to such funds for any 
claim of whatever nature on his part under this Ordinance or on, or with respect to, said Bond. If any 
Bond is not presented for payment within one year following the date when such Bond becomes due at 
Maturity, the Paying Agent shall repay to the City without liability for interest thereon the funds 
theretofore held by it for payment of such Bond, and such Bond shall, subject to the defense of any 
applicable statute of limitation, thereafter be an unsecured obligation of the City, and the Registered 
Owner thereof shall be entitled to look only to the City for payment, and then only to the extent of the 
amount so repaid to it by the Paying Agent, and the City shall not be liable for any interest thereon and 
shall not be regarded as a trustee of such money. 

 

Section 508. Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays. In any case where a Bond 
Payment Date is not a Business Day, then payment of the principal or Redemption Price of and interest 
on the Bonds need not be made on such Bond Payment Date but may be made on the next succeeding 

48

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -19- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

Business Day with the same force and effect as if made on such Bond Payment Date, and no interest 
shall accrue for the period after such Bond Payment Date. 

 
 

ARTICLE VI 

REMEDIES 

Section 601. Remedies. The provisions of this Ordinance, including the covenants and 
agreements herein contained, shall constitute a contract between the City and the Registered Owners of 
the Bonds, and the Registered Owner or Owners of not less than 10% in principal amount of the Bonds 
at the time Outstanding may, for the equal benefit and protection of all Registered Owners of Bonds 
similarly situated: 

 

(a) by mandamus or other suit, action or proceedings at law or in equity, enforce 
the rights of such Registered Owner or Owners against the City and its officers, agents and 
employees, and require and compel duties and obligations required by the provisions of this 
Ordinance or by the Constitution and laws of the State of Missouri; 

 
(b) by suit, action or other proceedings in equity or at law, require the City, its 

officers, agents and employees to account as if they were the trustees of an express trust; or 
 

(c) by suit, action or other proceedings in equity or at law, enjoin any acts or things 
which may be unlawful or in violation of the rights of the Registered Owners of the Bonds. 

 

Section 602.    Limitation on Rights of Registered Owners. The covenants and agreements of 
the City contained herein and in the Bonds shall be for the equal benefit, protection and security of the 
legal owners of any or all of the Bonds. All of the Bonds shall be of equal rank and without preference or 
priority of one Bond over any other Bond in the application of the funds herein pledged to the payment 
of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, or otherwise, except as to rate of interest, date of Maturity 
or right of prior redemption as provided in this Ordinance. No one or more Registered Owners secured 
hereby shall have any right in any manner whatsoever by his or their action to affect, disturb or 
prejudice the security granted and provided for herein, or to enforce any right hereunder, except in the 
manner herein provided, and all proceedings at law or in equity shall be instituted, had and maintained 
for the equal benefit of all Registered Owners of such Outstanding Bonds. 

 

Section 603. Remedies Cumulative. No remedy conferred herein upon the Registered 
Owners is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, but each such remedy shall be cumulative and 
in addition to every other remedy and may be exercised without exhausting and without regard to any 
other remedy conferred herein. No waiver of any default or breach of duty or contract by the 
Registered Owner of any Bond shall extend to or affect any subsequent default or breach of duty or 
contract or shall impair any rights or remedies consequent thereon. No delay or omission of any 
Registered Owner to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or 
power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or acquiescence therein. Every 
substantive right and every remedy conferred upon the Registered Owners of the Bonds by this 
Ordinance may be enforced and exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. 
If any suit, action or other proceedings taken by any Registered Owner on account of any default or to 
enforce any right or exercise any remedy has been discontinued or abandoned for any reason, or has 

49

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -20- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

been determined adversely to such Registered Owner, then, and in every such case, the City and the 
Registered Owners of the Bonds shall be restored to their former positions and rights hereunder, 
respectively, and all rights, remedies, powers and duties of the Registered Owners shall continue as if no 
such suit, action or other proceedings had been brought or taken. 

 

Section 604.      No Acceleration. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Bonds 
are not subject to acceleration upon the occurrence of an event of default hereunder. 

 

Section 605. No Obligation to Levy Taxes. Nothing contained in this Ordinance shall be 
construed as imposing on the City any duty or obligation to levy any taxes either to meet any obligation 
incurred hereunder or to pay the principal of or interest on the Bonds. 

 
Section 606.     Exception for Continuing Disclosure. This Article VI shall not apply to Section 

806 regarding the City’s continuing disclosure obligations, and Registered Owners or Beneficial Owners 
of the Bonds shall have no remedies for the enforcement of said obligations other than the remedies 
provided for in Section 806 and the City’s Continuing Disclosure Undertaking. 

 
 

ARTICLE VII 

DEFEASANCE 

Section 701.     Defeasance.   When any or all of the Bonds or the interest payments thereon 
have been paid and discharged, then the requirements contained in this Ordinance and all other rights 
granted hereby shall terminate with respect to the Bonds or interest payments so paid and discharged. 
Bonds or the interest payments thereon shall be deemed to have been paid and discharged within the 
meaning of this Ordinance if there has been deposited with the Paying Agent or other commercial bank 
or trust company located in the State of Missouri and having full trust powers, at or prior to the Stated 
Maturity or Redemption Date of said Bonds or the interest payments thereon, in trust for and 
irrevocably appropriated thereto, moneys and/or Defeasance Obligations which, together with the 
interest to be earned thereon, will be sufficient for the payment of the principal or Redemption Price of 
said Bonds, and/or interest to accrue on such Bonds to the Stated Maturity or Redemption Date, as the 
case may be, or if default in such payment shall have occurred on such date, then to the date of the 
tender of such payments; provided, however, that if any such Bonds shall be redeemed prior to the 
Stated Maturity thereof, (1) the City shall have elected to redeem such Bonds, and (2) either notice of 
such redemption shall have been given, or the City shall have given irrevocable instructions, or shall 
have provided for an escrow agent to give irrevocable instructions, to the Paying Agent to give such 
notice of redemption in compliance with Section 302(a). Any moneys and Defeasance Obligations that 
at any time shall be deposited with the Paying Agent or other commercial bank or trust company by or 
on behalf of the City, for the purpose of paying and discharging any of the Bonds or the interest 
payments thereon, shall be and are hereby assigned, transferred and set over to the Paying Agent or 
other commercial bank or trust company in trust for the respective Registered Owners of such Bonds, 
and such moneys shall be and are hereby irrevocably appropriated to the payment and discharge 
thereof. All moneys and Defeasance Obligations deposited with the Paying Agent or other commercial 
bank or trust company shall be deemed to be deposited in accordance with and subject to all of the 
provisions contained in this Ordinance. 

50

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -21- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

To accomplish a defeasance of the Bonds or the interest payments thereon when the City will 
rely on interest to be earned on any Defeasance Obligations deposited as described above, the City shall 
cause to be delivered to the Paying Agent a verification report of an independent firm of nationally 
recognized certified public accountants verifying the sufficiency of the amounts on deposit with the 
Paying Agent or other escrow agent to provide for payment in full of the Bonds as provided herein. 

 
 

ARTICLE VIII 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Section 801. Tax Covenants. The City covenants and agrees to comply with all provisions and 
requirements of the Federal Tax Certificate, which is hereby approved in substantially the form attached 
as Exhibit E, with such changes therein as shall be approved by the Mayor and the Bond Compliance 
Officer (as defined therein), who are hereby authorized to execute the Federal Tax Certificate for and on 
behalf of the City, such officials’ signatures thereon being conclusive evidence of their approval thereof. 

 

Section 802. Annual Audit. 
 

(a) Annually, promptly after the end of the Fiscal Year, the City will cause an audit to be 
made of its funds and accounts for the preceding Fiscal Year by an independent certified public 
accountant or firm of independent certified public accountants. 

 
(b) Within 30 days after the completion of each such audit, a copy thereof shall be filed in 

the office of the City Clerk. Such audits shall at all times during usual business hours be open to 
examination and inspection by any Registered Owner of any of the Bonds, or by anyone acting for or on 
behalf of such Registered Owner. 

 

Section 803. Amendments. 
 

(a) Notwithstanding the City’s obligations under the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, 
which may be modified as provided therein, the rights and duties of the City and the Registered Owners, 
and the terms and provisions of the Bonds or of this Ordinance, may be amended or modified at any 
time in any respect by ordinance of the City with the written consent of the Registered Owners of not 
less than a majority in principal amount of the Bonds then-Outstanding, such consent to be evidenced 
by an instrument or instruments executed by such Registered Owners and duly acknowledged or proved 
in the manner of a deed to be recorded, and such instrument or instruments shall be filed with the City 
Clerk, but no such modification or alteration shall: 

 

(1) extend the maturity of any payment of principal or interest due upon any Bond; 
 

(2) alter the optional Redemption Date of any Bond; 
 

(3) effect a reduction in the amount which the City is required to pay as principal of 
or interest on any Bond; 

 
(4) permit preference or priority of any Bond over any other Bond; or 

51

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -22- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

(5) reduce the percentage in principal amount of Bonds required for the written 
consent to any modification or alteration of the provisions of this Ordinance. 

 
(b) Any provision of the Bonds or of this Ordinance may, however, be amended or modified 

by ordinance duly adopted by the City Council at any time in any legal respect with the written consent 
of the Registered Owners of all of the Bonds at the time Outstanding. 

 

(c) Without notice to or the consent of any Registered Owners, the City may amend or 
supplement this Ordinance for the purpose of curing any formal defect, omission, inconsistency or 
ambiguity herein, or in connection with any other change herein that is not materially adverse to the 
security of the Registered Owners. 

 
(d) Every amendment or modification of the provisions of the Bonds or of this Ordinance to 

which the written consent of the Registered Owners is given, as above provided, shall be expressed in an 
ordinance passed by the City Council amending or supplementing the provisions of this Ordinance and 
shall be deemed to be a part of this Ordinance. Any and all modifications made in the manner 
hereinabove provided shall not become effective until there has been filed with the City Clerk a copy of 
the ordinance of the City hereinabove provided for, duly certified, as well as proof of any required 
consent to such modification by the Registered Owners of the Bonds then-Outstanding. It shall not be 
necessary to note on any of the Outstanding Bonds any reference to such amendment or modification. 
A certified copy of every such amendatory or supplemental ordinance, if any, and a certified copy of this 
Ordinance shall always be kept on file in the office of the City Clerk, shall be made available for 
inspection by the Registered Owner of any Bond or a prospective purchaser or owner of any Bond 
authorized by this Ordinance, and upon payment of the reasonable cost of preparing the same, a 
certified copy of any such amendatory or supplemental ordinance or of this Ordinance shall be sent by 
the City Clerk to any such Registered Owner or prospective Registered Owner. 

 

(e) The City shall furnish to the Paying Agent a copy of any amendment to the Bonds or this 
Ordinance which affects the duties or obligations of the Paying Agent under this Ordinance. 

 
Section 804. Notices, Consents and Other Instruments by Registered Owners. 

 
(a) Any notice, consent, request, direction, approval or other instrument to be signed and 

executed by the Registered Owners may be in any number of concurrent writings of similar tenor and 
may be signed or executed by such Registered Owners in person or by agent appointed in writing. Proof 
of the execution of any such instrument or of the writing appointing any such agent and of the 
ownership of Bonds, other than the assignment of the ownership of a Bond, if made in the following 
manner, shall be sufficient for any of the purposes of this Ordinance, and shall be conclusive in favor of 
the City and the Paying Agent with regard to any action taken, suffered or omitted under any such 
instrument, namely: 

 

(1) The fact and date of the execution by any Person of any such instrument may be 
proved by a certificate of any officer in any jurisdiction who by law has power to take 
acknowledgments within such jurisdiction that the Person signing such instrument 
acknowledged before such officer the execution thereof, or by affidavit of any witness to such 
execution. 

52

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -23- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

(2) The fact of ownership of Bonds, the amount or amounts, numbers and other 
identification of Bonds, and the date of holding the same shall be proved by the Bond Register. 

 
(b) In determining whether the Registered Owners of the requisite principal amount of 

Bonds Outstanding have given any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver 
under this Ordinance, Bonds owned by the City shall be disregarded and deemed not to be Outstanding 
under this Ordinance, except that, in determining whether the Registered Owners shall be protected in 
relying upon any such request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver, only Bonds 
which the Registered Owners know to be so owned shall be so disregarded. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, Bonds so owned which have been pledged in good faith shall not be disregarded as aforesaid 
if the pledgee establishes to the satisfaction of the Registered Owners the pledgee’s right so to act with 
respect to such Bonds and that the pledgee is not the City. 

 

Section 805.    Continuing Disclosure. The Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, in substantially 
the form attached as Exhibit D, is hereby authorized and approved. The Mayor is hereby authorized to 
execute the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking. The City hereby covenants and agrees that it will 
comply with and carry out all of the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking as originally 
executed and as it may be amended from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof. Upon 
failure of the City to comply with the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, any Registered Owner or 
Beneficial Owner may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking 
mandamus or specific performance by court order, to cause the City to comply with its obligations under 
this Section. In no event will a default under the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking be considered a 
default under this Ordinance. 

 

Section 806. Further Authority. The officers and officials of the City, including the Mayor, City 
Administrator, Finance Director and City Clerk, are hereby authorized and directed to execute all 
documents and take such actions as they may deem necessary or advisable to carry out and perform the 
purposes of this Ordinance and to make ministerial alterations, changes or additions in the foregoing 
agreements, statements, instruments and other documents herein approved, authorized and confirmed 
which they may approve, and the execution or taking of such action shall be conclusive evidence of such 
necessity or advisability. 

 
Section 807. Parties Interested Herein. Nothing in this Ordinance, express or implied, is 

intended or shall be construed to confer upon, or to give or grant to, any Person, other than the City, the 
Paying Agent and the Registered Owners, any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Ordinance 
or any covenant, condition or stipulation hereof, and all covenants, stipulations, promises and agreements 
in this Ordinance contained by and on behalf of the City shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the 
City, the Paying Agent and the Registered Owners. 

 

Section 808.   Severability.   If any section or other part of this Ordinance, whether large or 
small, is for any reason held invalid, the invalidity thereof shall not affect the validity of the other 
provisions of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 809. Governing Law. This Ordinance shall be governed exclusively by and construed in 

accordance with the applicable laws of the State of Missouri. 
 

Section 810. Electronic Transaction. The City agrees that the transaction described herein may 
be conducted and related documents may be sent, received or stored by electronic means. Copies, 

53

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 -24- ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

telecopies, facsimiles, electronic files and other reproductions of original executed documents shall be 
deemed to be authentic and valid counterparts of such original documents for all purposes, including the 
filing of any claim, action or suit in the appropriate court of law. 

 

Section 811. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect 
immediately after its adoption by the City Council and approval by the Mayor. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council for the City of Republic, Missouri, on this day of 

February, 2022. 
 
 
 

        

Matt Russell, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 
 
 

 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 

Approved as to Form: , Megan McCullough, City Attorney 

Final Passage and Vote:      

54

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 A-1 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 
TO ORDINANCE 

 
(FORM OF BONDS) 

 
 

EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THE ORDINANCE (DESCRIBED 
HEREIN), THIS GLOBAL BOND MAY BE TRANSFERRED, IN WHOLE BUT 
NOT IN PART, ONLY TO ANOTHER NOMINEE OF THE SECURITIES 
DEPOSITORY (DESCRIBED HEREIN) OR TO A SUCCESSOR SECURITIES 
DEPOSITORY OR TO A NOMINEE OF A SUCCESSOR SECURITIES 
DEPOSITORY. 

 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF MISSOURI 
 

Registered Registered 
No.  $   

 
 

CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 
SPECIAL OBLIGATION BOND 

SERIES 2022 
 

 
Interest Rate Maturity Date Dated Date CUSIP Number 

  % May 1, 20   February , 2022    
 
 

REGISTERED OWNER: CEDE & CO. 
 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:    DOLLARS 
 

THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, a constitutional charter city and political subdivision of the 
State of Missouri (the “City”), for value received, hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner 
shown above, or registered assigns, but solely from the source and in the manner herein specified, the 
Principal Amount shown above, on the Maturity Date shown above, unless called for redemption prior 
to said Maturity Date, and to pay interest thereon at the Interest Rate per annum shown above 
(computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) from the Dated Date shown above 
or from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, 
payable semiannually on May 1 and November 1 in each year, beginning on November 1, 2022, until 
said Principal Amount has been paid. 

 

The Principal Amount or Redemption Price of this Bond shall be paid at Maturity or upon earlier 
redemption by check, electronic transfer or draft to the Person in whose name this Bond is registered at 
the Maturity or Redemption Date thereof, upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at the principal 
payment office of UMB Bank, N.A., Kansas City, Missouri (the “Paying Agent”), or such other office 

55

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 A-2 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

designated by the Paying Agent. The interest payable on this Bond on any Interest Payment Date shall 
be paid by check or draft of the Paying Agent mailed to the Registered Owner hereof as of the 
commencement of business of the Paying Agent on the Record Date (being the 15th day, whether or not 
a Business Day, of the calendar month preceding the Interest Payment Date) or by electronic transfer to 
such Registered Owner upon written notice delivered to the Paying Agent not less than 15 days before 
the Record Date from and signed by such Registered Owner containing electronic transfer instructions 
including the name of the bank, ABA routing number and account number to which such Registered 
Owner wishes to have such transfer directed, together with an acknowledgement that an electronic 
transfer fee may be applicable. 

 

This Bond is one of an authorized series of bonds of the City designated “Special Obligation 
Bonds, Series 2022,” aggregating the principal amount of $43,020,000 (the “Bonds”), issued by the City 
for the purpose of paying the costs of capital improvements, including but not limited to improvements 
to the wastewater treatment center and the construction of a new public works facility (collectively, the 
“Project”) and paying the costs of issuing the Bonds, under the authority of and in full compliance with 
the City’s Charter and the Constitution and laws of the State of Missouri, and pursuant to an ordinance 
duly passed (the “Ordinance”) and proceedings duly and legally had by the City Council of the City. 
Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to 
such terms in the Ordinance. 

 

At the option of the City, the Bonds or portions thereof maturing on May 1, 20 and 
thereafter may be called for redemption and payment prior to their Stated Maturity on May 1, 20 
and thereafter as a whole or in part at any time at the Redemption Price of 100% of the principal 
amount thereof plus accrued interest thereon to the Redemption Date. 

 
The Bonds maturing in the years 2044* and 2047* are subject to mandatory redemption and 

payment prior to their Stated Maturity pursuant to the mandatory redemption requirements of the 
Ordinance at a Redemption Price of 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest thereon 
to the Redemption Date. 

 
Bonds shall be redeemed only in the principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. 

When less than all of the Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, such Bonds shall be redeemed in such 
order of their Stated Maturities as determined by the City, and Bonds of less than a full Stated Maturity 
shall be selected by the Paying Agent in $5,000 units of principal amount in such equitable manner as 
the Paying Agent may determine. 

 

Notice of redemption, unless waived, is to be given by the Paying Agent by mailing an official 
redemption notice by first-class mail at least 30 days before the Redemption Date to each Registered 
Owner of the Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown on the Bond Register. Notice of redemption 
having been given as aforesaid, the Bonds or portions of Bonds to be redeemed shall become due and 
payable on the Redemption Date at the Redemption Price therein specified, and from and after the 
Redemption Date (unless the City defaults in the payment of the Redemption Price) such Bonds or 
portions of Bonds shall cease to bear interest. 

 

The Bonds are special obligations of the City payable as to both principal and interest solely 
from annual appropriations of funds by the City for such purpose to be deposited in the Debt Service 
Fund. The obligation of the City to make payments into the Debt Service Fund and any other obligations 
of the City under the Ordinance do not constitute a general obligation or indebtedness of the City for 

56

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 A-3 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

which the City is obligated to levy or pledge any form of taxation, or for which the City has levied or 
pledged any form of taxation and shall not be construed to be a debt of the City in contravention of any 
applicable constitutional, statutory or charter limitation or requirement but in each Fiscal Year shall be 
payable solely from the amounts pledged or appropriated therefor (a) out of the income and revenues 
provided for such year, plus (b) any unencumbered balances for previous years. 

 

The Bonds are issuable in the form of fully-registered Bonds in the denominations of $5,000 or 
any integral multiple thereof. 

 
The Bonds are being issued by means of a book-entry system with no physical distribution of 

Bond certificates to be made except as provided in the Ordinance. One Bond certificate with respect to 
each date on which the Bonds are stated to mature, registered in the nominee name of the Securities 
Depository, is being issued and required to be delivered to and immobilized with the Securities 
Depository or with the Paying Agent as the Securities Depository’s FAST Agent. The book-entry system 
will evidence positions held in the Bonds by the Securities Depository’s Participants, beneficial 
ownership of the Bonds in authorized denominations being evidenced in the records of such 
Participants. Transfers of ownership shall be effected on the records of the Securities Depository and its 
Participants. The Paying Agent and the City will recognize the Securities Depository nominee, while the 
Registered Owner of this Bond, as the owner of this Bond for all purposes, including (a) payments of 
principal or Redemption Price of and interest on this Bond, (b) notices and (c) voting. Transfers of 
principal or Redemption Price and interest payments to Participants of the Securities Depository will be 
the responsibility of such Participants and other nominees of Beneficial Owners. The Paying Agent and 
the City will not be responsible or liable for such transfers of payments or for maintaining, supervising or 
reviewing the records maintained by the Securities Depository, the Securities Depository nominee, its 
Participants or Persons acting through such Participants. While the Securities Depository nominee is the 
owner of this Bond, notwithstanding the provision hereinabove contained, payments of principal or 
Redemption Price of and interest on this Bond shall be made in accordance with existing arrangements 
between the Paying Agent, the City and the Securities Depository. 

 

EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THE ORDINANCE, THIS GLOBAL BOND MAY BE 
TRANSFERRED, IN WHOLE BUT NOT IN PART, ONLY TO ANOTHER NOMINEE OF THE SECURITIES 
DEPOSITORY OR TO A SUCCESSOR SECURITIES DEPOSITORY OR TO A NOMINEE OF A SUCCESSOR 
SECURITIES DEPOSITORY. 

 

This Bond may be transferred or exchanged, as provided in the Ordinance, only on the Bond 
Register kept for that purpose at the principal payment office of the Paying Agent, or such other office 
designated by the Paying Agent, upon surrender of this Bond together with a written instrument of 
transfer or authorization for exchange satisfactory to the Paying Agent duly executed by the Registered 
Owner or the Registered Owner’s duly authorized agent, and thereupon a new Bond or Bonds in any 
authorized denomination of the same Stated Maturity and in the same aggregate principal amount shall 
be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the Ordinance and upon payment of the 
charges therein prescribed. The City and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the Person in whose 
name this Bond is registered on the Bond Register as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of 
receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or Redemption Price hereof and interest due 
hereon and for all other purposes, and neither the City nor the Paying Agent shall be affected by any 
notice to the contrary. 

57

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 A-4 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any security 
or benefit under the Ordinance until the Certificate of Authentication hereon has been executed by the 
Paying Agent. 

 

IT IS HEREBY DECLARED AND CERTIFIED that all acts, conditions and things required to be done 
and to exist precedent to and in the issuance of the Bonds have been done and performed and do exist 
in due and regular form and manner as required by the Constitution and laws of the State of Missouri. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, has caused this Bond to be executed 

by the manual or facsimile signature of its Mayor and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of its 
City Clerk and its official seal to be affixed or imprinted hereon. 

 
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 

This Bond is one of the Bonds of the issue 
described in the within-mentioned Ordinance. 

 
By:    

Mayor 

Registration Date:     (SEAL) 

UMB BANK, N.A., 
Paying Agent 

 
ATTEST: 

 

By:    
Authorized Signatory 

 

   
City Clerk 

 

58

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 A-5 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

 

 

 
 

 
 

ASSIGNMENT 
 
 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
 
 

Print or Type Name, Address and Social Security Number 
or other Taxpayer Identification Number of Transferee 

 
the within   Bond   and   all   rights   thereunder,   and hereby   irrevocably   constitutes   and   appoints 
   agent to transfer the within Bond on the books kept by the Paying Agent for 
the registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

 
 

Dated:       
NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must 
correspond with the name of the Registered 
Owner as it appears upon the face of the within 
Bond in every particular. 

 
Medallion Signature Guarantee: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

59

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 
B-1 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 
TO ORDINANCE 

 
PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

 
 

[On file in the Office of the City Clerk] 

60

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 
C-1 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 
TO ORDINANCE 

 
BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 
 

[On file in the Office of the City Clerk] 

61

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 
D-1 

 

 

EXHIBIT D 
TO ORDINANCE 

 
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

 
 

[On file in the Office of the City Clerk] 

62

Item 6.



BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 

BILL NO. 22-03 ORDINANCE NO. 22- 
E-1 

 

 

EXHIBIT E 
TO ORDINANCE 

 
FEDERAL TAX CERTIFICATE 

 
 

[On file in the Office of the City Clerk] 

63

Item 6.



01.12.22 FB DRAFT 

4890-5639-3993  REPUBLIC, MO 2022 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
  BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 

relating to 
 
 

$__________ 
CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 
SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

SERIES 2022 
 
 

February 1, 2022 
 
 
City of Republic, Missouri 
204 North Main Street 
Republic, Missouri  65738 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 

The undersigned, Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated (the “Underwriter”), hereby offers to 
purchase from the City of Republic, Missouri (the “City”), a body corporate and politic and political subdivision 
of the State of Missouri, $___________________ aggregate principal amount of Special Obligation Bonds, Series 
2022 (the “Bonds”).  The issuance and sale of the Bonds is authorized by an ordinance (the “Bond 
Ordinance”) passed by the City Council and approved by the Mayor of the City on February 1, 2022.  
Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein have the meaning given such terms in the Bond Ordinance. 

The Bonds are to be issued by the City pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of the 
Constitution and laws of the State of Missouri, its Charter and the Bond Ordinance.  The Bonds are being issued 
for the purpose of providing funds to finance the costs of certain capital improvements of the City and pay the 
costs of issuing the Bonds. 

The Bonds shall constitute special obligations of the City payable as to both principal and interest payable 
solely from the revenues derived from annual appropriations by the City Council. 

The Bonds shall mature on the dates in the years and in the amounts, and shall bear interest at the rates 
per annum, set forth in Schedule I hereto.  

This offer is made subject to your acceptance of this Bond Purchase Agreement on or before 10:00 p.m. 
(central time) on the date hereof.  Upon your acceptance of the offer, the following agreement will be binding 
upon you and the Underwriter. 

The words “Transaction Documents” when used herein shall mean, individually and collectively, the 
following:  the Bonds; the Bond Ordinance; this Bond Purchase Agreement; the Continuing Disclosure 
Undertaking of the City dated as of February 1, 2022 (the “Undertaking”), the Federal Tax Certificate of the City 
dated February 16, 2022 (the “Federal Tax Certificate”); the Preliminary Official Statement (as defined herein); 
the Official Statement (as defined herein); and any and all other documents or instruments that evidence or are a 
part of the transactions referred to herein or in the Official Statement or contemplated hereby or by the Official 
Statement; provided, however, that when the words “Transaction Documents” are used in the context of the 
authorization, execution, delivery, approval or performance of Transaction Documents by a party hereto, the 
same shall mean only those Transaction Documents that provide for or contemplate authorization, execution, 
delivery, approval or performance by such party. 

64

Item 6.



4890-5639-3993 -2- REPUBLIC, MO 2022 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

  BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

1. Purchase of Bonds.  Upon the terms and conditions and upon the basis of the respective 
representations, warranties and covenants hereinafter set forth, the Underwriter hereby agrees to purchase from 
the City, and the City hereby agrees to sell to the Underwriter, all (but not less than all) of the Bonds at a purchase 
price of $__________ (which is equal to the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds, plus a net original issue 
premium of $__________, less an underwriting discount of $__________). 

The City acknowledges and agrees that (a) the primary role of the Underwriter is to purchase securities 

pursuant to this Bond Purchase Agreement, for resale to investors, in an arm’s‐length commercial transaction 
between the City and the Underwriter and the Underwriter has financial and other interests that differ from 
those of the City, (b) the Underwriter is acting solely as a principal and is not acting as a municipal advisor, 
financial advisor or fiduciary to the City and has not assumed an advisory or fiduciary responsibility to the City 
with respect to the transaction contemplated hereby and the discussions, undertakings and procedures leading 
thereto (irrespective of whether the Underwriter has provided other services or is currently providing other 
services to the City on other matters), (c) the only obligations the Underwriter has to the City with respect to 
the transaction contemplated hereby are expressly as set forth in this Bond Purchase Agreement, and (d) the 
City has consulted its own financial and/or municipal, legal, accounting, tax, and other advisors, as applicable, 
to the extent it has deemed appropriate. 

2. Public Offering.  The Underwriter intends to make a bona fide initial public offering of all of 
the Bonds at prices no higher than those set forth in Schedule I; provided, however, that the Underwriter reserves 
the right to lower such initial offering prices as it deems necessary in connection with the marketing of the Bonds.  
The Underwriter may offer and sell the Bonds to certain dealers (including dealers depositing Bonds into 
investment trusts) and others at prices lower than the initial offering price or prices set forth in Schedule I.  The 
Underwriter also reserves the right to (a) over-allot or effect transactions which stabilize or maintain the market 
price of the Bonds at levels above those that might otherwise prevail in the open market and (b) discontinue such 
stabilizing, if commenced, at any time without prior notice. 

In conjunction with (a) an audit or inquiry by the Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) or the Securities 
and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) relating to the pricing of the Bonds, or (b) the implementation of 
future regulations or similar guidance from the IRS, the SEC or other federal or state regulatory authority 
regarding the retention of pricing data for the Bonds, at the request of the City, the Underwriter will provide 
information explaining the factual basis for the Underwriter’s representations in the Underwriter’s Receipt for 
Bonds and Closing Certificate, the form of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, relating to the pricing of the 
Bonds, other than information that would identify customers (e.g., name or account number).  This agreement 
by the Underwriter to provide such information will continue to apply after the Closing Time (as defined herein) 
but shall not extend to any customer data or other confidential or proprietary information of the Underwriter. 

3. Establishment of Issue Price. 

(a) The Underwriter agrees to assist the City and Bond Counsel (as defined herein) in establishing 
the issue price of the Bonds and shall execute and deliver to the City at Closing (as defined herein) an “issue 
price” or similar certificate, together with the supporting pricing wires or equivalent communications, 
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, with such modifications as may be appropriate or 
necessary, in the reasonable judgment of the Underwriter, the City and Bond Counsel to accurately reflect, as 
applicable, the sales price or prices or the initial offering price or prices to the public of the Bonds. 

(b) Except as otherwise set forth in Schedule I attached hereto, the City will treat the first price 
at which 10% of each maturity of the Bonds (the “10% Test”) is sold to the public as the issue price of that 
maturity.  At or promptly after the execution of this Bond Purchase Agreement, the Underwriter shall report 
to the City the price or prices at which it has sold to the public each maturity of Bonds.  If at that time the 10% 
Test has not been satisfied as to any maturity of the Bonds, the Underwriter agrees to promptly report to the 
City the prices at which it sells the unsold Bonds of that maturity to the public.  That reporting obligation shall 

65

Item 6.



4890-5639-3993 -3- REPUBLIC, MO 2022 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

  BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

continue, whether or not the Closing Time has occurred, until either (i) the Underwriter has sold all Bonds of 
that maturity or (ii) the 10% Test has been satisfied as to the Bonds of that maturity, provided that, the 
Underwriter’s reporting obligation after the Closing Time may be at reasonable periodic intervals or otherwise 
upon request of the City or Bond Counsel.  For purposes of this Section 3, if Bonds mature on the same date 
but have different interest rates, each separate CUSIP number within that maturity will be treated as a separate 
maturity of the Bonds. 

 
(c) The Underwriter confirms that it has offered the Bonds to the public on or before the date of 

this Bond Purchase Agreement at the offering price or prices (the “Initial Offering Price”) set forth in 
Schedule I attached hereto, except as otherwise set forth therein.  Schedule I also sets forth, as of the date of 
this Bond Purchase Agreement, the maturities, if any, of the Bonds for which the 10% Test has not been 
satisfied and for which the City and the Underwriter agree that the restrictions set forth in the next sentence 
shall apply, which will allow the City to treat the Initial Offering Price to the public of each such maturity as of 
the sale date as the issue price of that maturity (the “Hold-The-Offering-Price Rule”).  So long as the Hold-
The-Offering-Price Rule remains applicable to any maturity of the Bonds, the Underwriter will neither offer 
nor sell unsold Bonds of that maturity to any person at a price that is higher than the Initial Offering Price to 
the public during the period starting on the sale date and ending on the earlier of the following: 

 
(i) the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the sale date; or 
 
(ii) the date on which the Underwriter has sold at least 10% of that maturity of the Bonds 

to the public at a price that is no higher than the Initial Offering Price to the public. 
 
The Underwriter will advise the City promptly after the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the 

sale date whether it has sold 10% of that maturity of the Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than 
the Initial Offering Price to the public. 

(d) The Underwriter confirms that: 

(i) any selling group agreement and any third-party distribution agreement relating to the 
initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain 
language obligating each dealer who is a member of the selling group and each broker-dealer that is a 
party to such third-party distribution agreement, as applicable: 

(A) (1) to report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Bonds of 
each maturity allocated to it, whether or not the Closing Time has occurred, until either all 
Bonds of that maturity allocated to it have been sold or it is notified by the Underwriter that 
the 10% Test has been satisfied as to the Bonds of that maturity, provided that, the reporting 
obligation after the Closing Time may be at reasonable periodic intervals or otherwise upon 
request of the Underwriter, and (2) to comply with the Hold-The-Offering-Price Rule, if 
applicable, if and for so long as directed by the Underwriter; 

(B) to promptly notify the Underwriter of any sales of Bonds that, to its 
knowledge, are made to a purchaser who is a related party to an underwriter participating in 
the initial sale of the Bonds to the public (each such term being used as defined below); and 

(C) to acknowledge that, unless otherwise advised by the dealer or broker-dealer, 
the Underwriter shall assume that each order submitted by the dealer or broker-dealer is a sale 
to the public. 

(ii) any selling group agreement relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, 
together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating each dealer that is 

66

Item 6.



4890-5639-3993 -4- REPUBLIC, MO 2022 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

  BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

a party to a third-party distribution agreement to be employed in connection with the initial sale of the 
Bonds to the public to require each broker-dealer that is a party to such third-party distribution 
agreement to (A) report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Bonds of each maturity 
allocated to it, whether or not the Closing Time has occurred, until either all Bonds of that maturity 
allocated to it have been sold or it is notified by the Underwriter or the dealer that the 10% Test has 
been satisfied as to the Bonds of that maturity, provided that, the reporting obligation after the Closing 
Time may be at reasonable periodic intervals or otherwise upon request of the Underwriter or the 
dealer, and (B) comply with the Hold-The-Offering-Price Rule, if applicable, if and for so long as 
directed by the Underwriter or the dealer and as set forth in the related pricing wires. 

(e) The City acknowledges that, in making the representations set forth in this section, the 
Underwriter will rely on (i) in the event a selling group has been created in connection with the initial sale of 
the Bonds to the public, the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group to comply with the 
requirements for establishing issue price of the Bonds, including, but not limited to, its agreement to comply 
with the Hold-The-Offering-Price Rule, if applicable to the Bonds, as set forth in a selling group agreement 
and the related pricing wires, and (ii) in the event that a third-party distribution agreement was employed in 
connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, the agreement of each broker-dealer that is a party 
to such agreement to comply with the requirements for establishing issue price of the Bonds, including, but not 
limited to, its agreement to comply with the Hold-The-Offering-Price Rule, if applicable to the Bonds, as set 
forth in the third-party distribution agreement and the related pricing wires.  The City further acknowledges 
that the Underwriter shall not be liable for the failure of any dealer who is a member of a selling group, or of 
any broker-dealer that is a party to a third-party distribution agreement, to comply with its corresponding 
agreement to comply with the requirements for establishing issue price of the Bonds, including, but not limited 
to, its agreement to comply with the Hold-The-Offering-Price Rule, if applicable to the Bonds. 

(f) The Underwriter acknowledges that sales of any Bonds to any person that is a related party to 
an underwriter participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public (each such term being used as defined 
below) shall not constitute sales to the public for purposes of this section.  Further, for purposes of this section: 

(i) “public” means any person other than an underwriter or a related party; 

(ii) “underwriter” means (A) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with 
the City (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial 
sale of the Bonds to the public and (B) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly 
or indirectly with a person described in clause (A) to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the 
public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a third-party distribution agreement 
participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public);  

(iii) a purchaser of any of the Bonds is a “related party” to an underwriter if the 
underwriter and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (A) more than 50% common 
ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both entities are corporations 
(including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (B) more than 50% common ownership 
of their capital interests or profit interests, if both entities are partnerships (including direct ownership 
by one partnership of another), or (C) more than 50% common ownership of the value of the 
outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of the partnership, as 
applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including direct ownership 
of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other); and 

(iv) “sale date” means the date of execution of this Bond Purchase Agreement by all 
parties. 

67

Item 6.



4890-5639-3993 -5- REPUBLIC, MO 2022 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

  BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

4. Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement.  The City consents to and ratifies 
the use and distribution by the Underwriter prior to the date upon which the Official Statement is executed and 
available for distribution, of the Preliminary Official Statement dated January ___, 2022 (which, together with the 
cover page and all exhibits, appendices, maps, pictures, diagrams, reports and statements included therein or 
attached thereto and any amendments and supplements that may be authorized for use with respect to the Bonds, 
is herein called the “Preliminary Official Statement”), in connection with the public offering of the Bonds.  The 
City further confirms the authority of the Underwriter to use, and consents to the use of, the final Official 
Statement with respect to the Bonds in connection with the public offering of the Bonds.  The City represents 
and warrants that the Preliminary Official Statement previously furnished to the Underwriter was “deemed final” 
by the City as of its date, and the City hereby reaffirms that the Preliminary Official Statement is deemed final, for 
purposes of Rule 15c2-12(b)(1) (the “Rule”) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, 
except for the omission of certain information permitted to be omitted by the Rule, such as offering prices, interest 
rates, selling commission, aggregate principal amount, principal per maturity, delivery date, ratings, and other terms 
of the Bonds depending on such matters. 

The City hereby agrees to deliver to the Underwriter within seven business days after the date hereof, the 
Official Statement, dated the date hereof, relating to the Bonds (which, together with the cover page and all 
exhibits, appendices, maps, pictures, diagrams, reports and statements included therein or attached thereto and 
any amendments and supplements that may be authorized for use with respect to the Bonds, is herein called the 
“Official Statement”) executed on behalf of the City by a duly authorized officer, in such quantity as the 
Underwriter may request to enable the Underwriter to provide the Official Statement to potential customers and 
to comply with any rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”) and the SEC. 

The Preliminary Official Statement and/or the Official Statement may be delivered in printed and/or 
electronic form to the extent permitted by applicable MSRB rules and as may be agreed to by the City and the 
Underwriter.  If the Official Statement is prepared for distribution in electronic form, the City hereby confirms 
that it does not object to distribution of the Official Statement in electronic form. 

5. City’s Representations and Warranties.  The City hereby agrees with, and makes the following 
representations and warranties to, the Underwriter as of the date hereof and as of the date of Closing: 

(a) Status of the City.  The City is, and will be at Closing, a body corporate and politic and 
political subdivision of the State of Missouri (the “State”) created and existing under the laws of the State 
with the power and authority to (i) operate, repair and maintain its governmental facilities, (ii) execute 
and deliver the Transaction Documents, and (iii) carry out and consummate the transactions 
contemplated by the Transaction Documents. 

(b) Authorization to Enter into Transaction Documents.  The City is authorized by the 
laws of the State, including particularly its Charter, (i) to issue, sell and deliver the Bonds for the purposes 
set forth in the opening paragraphs hereof and in the Bond Ordinance, (ii) to adopt the Bond Ordinance 
and to enter into and perform its obligations under the Transaction Documents, and (iii) to pledge to the 
owners of the Bonds the funds appropriated for the payment thereof by the City and deposited in the 
Debt Service Fund established pursuant to the Bond Ordinance. 

(c) Official Action.  Prior to the Closing, the City shall have duly authorized all necessary 
action to be taken by it for:  (i) the issuance and sale of the Bonds upon the terms set forth herein and in 
the Official Statement, (ii) the approval, execution, delivery and receipt by the City of all of the 
Transaction Documents and/or agreements and documents as may be required to be executed, delivered 
and received by the City in order to carry out, give effect to, and consummate the transactions 
contemplated hereby and by the Official Statement, and (iii) the approval of the use of the Official 
Statement. 

68

Item 6.



4890-5639-3993 -6- REPUBLIC, MO 2022 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

  BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

(d) Documents Legal, Valid and Binding.  This Bond Purchase Agreement constitutes a 
legal, valid and binding obligation of the City enforceable in accordance with its terms.  The Bonds when 
executed, issued, authenticated, delivered and paid for as herein and in the Bond Ordinance provided and 
the Transaction Documents when executed will have been duly authorized and issued and will constitute 
valid and binding obligations of the City enforceable in accordance with their terms (subject to any 
applicable bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or other similar law or laws affecting the 
enforcement of creditors’ rights generally or against municipal corporations such as the City from time 
to time in effect and further subject to the availability of equitable remedies). 

(e) No Conflict or Breach.  The City is not in breach of or default in any material respect 
under (i) any applicable law or administrative regulation of the State or the United States or any 
applicable judgment or decree or (ii) any loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, ordinance, agreement 
or other instrument to which the City is a party or is otherwise subject, and no event has occurred and 
is continuing which, with the passage of time or the giving of notice or both, would constitute an event 
of default under any such instrument; and neither the execution and delivery of any of the Transaction 
Documents, or the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby, nor the fulfillment of or 
compliance with the terms and conditions thereof conflicts with or constitutes a breach of or default 
under (A) any applicable law, administrative regulation, judgment or decree or (B) the terms of any 
loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, ordinance, agreement or other instrument to which the City is 
a party or is otherwise subject; nor shall any such execution, delivery, adoption, fulfillment or 
compliance result in the creation or imposition of any lien, charge or other security interest or 
encumbrance of any nature whatsoever upon any of the property or assets of the City (1) under the 
terms of any such law, administrative regulation, judgment or decree or (2) under the terms of any such 
loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, ordinance, agreement or other instrument, except as provided 
by the Transaction Documents. 

(f) No Litigation.  Except as otherwise set forth in the Official Statement, there is no action, 
suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation at law or in equity or before or by any court, public board or 
body, pending or, to the knowledge of the City, threatened against the City wherein an unfavorable 
decision, ruling or finding would materially adversely affect (i) the transactions contemplated hereby or 
by the Official Statement, including the status of the interest on the Bonds as excludable from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes or as exempt from income taxation in the State, (ii) the validity 
or enforceability in accordance with their respective terms of the Bonds, the Bond Ordinance, this Bond 
Purchase Agreement or any agreement or instrument to which the City is a party, used or contemplated 
for use in the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or by the Official Statement, or 
contesting in any way the completeness or accuracy of the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official 
Statement (nor to the best knowledge of the City, is there any basis therefor), (iii) the existence or powers 
of the City or the titles of its officers to their respective offices, or (iv) the financial condition of the City 
or the operation by the City of its property. 

(g) No Consents or Approvals Required.  The City has received all licenses, permits, or 
other regulatory approvals required (if any) to execute the Transaction Documents and to perform its 
obligations thereunder and the City is not in material default, and no event has occurred which would 
constitute or result in a material default under any such licenses, permits or approvals. 

(h) Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement True and Correct.  The 
descriptions and information contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 
Statement are, as of their respective dates and at the Closing shall be, true and correct and do not, with 
respect to the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement, as of their respective dates 
and at the Closing shall not, contain an untrue statement of a material fact and do not, with respect to 
the Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement, as of their respective dates and at the Closing 

69

Item 6.



4890-5639-3993 -7- REPUBLIC, MO 2022 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

  BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

shall not, omit to state a material fact necessary to make any statement made therein, in light of the 
circumstances under which it was made, not misleading. 

(i) No Default Under Transaction Documents.  The execution and delivery by the City of 
the Transaction Documents and the other documents contemplated hereby and by the Official Statement 
to be executed and delivered by the City, compliance with the provisions thereof, the approval of the use 
of the Official Statement, and the pledge of the funds deposited in the Debt Service Fund established 
pursuant to the Bond Ordinance to the owners of the Bonds do not conflict with or constitute on the 
part of the City a breach of or a default under any existing law, court or administrative regulation, decree, 
order, agreement, ordinance, indenture, mortgage or lease by which the City is or may be bound. No 
event has occurred and is continuing which with the lapse of time or the giving of notice, or both, would 
constitute a breach of or an event of default by the City under the Transaction Documents. 

(j) Application of Bond Proceeds.  The City represents and warrants that the proceeds of 
the Bonds shall be used as provided in the Transaction Documents.  The City shall not take or omit to 
take any action which action or omission shall in any way cause or result in the proceeds from the sale 
of the Bonds being applied in a manner other than as provided in the Transaction Documents and as 
described in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement. 

(k) Securities Laws Cooperation.  The City agrees to reasonably cooperate with the 
Underwriter in any endeavor to qualify the Bonds for offering and sale under the securities or “Blue Sky” 
laws of such jurisdictions of the United States as the Underwriter may request; provided, however, that 
the City shall not be required with respect to the offer or sale of the Bonds, or otherwise, to file written 
consent to suit or to file written consent to service of process in any jurisdiction.  The City consents to 
the use of drafts of the Preliminary Official Statement, the Preliminary Official Statement and drafts of 
the Official Statement prior to the availability of the Official Statement, by the Underwriter in obtaining 
such qualifications, subject to the right of the City to withdraw such consent for cause by written notice 
to the Underwriter.   

(l)  City Certificate.  Any certificate signed by an authorized officer of the City and 
delivered to the Underwriter shall be deemed a representation and warranty by the City to the Underwriter 
as to the statements made therein. 

(m) Financial Statements.  The financial statements of the City included as Appendix B to 
the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement and any other later available unaudited 
financial data of the City furnished to the Underwriter present fairly the financial position of the City as 
of the dates indicated and the results of its operations for the periods specified in all material respects for 
the periods involved except as stated in the notes thereto.  The financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States.  The City has not since December 31, 2020 incurred any material 
liabilities and since such date there has been no material adverse change in the financial position of the 
City or the operation by the City of its property other than as may be set forth in the Preliminary 
Official Statement and the Official Statement. 

Since December 31, 2020, except as described in the Preliminary Official Statement and the 
Official Statement, there has been no material decrease in the City’s fund balances, no increase in short-
term debt or long-term debt of the City and no adverse change, or any development involving a 
prospective adverse change, in or affecting the general affairs, management, properties, financial 
position, or results of operations of the City, which in any such case is material to the City. 

(n) Supplements to Official Statement.  If the Official Statement is supplemented or 
amended pursuant to subsection (o) of this Section 5, at the time of such supplement or amendment 

70

Item 6.



4890-5639-3993 -8- REPUBLIC, MO 2022 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

  BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

thereto and (unless subsequently again supplemented or amended pursuant to such subsection) at all 
times subsequent thereto including the Closing, the information contained in the Official Statement as 
provided in subsection (h) of this Section 5, as so supplemented or amended, shall not contain an 
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements 
therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. 

(o) Subsequent Events.  If between the date of the Official Statement and the Closing any 
event shall occur which might or would cause the information contained in the Official Statement to 
contain an untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact necessary to make the 
statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, the City 
shall notify the Underwriter, and if in the opinion of the Underwriter, such event requires the 
preparation and publication of a supplement or amendment to the Official Statement, the City shall, at 
the expense of the City, supplement or amend the Official Statement in a form and in a manner 
approved by the Underwriter. 

(p) Continuing Disclosure.  The City will undertake, pursuant to the Undertaking, to 
provide certain annual financial information and operating data and notices of the occurrence of certain 
events.  Except as otherwise set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement, the City has not failed during 
the previous five years to comply in all material respects with any previous undertakings in a written 
continuing disclosure agreement or undertaking. 

6. Closing.  Prior to or at 12:00 noon, St. Louis, Missouri time, on February 16, 2022 or at such 
other time or such other date as shall have been mutually agreed upon by the City and the Underwriter 
(the “Closing Time”), the City will deliver, or cause to be delivered, to the Underwriter, the Bonds, in definitive 
form duly executed and authenticated by UMB Bank, N.A., Kansas City, Missouri, as paying agent for the Bonds 
(the “Paying Agent”), together with the other documents hereinafter mentioned; and the Underwriter will accept 
such delivery and pay the purchase price of the Bonds by delivering to the City immediately available funds payable 
to the order of the City (or such other arrangement as shall be mutually agreed upon by the City and the 
Underwriter) in an amount equal to the purchase price set forth in Section 1 (less $__________ withheld by the 
Underwriter for the reimbursement of certain costs of issuance of the Bonds).  Such payment and delivery is 
referred to herein as the “Closing.” 

Payment and delivery of the Bonds as aforesaid shall be made in St. Louis, Missouri, New York, New 
York, or such other place as is mutually agreed to by the City and the Underwriter.  The Bonds will be delivered 
in denominations as set forth in the Bond Ordinance as definitive Bonds in fully-registered form.  The Bonds will 
be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”).  One fully-
registered Bond certificate for each maturity in the principal amount of such maturity (as set forth in Schedule I 
hereto) will be deposited with DTC or delivered to the Paying Agent for “FAST” delivery prior to the Closing 
pursuant to the rules and procedures of DTC. 

It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numbers will be printed on the Bonds, but neither the failure 
to print such numbers on any Bond nor any error in the printing of such numbers shall constitute cause for a 
failure or refusal by the Underwriter to accept delivery of and pay for any Bonds. 

71

Item 6.



4890-5639-3993 -9- REPUBLIC, MO 2022 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

  BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

7. Events Permitting Underwriter to Terminate.  The Underwriter shall have the right to 
cancel its obligation to purchase the Bonds and to terminate this Bond Purchase Agreement, without liability 
to the Underwriter, by written notice to the City if, between the date of this Bond Purchase Agreement and the 
Closing, in the Underwriter’s sole and reasonable judgment, any of the following events shall occur (each, a 
“Termination Event”): 

(a) The market price or marketability of the Bonds, or the ability of the Underwriter to 
enforce contracts for the sale of the Bonds, shall be materially adversely affected by any of the following 
events: 

(i) Legislation shall be enacted or for the first time actively considered for 
enactment by the Congress of the United States or the legislature of the State or shall have 
been favorably reported out of committee of either body or be pending in committee of either 
body, or shall have been recommended to the Congress for passage by the President of the 
United States or a member of the President’s Cabinet, or a decision shall have been rendered 
by a federal court of the United States, a State court or the United States Tax Court, or a ruling, 
ordinance, regulation or temporary regulation, release or announcement shall have been made 
or shall have been proposed to be made by the Treasury Department of the United States, the 
IRS or other federal or State authority with appropriate jurisdiction, with respect to federal or 
State taxation upon interest or other income to be derived by the City pursuant to the 
Transaction Documents, or upon interest on the Bonds or securities of the general character 
of the Bonds; or  

(ii) There shall have occurred (A) an outbreak or escalation of hostilities or the 
declaration by the United States of a national emergency or war or (B) any other calamity or 
crisis in the financial markets of the United States or elsewhere or the escalation of such 
calamity or crisis; or  

(iii) A general suspension of trading on the New York Stock Exchange or other 
major exchange shall be in force, or minimum or maximum prices for trading shall have been 
fixed and be in force, or maximum ranges for prices for securities shall have been required 
and be in force on any such exchange, whether by virtue of determination by that exchange 
or by order of the SEC or any other governmental authority having jurisdiction; or 

(iv) Legislation shall have been enacted by the Congress of the United States or 
shall have been favorably reported out of committee or be pending in committee, or shall have 
been recommended to the Congress for passage by the President of the United States or a 
member of the President’s Cabinet, or a decision by a court of the United States shall be 
rendered, or a ruling, regulation, proposed regulation or statement by or on behalf of the SEC 
or other governmental agency having jurisdiction of the subject matter shall be made, to the 
effect that any obligations of the general character of the Bonds, the Bond Ordinance or any 
other Transaction Document, or any comparable securities of the City are not exempt from 
registration, qualification or other requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended 
(the “Securities Act”), or the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or otherwise, or 
would be in violation of any provisions of the federal securities laws; or 

(v) Except as disclosed in or contemplated by the Official Statement, any 
material adverse change in the affairs of the City shall have occurred; or  

(vi) Any rating on any bonds or other obligations of the City is reduced or 
withdrawn or placed on credit watch with negative outlook by any major credit rating agency; 
or 

72

Item 6.



4890-5639-3993 -10- REPUBLIC, MO 2022 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

  BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

(b) Any fact, event or circumstance shall exist that either makes untrue or incorrect any 
statement or information contained in the Official Statement as then amended or supplemented (other 
than any statement provided by the Underwriter) or is not reflected in the Official Statement as then 
amended or supplemented, but should be reflected therein in order to make the statements and 
information contained therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 
misleading and, in either such event, the City refuses to permit the Official Statement to be 
supplemented or corrected in a form and manner approved by the Underwriter or supply such 
statement or information or if such supplement or correction would, in the opinion of the Underwriter, 
materially adversely affect the market for the Bonds or the ability of the Underwriter to enforce 
contracts for the sale of the Bonds at the contemplated offering prices; or 

(c) A general banking moratorium shall have been declared by federal, State or State of 
New York authorities and be in force; or 

(d) A material disruption in securities settlement, payment or clearance services affecting 
the Bonds shall have occurred; or  

(e) Other action or events shall have occurred or transpired, any of which has the purpose 
or effect, directly or indirectly, of materially adversely affecting the federal income tax consequences 
of any of the transactions contemplated in connection herewith, or that securities of the general 
character of the Bonds shall not be exempt from registration under the Securities Act; or 

(f) There shall have occurred since December 31, 2020, any material adverse change in 
the affairs of the City from that reflected in the financial statements of the City provided to the 
Underwriter in connection with the Bonds, not otherwise disclosed to the Underwriter or in the Official 
Statement; or 

(g) Any representation of the City contained in any Transaction Document shall prove 
to be or to have been false in any material respect; or 

(h) Litigation or an administrative proceeding or investigation shall be pending or 
threatened affecting, contesting, questioning or seeking to restrain or enjoin (i) the issuance or delivery 
of any of the Bonds or the payment, collection or application of the proceeds of the Bonds or of other 
moneys or securities pledged or to be pledged under the Transaction Documents, (ii) the validity of 
the Bonds, (iii) the validity of any of the Transaction Documents or any proceedings taken by the City 
with respect to any of the foregoing, (iv) the City’s creation, organization or existence or the titles to 
office of any members of the City Council of the City or officers, or (v) the legal power or authority 
of the City to enter into and engage in any of the transactions contemplated by the Transaction 
Documents. 

Upon the occurrence of a Termination Event and the termination of this Bond Purchase Agreement 
by the Underwriter, all obligations of the City and the Underwriter under this Bond Purchase Agreement shall 
terminate, without further liability, except that the City and the Underwriter shall pay their respective expenses 
as set forth in Section 10 of this Bond Purchase Agreement. 

73

Item 6.



4890-5639-3993 -11- REPUBLIC, MO 2022 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

  BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

8. Conditions to Closing.  The obligations hereunder of each party hereto shall be subject to the 
performance by the other party of its respective obligations to be performed hereunder at and prior to Closing, to 
the accuracy in all material respects of the representations and warranties herein of the other party as of the date 
hereof and as of the Closing Time, and to the following conditions, including the delivery by the appropriate party 
hereto or other entities of such documents as are enumerated herein: 

(a) At the Closing Time, (i) the Transaction Documents shall have been authorized, 
executed and delivered, and shall not have been amended, modified or supplemented except as may have 
been agreed to in writing by the Underwriter and the City, the Closing in all events, however, to be 
deemed such approval, (ii) the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds shall have been deposited and applied 
as described in the Bond Ordinance and the Official Statement, (iii) the City shall have duly adopted and 
there shall be in full force and effect such ordinances as, in the opinion of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., St. Louis, 
Missouri (“Bond Counsel”), shall be necessary in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, 
and (iv) the City shall have delivered to the Underwriter the Official Statement within the time period 
and in a format that complies with the Rule and MSRB rules pursuant to Section 4 of this Bond Purchase 
Agreement.   

(b) At or prior to the Closing Time, the Underwriter shall have received counterparts, 
copies or certified copies (as appropriate) of the following documents in form and substance satisfactory 
to Bond Counsel and the Underwriter: 

(i) The approving opinion of Bond Counsel, dated the date of Closing, addressed 
to the City and the Underwriter, relating to the due authorization, execution and delivery of the 
Bonds and the supplemental and disclosure opinions of Bond Counsel, in forms acceptable to 
the City and the Underwriter. 

(ii) A certificate of the City, dated the date of Closing, signed by authorized 
officials of the City, to the effect that (A) all representations and warranties of the City contained 
in this Bond Purchase Agreement are true and correct in all material respects on and as of the 
date of Closing with the same effect as if made on the date of Closing, (B) the information in 
the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement is accurate and not materially 
deficient and neither contains an untrue statement of a material fact nor omits to state a material 
fact necessary to make any statement made therein, in light of the circumstances under which it 
was made, not misleading, (C) the City has complied with all of the agreements and satisfied all 
of the conditions on its part to be performed or satisfied at or prior to the Closing Time, (D) no 
event affecting the City has occurred since the date of the Official Statement which either makes 
untrue or incorrect in any material respect as of the date of Closing any statement or information 
contained in the Official Statement or is not reflected in the Official Statement but should be 
reflected therein in order to make the statements and information therein not misleading in any 
material respect, and (E) there is no action, suit, proceeding or investigation before or by any 
court or public board or body pending or threatened against the City to restrain or enjoin the 
issuance, execution or delivery of the Bonds or in any manner questioning the proceedings or 
authority for the issuance of the Bonds or affecting directly or indirectly the validity of the Bonds 
or of any provisions made or authorized for their payment or contesting the existence of the 
City or the title of any of its officers to their respective offices. 

(iii) The Official Statement authorized, approved and executed on behalf of the 
City by a duly authorized official thereof. 

(iv) The Bond Ordinance, duly adopted by the City Council of the City. 

(v) The Federal Tax Certificate, duly executed by the City. 

74

Item 6.



4890-5639-3993 -12- REPUBLIC, MO 2022 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

  BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

(vi) The Undertaking, duly executed by the City. 

(vii) A letter from S&P Global Ratings, a division of S&P Global, Inc., assigning 
a rating of “____” to the Bonds based on the creditworthiness of the City. 

(viii) A receipt of the City for the purchase price of the Bonds. 

(ix) An Information Return for Tax-Exempt Governmental Obligations (IRS 
Form 8038-G), executed by a duly authorized officer of the City.  

(x) A copy of the DTC Blanket Letter of Representations. 

(xi) The opinion of the Underwriter’s counsel, dated the date of Closing, addressed 
to the Underwriter, in form acceptable to the Underwriter. 

(xii) Other certificates listed on a closing agenda to be approved by Bond Counsel 
and the Underwriter, including any certificates or representations of the City required in order 
for Bond Counsel to deliver the opinions referred to in Section 8(b)(i) of this Bond Purchase 
Agreement. 

(xiii) Such additional legal opinions, certificates, proceedings, instruments and other 
documents as Bond Counsel or the Underwriter may reasonably request to evidence compliance 
with all legal requirements, the truth and accuracy, as of the Closing, of the representations herein 
and the due performance or satisfaction of all agreements then to be performed and all 
conditions then to be satisfied. 

The documents to be delivered to the Underwriter pursuant to this Bond Purchase Agreement shall be 
deemed to be in compliance with the conditions of this Bond Purchase Agreement if, but only if, in the reasonable 
judgment of the Underwriter, they are satisfactory in form and substance.  No condition hereof shall be deemed 
to have been waived by the Underwriter, unless expressed specifically in a writing signed by the Underwriter. 

Unless performance is waived by the party for whose benefit a condition or obligation is intended, if any 
person shall be unable to satisfy the above conditions to the obligations of any party to this Bond Purchase 
Agreement, or if the obligations hereunder of any party shall be terminated for any reason permitted by this Bond 
Purchase Agreement and unless otherwise waived, this Bond Purchase Agreement shall terminate and neither the 
Underwriter nor the City shall be under further obligation hereunder; except that the respective obligations of the 
City and the Underwriter, as provided in Section 10 hereof, shall continue in full force and effect. 

9. Survival of Representations, Warranties and Agreements.  All representations, warranties 
and agreements of the City shall remain operative and in full force and effect, regardless of any investigations 
made by or on behalf of any other party and shall survive the Closing.  The obligations of the City and the 
Underwriter under Section 10 hereof shall survive any termination of this Bond Purchase Agreement. 

10. Expenses.  Whether or not the Bonds are sold to the Underwriter, the Underwriter shall be 
under no obligation to pay any expenses incident to the performance of the City’s obligations hereunder.  If 
the Bonds are delivered by the City to the Underwriter, the City shall pay, from the proceeds of the Bonds or 
from other funds of the City, the following expenses:  (a) the cost of preparing, duplicating or printing, mailing 
and delivering the Transaction Documents, including the cost of printing copies of the Preliminary Official 
Statement and the Official Statement and any amendment or supplement of either; (c) the cost of preparation 
and printing of the definitive Bonds; (c) the fees and expenses of the City, the Paying Agent, Bond Counsel, 
the Underwriter’s counsel, and any other experts or consultants retained by the City; (d) the charges of any 
rating agency with respect to the Bonds; (e) the fees and expenses of the City’s accountants, if any, in connection 

75

Item 6.



4890-5639-3993 -13- REPUBLIC, MO 2022 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

  BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

with the issuance of the Bonds; and (f) all other fees and expenses reasonably incurred in connection with the 
preparation of the Transaction Documents and/or the initial offering and sale of the Bonds except those to be 
paid by the Underwriter pursuant to the last paragraph of this Section 10.  Unless the City and the Underwriter 
otherwise agree, the City shall pay from the proceeds of the Bonds or reimburse the Underwriter from its 
available funds (in either case, if permitted by applicable law) for all incidental costs (excluding entertainment 
expenses) paid by the Underwriter on behalf of the City in connection with the marketing, issuance and delivery 
of the Bonds, if the Bonds are sold to the Underwriter by the City. 

If the Bonds are sold to the Underwriter by the City, the City shall pay out of the proceeds of the Bonds 
the discount of the Underwriter or the purchase price paid for the Bonds shall reflect such discount. 

Except as otherwise provided in this Section 10, the Underwriter shall pay the cost, if any, of qualifying 
the Bonds for sale in the various states chosen by the Underwriter, all advertising expenses in connection with the 
public offering of the Bonds and all other expenses incurred by it in connection with its public offering and 
distribution of the Bonds, not described above. 

11. Amendments to Official Statement.  If, after the date of this Bond Purchase Agreement and 
until the earlier of (a) ninety (90) days after the “end of the underwriting period” (as defined in the Rule) or (b) the 
time when the Official Statement is available to any person from a nationally recognized municipal securities 
information repository, but in no case less than twenty-five (25) days following the end of the underwriting period, 
an event relating to or affecting the City shall occur, or come to the attention of the City, the City shall promptly 
notify the Underwriter and, if as a result of such event, it is necessary, in the opinion of Bond Counsel or the 
Underwriter, to amend or supplement the Official Statement in order to make the Official Statement not 
misleading in light of the circumstances then existing, the City will forthwith prepare and furnish to the 
Underwriter a reasonable number of copies of an amendment of or supplement to the Official Statement (in form 
and substance satisfactory to the Underwriter) which will amend or supplement the Official Statement so that it 
will not contain an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make 
the statements made therein not misleading.  The expenses of preparing such amendment or supplement shall be 
borne by the City.  Thereafter, all references to and representations regarding the Official Statement contained 
herein shall refer to or regard the Official Statement as so amended or supplemented.  For the purpose of this 
Section, the City will furnish to the Underwriter such information with respect to the City as the Underwriter may 
from time to time reasonably request.  If notification is given by the City, or such information comes to the 
attention of the Underwriter, after the date of Closing, the City shall furnish, or cause to be furnished, such 
additional legal opinions, certificates, instruments and other documents as the Underwriter may reasonably deem 
necessary to evidence the truth and accuracy of any such supplement or amendment to the Official Statement.   

12. Third-Party Beneficiaries.  The City agrees that the Underwriter is and shall be a third-party 
beneficiary of any and all representations and warranties made by the City in the Transaction Documents, to the 
same effect as if the City had made such representations and warranties to the Underwriter in this Bond Purchase 
Agreement. 

13. Notices.  Any notice or other communication to be given to the City under this Bond Purchase 
Agreement may be given by delivering the same in writing at its address set forth above, and any notice or other 
communication to be given to the Underwriter under this Bond Purchase Agreement may be given by delivering 
the same in writing to the Underwriter at the following address: 

Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated 
One Financial Plaza 
501 North Broadway, 10th Floor 
St. Louis, Missouri  63102 
Attention:  Public Finance Department 

76

Item 6.



4890-5639-3993 -14- REPUBLIC, MO 2022 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

  BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

14. Successors.  This Bond Purchase Agreement is made for the benefit of the City and the 
Underwriter (including the successors or assigns of the Underwriter) and no other person, including any purchaser 
of the Bonds, shall acquire or have any rights hereunder or by virtue hereof. 

15. Governing Law.  This Bond Purchase Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State. 

16. Effectiveness.  This Bond Purchase Agreement shall become effective upon your acceptance 
hereof. 

17. Counterparts.  This Bond Purchase Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
each of which so executed and delivered shall constitute an original and all together shall constitute but one and 
the same instrument.  

18. Captions.  The captions or headings in this Bond Purchase Agreement are for convenience only 
and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provision or section of this Bond Purchase 
Agreement. 

19. Electronic Transactions.  The transaction described herein may be conducted and related 
documents may be sent, received or stored by electronic means.  Copies, telecopies, facsimiles, electronic files and 
other reproductions of original executed documents will be deemed to be authentic and valid counterparts of such 
original documents for all purposes, including the filing of any claim, action or suit in the appropriate court of 
law. 

20. Anti-Discrimination Against Israel Act.  Pursuant to Section 34.600 of the Revised Statutes 
of Missouri, as amended, the Underwriter hereby certifies to the City that it is not currently engaged in and shall 
not, for the duration of this Bond Purchase Agreement, engage in a boycott of goods or services from the State 
of Israel, companies doing business in or with Israel or authorized by, licensed by, or organized under the laws 
of the State of Israel, or persons or entities doing business in the State of Israel. 

 
(Remainder of this page intentionally left blank) 

 

77

Item 6.



 

4890-5639-3993 S-1 REPUBLIC, MO 2022 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

  BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

Very truly yours, 
 
STIFEL, NICOLAUS & COMPANY, 
INCORPORATED 
 
 
By:  
Name: Martin Ghafoori 
Title: Managing Director 

 
 
 
Accepted and agreed to as of 
the date first above written: 
 
CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 
 
 
 
By:  
Name: Matt Russell 
Title: Mayor 
 
 
 
 

78

Item 6.



 

4890-5639-3993 Sch. I REPUBLIC, MO 2022 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

  BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

SCHEDULE I 
TO BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 
 

CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 
Special Obligation Bonds 

Series 2022 
 

10% TEST APPLIES 
(MATURITIES FOR WHICH 10% SOLD AS OF THE DATE OF THIS  

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT) 
 

Year 
(May 1) 

Principal 
Amount 

Interest 
Rate Price 

2023    
2024    
2025    
2026    
2027    
2028    
2029    
2030    
2031    
2032    
2033    
2034    
2035    
2036    
2037    
2038    
2039    
2040    
2041    

    
2044    

    
2047    

 
 

HOLD-THE-OFFERING-PRICE RULE APPLIES 
(MATURITIES FOR WHICH 10% NOT SOLD AS OF THE DATE OF THIS  

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT) 
 
 

None 

79

Item 6.



 

4890-5639-3993 A-1 REPUBLIC, MO 2022 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

  BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

EXHIBIT A 
TO BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 
FORM OF UNDERWRITER’S RECEIPT FOR BONDS AND CLOSING CERTIFICATE 

 
$__________ 

CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 
SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

SERIES 2022 
 

The undersigned, on behalf of Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated (the “Original Purchaser”), 
as the original purchaser of the above-described bonds (the “Bonds”), being issued on the date of this 
Certificate by the City of Republic, Missouri (the “Issuer”), certifies and represents as follows: 

1. Bond Purchase Agreement.  The Original Purchaser and the Issuer have entered into a 
Bond Purchase Agreement (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”), dated February 1, 2022 (the “Sale Date”), 
providing for the purchase of the Bonds by the Original Purchaser from the Issuer. 

2. Compliance with Bond Purchase Agreement.  We acknowledge that we have timely 
received in satisfactory form and manner all proceedings, certificates, opinions, letters and other documents 
required to be submitted to us pursuant to the Bond Purchase Agreement prior to or on the date of the delivery 
of and payment for the Bonds (except to the extent we have waived or consented to modification of certain 
provisions thereof), and that the Issuer has in all respects complied with and satisfied all of its obligations to us 
which are required under said Bond Purchase Agreement to be complied with and satisfied on or before the 
date hereof. 

3. Receipt for Bonds.  We further acknowledge receipt on this date of the Bonds, consisting of 
fully-registered Bonds numbered from R-1 consecutively upward in authorized denominations of $5,000 or 
integral multiples thereof.  Each of said Bonds has been signed by the manual or facsimile signature of the 
Mayor of the Issuer and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the City Clerk of the Issuer, with the 
Issuer’s official seal affixed thereon, and has been authenticated by the manual signature of an authorized 
signatory of the Paying Agent. 

4. Issue Price.  For purposes of this section the following definitions apply: 

“Effective Time” means the time on the Sale Date that the Bond Purchase Agreement to 
purchase the Bonds became enforceable.  

“Initial Offering Price” means the price listed in Schedule A for each Maturity.   

“Maturity” means Bonds with the same credit and payment terms; Bonds with different 
maturity dates, or Bonds with the same maturity date but different stated interest rates, are treated as 
separate maturities.  

“Public” means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association, 
company, or corporation) other than an Underwriting Firm or a related party to an Underwriting Firm.  
An Underwriting Firm and a person are related if it and the person are subject, directly or indirectly, 
to (a) more than 50% common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both 
entities are corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (b) more than 
50% common ownership of their capital interests or profit interests, if both entities are partnerships 
(including direct ownership by one partnership of another) or (c) more than 50% common ownership 
of the value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of 

80

Item 6.



 

4890-5639-3993 A-2 REPUBLIC, MO 2022 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

  BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership 
(including direct ownership of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other).  

“Undersold Maturity” or “Undersold Maturities” means any Maturity for which less than 10% 
of the principal amount of Bonds of that Maturity were sold as of the Effective Time. 

“Underwriting Firm” means (a) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the 
Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale 
of the Bonds to the Public and (b) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or 
indirectly with a person described in clause (a) of this definition to participate in the initial sale of the 
Bonds to the Public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution agreement 
participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public).   

The Original Purchaser represents as follows: 

(i) Attached as Attachment A is a copy of the pricing wire or similar communication 
used to communicate the Initial Offering Price of each Maturity to the Public. 

(ii) As of the Effective Time all the Bonds were the subject of an initial offering to the 
Public.  

(iii) As of the Effective Time none of the Bonds were sold to any person at a price higher 
than the Initial Offering Price for that Maturity.  

(iv) As of the Effective Time there were no Undersold Maturities. 

Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein have the meaning given such terms in the Bond 
Purchase Agreement. 

We express no view regarding the legal sufficiency of any computations or the correctness of any legal 
interpretation made by Gilmore & Bell, P.C., as bond counsel. 

Nothing herein represents our interpretation of any laws or regulations under the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended. 

This Certificate may be executed in counterparts, each of which so executed and delivered shall 
constitute an original and all together shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

DATED:  February ___, 2022 
 

STIFEL, NICOLAUS & COMPANY, INCORPORATED 
 
 
By:  

 Managing Director 
 
 
 

By:  
 Director – Municipal Syndicate 

 

81

Item 6.



 

4890-5639-3993 A-3 REPUBLIC, MO 2022 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

  BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

SCHEDULE A 
 
 

CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 
SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

SERIES 2022 
 

Year 
(May 1) 

Principal 
Amount 

Interest 
Rate Price 

2023    
2024    
2025    
2026    
2027    
2028    
2029    
2030    
2031    
2032    
2033    
2034    
2035    
2036    
2037    
2038    
2039    
2040    
2041    

    
2044    

    
2047    

 
 
 

82

Item 6.



 

4890-5639-3993 A-4 REPUBLIC, MO 2022 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

  BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

Initial Offering Price Documentation  
 

[Attach Pricing Wire or Other Offering Price Documentation] 
 
 
 

83

Item 6.



GILMORE & BELL, P.C. 

DRAFT – DECEMBER 2, 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

 

 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

 

Dated as of February 1, 2022 

 

__________________________________________ 

 

 

 

by the 

 

 

CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

 

$[*Principal Amount*]  

Special Obligation Bonds 

Series 2022 

____________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

84

Item 6.



 

 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

 

 

 This CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING dated as of February 1, 2022 

(this “Undertaking”), is executed and delivered by the CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI (the 

“Issuer”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

 1. This Undertaking is executed and delivered by the Issuer in connection with the issuance 

by the Issuer of $[*Principal Amount*] Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2022 (the “Bonds”), pursuant 

to an ordinance adopted by the governing body of the Issuer on February 1, 2022 (the “Ordinance”). 

 

 2. The Issuer is entering into this Undertaking for the benefit of the Beneficial Owners of the 

Bonds and in order to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying with Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities 

and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Rule”).  The Issuer is the only 

“obligated person” (as defined by the Rule) with responsibility for continuing disclosure hereunder. 

 

 The Issuer covenants and agrees as follows: 

 

 Section 1. Definitions.  In addition to the definitions set forth in the Ordinance, which apply 

to any capitalized term used in this Undertaking unless otherwise defined in this Section, the following 

capitalized terms shall have the following meanings: 

 

 “Annual Report” means any Annual Report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and as described 

in, Section 2. 

 

 “Beneficial Owner” means any registered owner of any Bonds and any person which (a) has the 

power, directly or indirectly, to vote or consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds 

(including persons holding Bonds through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated 

as the owner of any Bonds for federal income tax purposes. 

 

 “Business Day” means a day other than (a) a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, (b) a day on which 

banks located in any city in which the principal office or designated payment office of the paying agent or 

the Dissemination Agent is located are required or authorized by law to remain closed or (c) a day on which 

the Securities Depository or the New York Stock Exchange is closed. 

 

 “Dissemination Agent” means any entity designated in writing by the Issuer to serve as 

dissemination agent pursuant to this Undertaking and which has filed with the Issuer a written acceptance 

of such designation.   

 

“EMMA” means the Electronic Municipal Market Access system for municipal securities 

disclosures established and maintained by the MSRB, which can be accessed at www.emma.msrb.org. 

 

“Financial Obligation” means a (a) debt obligation; (b) derivative instrument entered into in 

connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation; 

or (c) guarantee of (a) or (b) in this definition; provided, however, the term Financial Obligation shall not 

include municipal securities as to which a final official statement has been provided to the MSRB consistent 

with the Rule. 

85

Item 6.



 

 -2- 

 “Fiscal Year” means the 12-month period beginning on January 1 and ending on December 31 

or any other 12-month period selected by the Issuer as its Fiscal Year for financial reporting purposes. 

 

 “Material Events” means any of the events listed in Section 3. 

 

 “MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, or any successor repository 

designated as such by the Securities and Exchange Commission in accordance with the Rule. 

 

 “Participating Underwriter” means any of the original underwriter(s) of the Bonds required to 

comply with the Rule in connection with the offering of the Bonds. 

 

 Section 2. Provision of Annual Reports. 

 

 (a) The Issuer shall, not later than 180 days after the end of the Issuer’s Fiscal Year, 

commencing with the Fiscal Year ending December 31, 2021, file with the MSRB, through 

EMMA, the following financial information and operating data (the “Annual Report”): 

 

 (1) The audited financial statements of the Issuer for the prior Fiscal Year, prepared in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.  If 

audited financial statements are not available by the time the Annual Report is 

required to be provided pursuant to this Section, the Annual Report shall contain 

unaudited financial statements in a format similar to the financial statements 

contained in the final Official Statement relating to the Bonds, and the audited 

financial statements shall be provided in the same manner as the Annual Report 

promptly after they become available.   

 

 (2) Updates as of the end of the Fiscal Year of certain financial information and 

operating data contained in the final Official Statement related to the Bonds, as 

described in Exhibit A, in substantially the same format contained in the final 

Official Statement with such adjustments to formatting or presentation determined 

to be reasonable by the Issuer. 

 

 Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other 

documents, including official statements of debt issues with respect to which the Issuer is 

an “obligated person” (as defined by the Rule), which have been provided to the MSRB 

and are available through EMMA or the Securities and Exchange Commission.  If the 

document included by reference is a final official statement, it must be available from the 

MSRB on EMMA.  The Issuer shall clearly identify each such other document so included 

by reference. 

 

 In each case, the Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate 

documents comprising a package and may cross-reference other information as provided 

in this Section; provided that the audited financial statements of the Issuer may be 

submitted separately from the balance of the Annual Report and later than the date required 

above for the filing of the Annual Report if they are not available by that date.  If the 

Issuer’s Fiscal Year changes, it shall give notice of such change in the same manner as for 

a Material Event under Section 3. 

 

86

Item 6.



 

 -3- 

(b) The Annual Report shall be filed with the MSRB in such manner and format as is 

prescribed by the MSRB. 

 

 Section 3. Reporting of Material Events.  Not later than 10 Business Days after the 

occurrence of any of the following events, the Issuer shall give, or cause to be given, to the MSRB, through 

EMMA, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds (“Material 

Events”): 

 

 (a) principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

 (b) non-payment related defaults, if material; 

 (c) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

 (d) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

 (e) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

 (f) adverse tax opinions; the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final 

determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other 

material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds or other 

material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; 

 (g) modifications to rights of bondholders, if material; 

 (h) bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 

 (i) defeasances; 

 (j) release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if material; 

 (k) rating changes; 

 (l) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Issuer (which shall be deemed 

to occur as provided in the Rule); 

 (m) the consummation of a merger, consolidation or acquisition involving the Issuer or the sale 

of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, other than in the ordinary course of 

business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the 

termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to 

its terms, if material; 

 (n) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of the trustee, if 

material; 

 (o) incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, if material, or agreement to covenants, 

events of default, remedies, priority rights or other similar terms of a Financial Obligation 

of the Issuer, any of which affect security holders, if material; and 

 (p) default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms or other similar 

events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of which reflect financial 

difficulties. 

 

 If the Issuer has not submitted the Annual Report to the MSRB by the date required in Section 2(a), 

the Issuer shall send a notice to the MSRB of the failure of the Issuer to file on a timely basis the Annual 

Report, which notice shall be given by the Issuer in accordance with this Section 3. 

 Section 4. Termination of Reporting Obligation.  The Issuer’s obligations under this 

Undertaking shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all of the 

Bonds.  If the Issuer’s obligations under this Undertaking are assumed in full by some other entity, such 

entity shall be responsible for compliance with this Undertaking in the same manner as if it were the Issuer, 

and the Issuer shall have no further responsibility hereunder.  If such assumption occurs prior to the final 

maturity of the Bonds, the Issuer shall give notice of such assumption in the same manner as for a Material 

Event under Section 3. 

 

87

Item 6.



 

 -4- 

 Section 5. Dissemination Agents.  The Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or engage a 

Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Undertaking and may discharge 

any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent.  Any 

Dissemination Agent may resign as dissemination agent hereunder at any time upon 30 days prior written 

notice to the Issuer.  The Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible in any manner for the content of any 

notice or report (including without limitation the Annual Report) prepared by the Issuer pursuant to this 

Undertaking. 

 

 Section 6. Amendment; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Undertaking, 

the Issuer may amend this Undertaking and any provision of this Undertaking may be waived, provided 

that Bond Counsel or other counsel experienced in federal securities law matters provides the Issuer with 

its written opinion that the undertaking of the Issuer contained herein, as so amended or after giving effect 

to such waiver, is in compliance with the Rule and all current amendments thereto and interpretations 

thereof that are applicable to this Undertaking. 

 

 In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Undertaking, the Issuer shall 

describe such amendment or waiver in the next Annual Report, and shall include, as applicable, a narrative 

explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or, in the case of a change 

of accounting principles, on the presentation) of financial information or operating data being presented by 

the Issuer.  In addition, if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing 

financial statements, (a) notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as for a Material Event 

under Section 3, and (b) the Annual Report for the year in which the change is made should present a 

comparison (in narrative form and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) between the financial statements 

as prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former 

accounting principles. 

 

 Section 7. Additional Information.  Nothing in this Undertaking shall be deemed to prevent 

the Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this 

Undertaking or any other means of communication, or including any other information in any Annual 

Report or notice of occurrence of a Material Event, in addition to that which is required by this Undertaking.  

If the Issuer chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Material 

Event, in addition to that which is specifically required by this Undertaking, the Issuer shall have no 

obligation under this Undertaking to update such information or include it in any future Annual Report or 

notice of occurrence of a Material Event. 

 

 Section 8. Default.  If the Issuer fails to comply with any provision of this Undertaking, any 

Participating Underwriter or any Beneficial Owner of the Bonds may take such actions as may be necessary 

and appropriate, including seeking mandamus or specific performance by court order, to cause the Issuer 

to comply with its obligations under this Undertaking.  A default under this Undertaking shall not be deemed 

an event of default under the Ordinance or the Bonds, and the sole remedy under this Undertaking if there 

is any failure of the Issuer to comply with this Undertaking shall be an action to compel performance. 

 

 Section 9. Beneficiaries.  This Undertaking shall inure solely to the benefit of the Issuer, the 

Participating Underwriter and the Beneficial Owners from time to time of the Bonds and shall create no 

rights in any other person or entity. 

 

 Section 10. Severability.  If any provision in this Undertaking, the Ordinance or the Bonds 

shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions 

of this Undertaking, the Ordinance and the Bonds shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. 

88

Item 6.



 

 -5- 

 Section 11. Electronic Transactions.  The arrangement described herein may be conducted 

and related documents may be sent, received or stored by electronic means.  Copies, telecopies, facsimiles, 

electronic files and other reproductions of original documents shall be deemed to be authentic and valid 

counterparts of such original documents for all purposes, including the filing of any claim, action or suit in 

the appropriate court of law. 

 

 Section 12. Governing Law.  This Undertaking shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Missouri. 

 

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

89

Item 6.



 

 S-1 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Undertaking to be executed as of the day 

and year first above written. 

 

 CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 

 

 

 

 By:   ___________________________________ 

  Matt Russell, Mayor 

 

90

Item 6.



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

TO CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

 

 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND OPERATING DATA TO BE 

INCLUDED IN ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 

 The financial information and operating data contained in the tables in the following-described 

sections of Appendix A to the final Official Statement relating to the Bonds: 

 

(a) “FINANCIAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE CITY – General Fund 

Sources;”  

  

(b) “TAX INFORMATION – Property Valuations – Current Assessed Valuation;” 
 

(c) “TAX INFORMATION – Property Valuations – History of Property Valuations;” 

 

(d) “TAX INFORMATION – Major Property Taxpayers;”  
 

(e) “TAX INFORMATION – Sales Tax Information;” 

 

(f) “THE SEWERAGE SYSTEM – Billing and Collections;” and 

 

(g) “THE SEWERAGE SYSTEM – Summary of Operating Results” (but only to the 

extent not otherwise provided under Section 2(a)(1) above). 

 

   

     

91

Item 6.



GILMORE & BELL, P.C. 

DRAFT – JANUARY 12, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

 

 

FEDERAL TAX CERTIFICATE 

 

Dated February ___, 2022 

 

_________________________________________ 

 

 

 

OF THE  

 

CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

 

$[*Principal Amount*] 

Special Obligation Bonds 

Series 2022 
 

__________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

92

Item 6.



 

(i) 

FEDERAL TAX CERTIFICATE 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

Page 

 

 Parties and Recitals ........................................................................................................... 1 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.1. Definitions of Words and Terms ...................................................................................... 1 

ARTICLE II 

GENERAL REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS 

Section 2.1. Representations and Covenants of the Issuer ................................................................... 6 
Section 2.2. Survival of Representations and Covenants ..................................................................... 9 

ARTICLE III 

ARBITRAGE CERTIFICATIONS AND COVENANTS 

Section 3.1. General ............................................................................................................................. 9 
Section 3.2. Reasonable Expectations .................................................................................................. 9 
Section 3.3. Purposes of the Financing................................................................................................. 9 
Section 3.4. Funds and Accounts ......................................................................................................... 9 
Section 3.5. Amount and Use of Bond Proceeds .................................................................................. 9 
Section 3.6. Multipurpose Issue ......................................................................................................... 10 
Section 3.7. No Refunding ................................................................................................................. 10 
Section 3.8. Project Completion ......................................................................................................... 10 
Section 3.9. Sinking Funds ................................................................................................................. 10 
Section 3.10. Reserve, Replacement and Pledged Funds ..................................................................... 10 
Section 3.11. Purpose Investment Yield ............................................................................................... 10 
Section 3.12. Issue Price and Yield on the Bonds ................................................................................ 11 
Section 3.13. Miscellaneous Arbitrage Matters .................................................................................... 11 
Section 3.14. Conclusion ...................................................................................................................... 11 

ARTICLE IV 

POST-ISSUANCE TAX REQUIREMENTS, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

Section 4.1. General ........................................................................................................................... 11 
Section 4.2. Record Keeping, Use of Bond Proceeds and Use of Financed Facility ......................... 12 
Section 4.3. Temporary Periods/Yield Restriction ............................................................................. 12 
Section 4.4. Procedures for Establishing Fair Market Value .............................................................. 13 
Section 4.5. Certain Gross Proceeds Exempt from the Rebate Requirement ..................................... 15 
Section 4.6. Computation and Payment of Arbitrage Rebate and Yield Reduction 

Amounts...................................................................................................................... 17 
Section 4.7. Successor Rebate Analyst ............................................................................................... 18 

93

Item 6.



 

(ii) 

Section 4.8. Filing Requirements ....................................................................................................... 18 
Section 4.9. Survival after Defeasance ............................................................................................... 18 

ARTICLE V 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Section 5.1. Term of Tax Certificate .................................................................................................. 18 
Section 5.2. Amendments ................................................................................................................... 18 
Section 5.3. Opinion of Bond Counsel ............................................................................................... 18 
Section 5.4. Reliance .......................................................................................................................... 18 
Section 5.5. Severability ..................................................................................................................... 19 
Section 5.6. Benefit of Agreement ..................................................................................................... 19 
Section 5.7. Default, Breach and Enforcement .................................................................................. 19 
Section 5.8. Execution in Counterparts .............................................................................................. 19 
Section 5.9. Governing Law ............................................................................................................... 19 
Section 5.10. Electronic Transactions .................................................................................................. 19 
 

Signatures ..................................................................................................................... S-1 

 

Exhibit A – Debt Service Schedule and Proof of Bond Yield 

Exhibit B – IRS Form 8038-G 

Exhibit C – Copy of Resolution of Official Intent 

Exhibit D – Description of Property Comprising the Project and Financed Facility 

Exhibit E – Sample Annual Compliance Checklist 

Exhibit F – Sample Final Written Allocation 

Exhibit G – Compliance Procedure 

 

* * * 

 

94

Item 6.



 

 

FEDERAL TAX CERTIFICATE 

 

 

THIS FEDERAL TAX CERTIFICATE (this “Tax Certificate”) is executed February ___, 2022, 

by the CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, a political subdivision organized and existing under the laws 

of the State of Missouri (the “Issuer”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

1. This Tax Certificate is being executed and delivered in connection with the issuance by the 

Issuer of not to exceed $[*Principal Amount*] principal amount of Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2022 

(the “Bonds”), under an ordinance adopted on February ___, 2022 (the “Ordinance”), for the purposes 

described in this Tax Certificate and in the Ordinance. 

 

2. The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and the applicable 

Regulations and rulings issued by the U.S. Treasury Department (collectively, the “Regulations”), impose 

certain limitations on the uses and investment of the Bond proceeds and of certain other money relating to 

the Bonds and set forth the conditions under which the interest on the Bonds will be excluded from gross 

income for federal income tax purposes. 

 

3. The Issuer is executing this Tax Certificate to set forth certain facts, covenants, 

representations, and expectations relating to the use of Bond proceeds and the property financed or 

refinanced with those proceeds and the investment of the Bond proceeds and of certain other related money, 

in order to establish and maintain the exclusion of the interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal 

income tax purposes, and to provide guidance for complying with the arbitrage rebate and yield reduction 

amounts provisions of Code § 148(f). 

 

4. The Issuer adopted a Tax and Disclosure Compliance Procedure on January 3, 2017, as it 

may from time to time be amended (the “Compliance Procedure”), for the purpose of setting out general 

procedures for the Issuer to continuously monitor and comply with the federal income tax requirements set 

out in the Code and the Regulations.  

 

5. This Tax Certificate is entered into as required by the Compliance Procedure to set out 

specific tax compliance procedures applicable to the Bonds. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Issuer represents, covenants and agrees as follows: 

 

 

ARTICLE I 

 

DEFINITIONS 

 

Section 1.1. Definitions of Words and Terms.  Except as otherwise provided in this Tax 

Certificate or unless the context otherwise requires, capitalized words and terms used in this Tax Certificate 

have the same meanings as set forth in the Ordinance, and certain other words and phrases have the 

meanings assigned in Code §§ 103, 141-150 and the Regulations.  The following words and terms used in 

this Tax Certificate have the following meanings: 

  

95

Item 6.



 

-2- 

“Adjusted Gross Proceeds” means the Gross Proceeds of the Bonds reduced by amounts (a) in a 

Bona Fide Debt Service Fund or a reasonably required reserve or replacement fund, (b) that as of the Issue 

Date are not expected to be Gross Proceeds, but which arise after the end of the applicable spending period, 

and (c) representing grant repayments or sale or Investment proceeds of any purpose Investment. 

 

“Annual Compliance Checklist” means a checklist for the Bonds designed to measure 

compliance with the requirements of this Tax Certificate and the Compliance Procedure after the Issue Date, 

as further described in Section 4.2 and substantially in the form attached as Exhibit E. 

 

“Available Construction Proceeds” means the sale proceeds of the Bonds, increased by 

(a) Investment earnings on the sale proceeds, (b) earnings on amounts in a reasonably required reserve or 

replacement fund allocable to the Bonds but not funded from the Bonds, and (c) earnings on such earnings, 

reduced by sale proceeds (1) in any reasonably required reserve fund or (2) used to pay issuance costs of 

the Bonds.  But Available Construction Proceeds do not include Investment earnings on amounts in a 

reasonably required reserve or replacement fund after the earlier of (A) the second anniversary of the Issue 

Date or (B) the date the Financed Facility is substantially completed. 

 

“Bona Fide Debt Service Fund” means a fund, which may include Bond proceeds, that (a) is used 

primarily to achieve a proper matching of revenues with principal and interest payments within each Bond 

Year; and (b) is depleted at least once each Bond Year, except for a reasonable carryover amount not to 

exceed the greater of (1) the earnings on the fund for the immediately preceding Bond Year, or (2) one-

twelfth of the principal and interest payments on the Bonds for the immediately preceding Bond Year. 

 

“Bond” or “Bonds” means any bond or bonds described in the recitals, authenticated and delivered 

under the Ordinance. 

 

“Bond Compliance Officer” means the Issuer’s Finance Director or other person named in the 

Compliance Procedure. 

  

“Bond Counsel” means Gilmore & Bell, P.C., or other firm of nationally recognized bond counsel 

acceptable to the Issuer. 

 

“Bond Year” means each one-year period (or shorter period for the first Bond Year) ending May 1, 

or another one-year period selected by the Issuer. 

 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

 

“Compliance Procedure” means the Issuer’s Tax and Disclosure Compliance Procedure, dated 

January 3, 2017, as it may from time to time be amended, attached as Exhibit G. 

  

“Computation Date” means each date on which arbitrage rebate and yield reduction amounts for 

the Bonds are computed.  The Issuer may treat any date as a Computation Date, subject to the following 

limits: 

 

(a) the first rebate installment payment must be made for a Computation Date not later 

than five years after the Issue Date; 

 

(b) each subsequent rebate installment payment must be made for a Computation Date 

not later than five years after the previous Computation Date for which an installment payment was 

made; and 

96

Item 6.



 

-3- 

(c) the date the last Bond is discharged is the final Computation Date. 

 

The Issuer selects February 1, 2027, as the first Computation Date but reserves the right to select a 

different date consistent with the Regulations. 

 

“Final Written Allocation” means the Final Written Allocation of expenditures of the Bond 

proceeds prepared by the Bond Compliance Officer in accordance with the Compliance Procedure and 

Section 4.2(b). 

 

“Financed Facility” means the portion of the Project being financed or refinanced with the 

proceeds of the Bonds as described on Exhibit D. 

 

“Gross Proceeds” means (a) sale proceeds (any amounts actually or constructively received by the 

Issuer from the sale of the Bonds, including amounts used to pay underwriting discount or fees, but 

excluding pre-issuance accrued interest), (b) Investment proceeds (any amounts received from investing 

sale proceeds or other Investment proceeds), (c) any amounts held in a sinking fund for the Bonds, (d) any 

amounts held in a pledged fund or reserve fund for the Bonds, and (e) any other replacement proceeds.  

Specifically, Gross Proceeds includes (but is not limited to) amounts held in the following funds and 

accounts: 

 

(1) Project Fund. 

 

(2) Debt Service Fund. 

 

(3) Rebate Fund (to the extent funded with sale proceeds or Investment proceeds of 

the Bonds). 

 

“Guaranteed Investment Contract” is any Investment with specifically negotiated withdrawal or 

reinvestment provisions and a specifically negotiated interest rate, including any agreement to supply 

Investments on two or more future dates (e.g., a forward supply contract). 

 

“Investment” means any security, obligation, annuity contract or other investment-type property 

that is purchased directly with, or otherwise allocated to, Gross Proceeds.  This term does not include a tax-

exempt bond, except for “specified private activity bonds” as defined in Code § 57(a)(5)(C), but it does 

include the investment element of most interest rate caps. 

 

“IRS” means the United States Internal Revenue Service. 

 

“Issue Date” means February ___, 2022. 

 

“Issuer” means the City of Republic, Missouri, and its successors and assigns, or any body, agency 

or instrumentality of the State of Missouri succeeding to or charged with the powers, duties and functions 

of the Issuer. 

 

“Management or Service Agreement” means a legal agreement defined in Regulations § 1.141-

3(b) as a management, service, or incentive payment contract with an entity that provides services involving 

all or a portion of any function of the Financed Facility, such as a contract to manage the entire Financed 

Facility or a portion of the Financed Facility.  Contracts for services that are solely incidental to the primary 

97

Item 6.



 

-4- 

governmental function of the Financed Facility (for example, contracts for janitorial, office equipment 

repair, billing, or similar services), however, are not treated as Management or Service Agreements. 

“Measurement Period” means, with respect to each item of property financed as part of the 

Financed Facility, the period beginning on the later of (a) the Issue Date or (b) the date the property is 

placed in service and ending on the earlier of (1) the final maturity date of the Bonds or (2) the end of the 

expected economic useful life of the property. 

 

“Minor Portion” means the lesser of $100,000 or 5% of the sale proceeds of the Bonds. 

 

“Net Proceeds” means when used in reference to the Bonds, the sale proceeds (excluding pre-

issuance accrued interest), less an allocable share of any proceeds deposited in a reasonably required reserve 

or replacement fund, plus an allocable share of all Investment earnings on such sale proceeds. 

 

“Non-Qualified Use” means use of Bond proceeds or the Financed Facility in a trade or business 

carried on by any Non-Qualified User.  The rules set out in Regulations § 1.141-3 determine whether Bond 

proceeds or the Financed Facility are “used” in a trade or business.  Generally, ownership, a lease, or any 

other use that grants a Non-Qualified User a special legal right or entitlement with respect to the Financed 

Facility, will constitute use under Regulations § 1.141-3. 

 

“Non-Qualified User” means any person or entity other than a Qualified User.  

 

“Official Intent Date” means (a) with respect to the public works facility, October 5, 2021, and 

(b) with respect to the remainder of the Project, February ___, 2022, as described in Section 2.1(i). 

 

“Opinion of Bond Counsel” means the written opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the 

proposed action or the failure to act will not adversely affect the exclusion of the interest on the Bonds from 

gross income for federal income tax purposes.  

 

“Ordinance” means the Ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Bonds adopted by the City 

Council of the Issuer on February ___, 2022, as amended and supplemented in accordance with the 

provisions thereof. 

 

“Post-Issuance Tax Requirements” means those requirements related to the use of Bond 

proceeds, the use of the Financed Facility and the investment of Gross Proceeds after the Issue Date. 

 

“Project” means all of the property being acquired, developed, constructed, renovated and 

equipped by the Issuer using Bond proceeds and Qualified Equity, including improvements to the Issuer’s 

sewerage system and the acquisition, construction and equipping of a public works facility, all as further 

described on Exhibit D. 

 

“Qualified Equity” means funds (but excluding an existing equity ownership interest in real 

property or tangible personal property) that are not derived from proceeds of a tax-exempt financing that 

are spent on the Project on a date that is no earlier than a date on which such expenditures would be eligible 

for reimbursement by proceeds of the Bonds under Regulations § 1.150-2(d)(2) and ending not later than 

the date the Project is capable of and actually used at substantially its designed level.     

 

“Qualified Use Agreement” means any of the following:   

 

98

Item 6.



 

-5- 

(a) A lease or other short-term use by members of the general public who occupy the 

Financed Facility on a short-term basis in the ordinary course of the Issuer’s governmental 

purposes.  

(b) Agreements with Qualified Users or Non-Qualified Users to use all or a portion of 

the Financed Facility for a period up to 200 days in length pursuant to an arrangement whereby 

(1) the use of the Financed Facility under the same or similar arrangements is predominantly by 

natural persons who are not engaged in a trade or business and (2) the compensation for the use is 

determined based on generally applicable, fair market value rates that are in effect at the time the 

agreement is entered into or renewed.  Any Qualified User or Non-Qualified User using all or any 

portion of the Financed Facility under this type of arrangement may have a right of first refusal to 

renew the agreement at rates generally in effect at the time of the renewal. 

 

(c) Agreements with Qualified Users or Non-Qualified Users to use all or a portion of 

the Financed Facility for a period up to 100 days in length pursuant to arrangements whereby (1) the 

use of the property by the person would be general public use but for the fact that generally 

applicable and uniformly applied rates are not reasonably available to natural persons not engaged 

in a trade or business, (2) the compensation for the use under the arrangement is determined based 

on applicable, fair market value rates that are in effect at the time the agreement is entered into or 

renewed, and (3) the Financed Facility was not constructed for a principal purpose of providing the 

property for use by that Qualified User or Non-Qualified User.  Any Qualified User or Non-

Qualified User using all or any portion of the Financed Facility under this type of arrangement may 

have a right of first refusal to renew the agreement at rates generally in effect at the time of the 

renewal. 

 

(d) Agreements with Qualified Users or Non-Qualified Users to use all or a portion of 

the Financed Facility for a period up to 50 days in length pursuant to a negotiated arm’s-length 

arrangement at fair market value so long as the Financed Facility was not constructed for a principal 

purpose of providing the property for use by that person. 

 

“Qualified User” means a state, territory, possession of the United States, the District of Columbia, 

or any political subdivision thereof, or any instrumentality of such entity, but it does not include the United 

States or any agency or instrumentality of the United States. 

 

“Reasonable Retainage” means Gross Proceeds retained by the Issuer for reasonable business 

purposes, such as to ensure or promote compliance with a construction contract; provided that such amount 

may not exceed (a) for purposes of the 18-month spending test, 5% of net sale proceeds of the Bonds on 

the date 18 months after the Issue Date, or (b) for purposes of the 2-year spending test, 5% of the Available 

Construction Proceeds as of the end of the 2-year spending period. 

 

“Rebate Analyst” means Gilmore & Bell, P.C. or any successor Rebate Analyst selected pursuant 

to this Tax Certificate. 

 

“Regulations” means all Regulations issued by the U.S. Treasury Department to implement the 

provisions of Code §§ 103 and 141 through 150 and applicable to the Bonds. 

 

“Tax Certificate” means this Federal Tax Certificate as it may from time to time be amended and 

supplemented in accordance with its terms. 

“Tax-Exempt Bond File” means documents and records for the Bonds, maintained by the Bond 

Compliance Officer pursuant to the Compliance Procedure. 

99

Item 6.



 

-6- 

“Transcript” means the Transcript of Proceedings relating to the authorization and issuance of the 

Bonds. 

 

“Underwriter” means Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated, the original purchaser of the 

Bonds. 

 

“Yield” means yield on the Bonds, computed under Regulations § 1.148-4, and yield on an 

Investment, computed under Regulations § 1.148-5. 

 

 

ARTICLE II 

 

GENERAL REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS 

 

Section 2.1. Representations and Covenants of the Issuer.  The Issuer represents and 

covenants as follows: 

 

(a) Organization and Authority.  The Issuer (1) is a political subdivision organized and 

existing under the laws of the State of Missouri, (2) has lawful power and authority to issue the 

Bonds for the purposes set forth in the Ordinance, to enter into, execute and deliver the Ordinance, 

the Bonds, and this Tax Certificate and to carry out its obligations under the Ordinance, the Bonds, 

and this Tax Certificate, and (3) by all necessary action has been duly authorized to execute and 

deliver the Ordinance, the Bonds, and this Tax Certificate, acting by and through its duly authorized 

officials. 

 

(b) Tax-Exempt Status of Bonds–General Covenants and Allocation of Proceeds to 

Project.   

 

(1) The Issuer (to the extent within its power or direction) will not use any 

money on deposit in any fund or account maintained in connection with the Bonds, whether 

or not such money was derived from the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds or from any 

other source, in a manner that would cause the Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds,” within the 

meaning of Code § 148, and will not (to the extent within its power or direction) otherwise 

use or permit the use of any Bond proceeds or any other funds of the Issuer, directly or 

indirectly, in any manner, or take or permit to be taken any other action or actions, that 

would cause interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax 

purposes. 

 

(2) The Issuer will finance the Project with Bond proceeds and Qualified 

Equity.  For purposes of the covenants in this Section 2.1 relating to Non-Qualified Use of 

the Project, any Non-Qualified Use shall be treated as first allocated entirely to the portion 

of the Project financed with Qualified Equity, and then, but only to the extent of any excess 

Non-Qualified Use, to the portion of the Project financed by Bond proceeds (that is, the 

Financed Facility). 

 

(c) Governmental Obligations–Use of Proceeds.  Throughout the Measurement 

Period, (1) all of the Financed Facility is expected to be owned by the Issuer or another Qualified 

User, (2) no portion of the Financed Facility is expected to be used in a Non-Qualified Use, and 

100

Item 6.



 

-7- 

(3) the Issuer will not permit any Non-Qualified Use of the Financed Facility without first 

consulting with Bond Counsel. 

(d) Governmental Obligations–Private Security or Payment.  As of the Issue Date, the 

Issuer expects that none of the principal of and interest on the Bonds will be (under the terms of 

the Bonds or any underlying arrangement) directly or indirectly: 

 

(1) secured by (A) any interest in property used or to be used for a Non-

Qualified Use, or (B) any interest in payments in respect of such property; or 

 

(2) derived from payments (whether or not such payments are made to the 

Issuer) in respect of property, or borrowed money, used or to be used for a Non-Qualified 

Use. 

 

For purposes of the foregoing, taxes of general application, including payments in lieu of taxes, are 

not treated as private payments or as private security.  The Issuer will not permit any private security 

or payment with respect to the Bonds without first consulting with Bond Counsel. 

 

(e) No Private Loan.  Not more than 5% of the net proceeds of the Bonds will be 

loaned directly or indirectly to any Non-Qualified User.   

 

(f) Management or Service Agreements.  As of the Issue Date, the Issuer has no 

Management or Service Agreements with Non-Qualified Users.  During the Measurement Period, 

the Issuer will not enter into any Management or Service Agreement with any Non-Qualified User 

without first consulting with Bond Counsel. 

 

(g) Leases.  As of the Issue Date, the Issuer has not entered into any leases of any 

portion of the Project other than Qualified Use Agreements.  During the Measurement Period, the 

Issuer will not enter into any lease or similar agreement or arrangement of any portion of the Project 

other than a Qualified Use Agreement without first consulting with Bond Counsel. 

 

(h) Limit on Maturity of Bonds.  A list of the assets included in the Project and a 

computation of the “average reasonably expected economic life” is attached as Exhibit D.  Based 

on this computation, the “average maturity” of the Bonds as computed by Bond Counsel does not 

exceed the average reasonably expected economic life of the Financed Facility. 

 

(i) Expenditure of Bond Proceeds. 

 

(1) The Issuer will evidence each allocation of the proceeds of the Bonds and 

Qualified Equity for the Project to an expenditure in writing.  No allocation will be made 

more than 18 months following the later of (A) the date of the expenditure or (B) the date 

the Financed Facility was placed in service. 

 

(2) On the Official Intent Date, the governing body of the Issuer adopted a 

resolution stating the Issuer’s intent to finance the public works portion of the Financed 

Facility with tax-exempt bonds and to reimburse the Issuer for expenditures made for the 

Financed Facility prior to the issuance of those bonds.  A copy of the resolution is attached 

as Exhibit C.  The Issuer does not intend to allocate any proceeds of the Bonds to reimburse 

an expenditure paid prior to the Issue Date.  If the Issuer subsequently determines to 

reimburse an expenditure paid prior to the Issue Date, no portion of the Net Proceeds of 

101

Item 6.



 

-8- 

the Bonds will be used to reimburse an expenditure paid by the Issuer more than 60 days 

prior to the date the resolution was adopted unless the expenditure may be reimbursed for 

the reasons permitted under Regulations § 1.150-2(f) (for example, issuance costs, de 

minimis amounts, and preliminary expenditures).  No reimbursement allocation will be 

made for an expenditure made more than three years before the date of the reimbursement 

allocation.  

 

(j) Registered Bonds.  The Ordinance requires that all of the Bonds will be issued and 

held in registered form within the meaning of Code § 149(a). 

 

(k) Bonds Not Federally Guaranteed.  The Issuer will not take any action or permit 

any action to be taken which would cause any Bond to be “federally guaranteed” within the 

meaning of Code § 149(b). 

 

(l) IRS Form 8038-G.  Bond Counsel will prepare Form 8038-G (Information Return 

for Tax-Exempt Governmental Obligations) based on the representations and covenants of the 

Issuer contained in this Tax Certificate or otherwise provided by the Issuer.  Bond Counsel will sign 

the return as a paid preparer following completion and will then deliver copies to the Issuer for 

execution and for the Issuer’s records.  The Issuer agrees to timely execute and return to Bond 

Counsel the execution copy of Form 8038-G for filing with the IRS.  A copy of the “as-filed” copy 

along with proof of filing will be included as Exhibit B.   

 

(m) Hedge Bonds.  At least 85% of the net sale proceeds (the sale proceeds of the Bonds 

less any sale proceeds invested in a reserve fund) of the Bonds will be used to carry out the 

governmental purpose of the Bonds within three years after the Issue Date, and not more than 50% 

of the proceeds of the Bonds will be invested in Investments having a substantially guaranteed 

Yield for four years or more. 

 

(n) Compliance with Future Tax Requirements.  The Issuer understands that the Code 

and the Regulations may impose new or different restrictions and requirements on the Issuer in the 

future.  The Issuer will comply with such future restrictions that are necessary to maintain the 

exclusion of the interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 

 

(o) Single Issue; No Other Issues.  The Bonds constitute a single “issue” under 

Regulations § 1.150-1(c).  No other debt obligations of the Issuer (1) are being sold within 15 days 

of the sale of the Bonds, (2) are being sold under the same plan of financing as the Bonds and 

(3) are expected to be paid from substantially the same source of funds as the Bonds (disregarding 

guarantees from unrelated parties, such as bond insurance).   

 

(p) Interest Rate Swap.  As of the Issue Date, the Issuer has not entered into an interest 

rate swap agreement or any other similar arrangement designed to modify its interest rate risk with 

respect to the Bonds.  The Issuer will not enter into any such arrangement in the future without first 

consulting with Bond Counsel.   

 

(q) Guaranteed Investment Contract.  As of the Issue Date, the Issuer does not expect 

to enter into a Guaranteed Investment Contract for any Gross Proceeds of the Bonds.  The Issuer 

will be responsible for complying with Section 4.4(d) if it decides to enter into a Guaranteed 

Investment Contract at a later date. 

 

102

Item 6.



 

-9- 

(r) Bank Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations.  The Bonds are not “qualified tax-exempt 

obligations” under Code § 265(b)(3). 

 

Section 2.2. Survival of Representations and Covenants.  All representations, covenants and 

certifications contained in this Tax Certificate or in any certificate or other instrument delivered by the 

Issuer under this Tax Certificate, will survive the execution and delivery of such documents and the issuance 

of the Bonds, as representations of facts existing as of the date of execution and delivery of the instruments 

containing such representations.  The foregoing covenants of this Section will remain in full force and effect 

notwithstanding the defeasance of the Bonds. 

 

 

ARTICLE III 

 

ARBITRAGE CERTIFICATIONS AND COVENANTS 

 

Section 3.1. General.  The purpose of this Article is to certify, under Regulations § 1.148-2(b), 

the Issuer’s expectations as to the sources, uses and investment of Bond proceeds and other money, in order 

to support the Issuer’s conclusion that the Bonds are not arbitrage bonds.  The individuals executing this 

Tax Certificate on behalf of the Issuer are officers of the Issuer responsible for issuing the Bonds. 

 

Section 3.2. Reasonable Expectations.  The facts, estimates and expectations set forth in this 

Article III are based upon and in reliance upon the Issuer’s understanding of the documents and certificates 

that comprise the Transcript, and the representations, covenants and certifications of the parties contained 

therein.  To the Issuer’s knowledge, the facts and estimates set forth in this Tax Certificate are accurate, and 

the expectations of the Issuer set forth in this Tax Certificate are reasonable.  The Issuer has no knowledge 

that would cause it to believe that the representations, warranties and certifications described in this Tax 

Certificate are unreasonable or inaccurate or may not be relied upon. 

 

Section 3.3. Purposes of the Financing.  The Bonds are being issued for the purpose of 

providing funds to pay (a) the costs of the Project and (b) the costs of issuing the Bonds.  

 

Section 3.4. Funds and Accounts.  The following funds and accounts have been established 

under the Ordinance: 

 

(a) Project Fund. 

 

(b) Debt Service Fund. 

 

(c) Rebate Fund. 

 

Section 3.5. Amount and Use of Bond Proceeds.   

 

(a) Amount of Bond Proceeds.  The total proceeds to be received by the Issuer from the sale of 

the Bonds will be as follows:   

 

103

Item 6.



 

-10- 

Principal Amount $[*Principal 

Amount*].00 

Plus [*Net*] Original Issue Premium  

Less Underwriting Discount              

 Total Proceeds Received by Issuer $           

 

(b) Use of Bond Proceeds.  The Bond proceeds (less $__________ withheld by the 

Underwriter for the reimbursement of certain costs of issuance of the Bonds) are expected to be deposited 

in the Project Fund, of which $__________ will be used to pay costs of issuance of the Bonds and 

$__________ will be used to pay costs of the Project. 

 

Section 3.6. [Reserved.]   

 

Section 3.7. No Refunding.  No proceeds of the Bonds will be used to pay principal of or 

interest on any other debt obligation. 

 

Section 3.8. Project Completion.  The Issuer has incurred or will incur within six months after 

the Issue Date, a substantial binding obligation to a third party to spend at least 5% of the Net Proceeds of 

the Bonds on the Financed Facility.  The completion of the Financed Facility and the allocation of the Net 

Proceeds of the Bonds to expenditures will proceed with due diligence.  At least 85% of the Net Proceeds 

of the Bonds will be allocated to expenditures on the Financed Facility within three years after the Issue 

Date. 

 

Section 3.9. Sinking Funds.  The Issuer is required to make periodic payments in amounts 

sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds.  These payments will be deposited into the Debt 

Service Fund.  Except for the Debt Service Fund, no sinking fund or other similar fund that is expected to 

be used to pay principal of or interest on the Bonds has been established or is expected to be established.  

The Debt Service Fund is used primarily to achieve a proper matching of revenues with principal and 

interest payments on the Bonds within each Bond Year, and the Issuer expects that the Debt Service Fund 

will qualify as a Bona Fide Debt Service Fund. 

 

Section 3.10. Reserve, Replacement and Pledged Funds. 

 

(a) No Debt Service Reserve Fund.  No reserve or replacement fund has been established for 

the Bonds.   

 

(b) No Other Replacement or Pledged Funds.  None of the Bond proceeds will be used as a 

substitute for other funds that were intended or earmarked to pay costs of the Financed Facility, and that 

instead have been or will be used to acquire higher yielding Investments.  Except for the Debt Service Fund, 

there are no other funds pledged or committed in a manner that provides a reasonable assurance that such 

funds would be available for payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds if the Issuer encounters 

financial difficulty. 

 

Section 3.11. Purpose Investment Yield.  The Bond proceeds will not be used to purchase an 

Investment for the purpose of carrying out the governmental purpose of the financing. 

 

104

Item 6.



 

-11- 

Section 3.12. Issue Price and Yield on the Bonds. 

 

(a) Issue Price.  Based on the Underwriter’s certifications in the Underwriter’s Receipt for 

Bonds and Closing Certificate, the Issuer hereby elects to establish the issue prices of the Bonds maturing 

in the years __________ pursuant to Regulations § 1.148-1(f)(2)(i) (relating to the so-called “general rule”), 

and the issue prices of the Bonds maturing in the years __________ pursuant to Regulations § 1.148-

1(f)(2)(ii) (relating to the so-called “hold-the-offering-price rule”).  Therefore, the aggregate issue price of 

the Bonds for such purpose is $__________. 

 

(b) Bond Yield.  Based on the issue price, the Yield on the Bonds is __________%, as computed 

by Bond Counsel and shown on Exhibit A.  The Issuer has not entered into an interest rate swap agreement 

with respect to any portion of the proceeds of the Bonds. 

Section 3.13. Miscellaneous Arbitrage Matters. 

 

(a) No Abusive Arbitrage Device.  The Bonds are not and will not be part of a transaction or 

series of transactions that has the effect of (1) enabling the Issuer to exploit the difference between tax-

exempt and taxable interest rates to gain a material financial advantage, and (2) overburdening the tax-

exempt bond market. 

 

(b) No Over-Issuance.  The sale proceeds of the Bonds, together with expected Investment 

earnings thereon and other money contributed by the Issuer, do not exceed the cost of the governmental 

purpose of the Bonds as described above.   

 

Section 3.14. Conclusion.  On the basis of the facts, estimates and circumstances set forth in this 

Tax Certificate, the Issuer does not expect that the Bond proceeds will be used in a manner that would cause 

any Bond to be an “arbitrage bond” within the meaning of Code § 148 and the Regulations. 

 

 

ARTICLE IV 

 

POST-ISSUANCE TAX REQUIREMENTS, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

 

Section 4.1. General. 

 

(a) Purpose of Article.  The purpose of this Article is to supplement the Compliance Procedure 

and to set out specific policies and procedures governing compliance with the federal income tax 

requirements that apply after the Bonds are issued.  The Issuer recognizes that interest on the Bonds will 

remain excludable from gross income only if the Post-Issuance Tax Requirements are followed after the 

Issue Date.  The Issuer further acknowledges that written evidence substantiating compliance with the Post-

Issuance Tax Requirements must be retained in order to permit the Bonds to be refinanced with tax-exempt 

obligations and substantiate the position that interest on the Bonds is exempt from gross income in the event 

of an audit of the Bonds by the IRS.   

 

(b) Written Policies and Procedures of the Issuer.  The Issuer intends for the Compliance 

Procedure, as supplemented by this Tax Certificate, to be its primary written policies and procedures for 

monitoring compliance with the Post-Issuance Tax Requirements for the Bonds and to supplement any other 

formal policies and procedures related to tax compliance that the Issuer has established.  The provisions of 

this Tax Certificate are intended to be consistent with the Compliance Procedure.  In the event of any 

105

Item 6.



 

-12- 

inconsistency between the Compliance Procedure and this Tax Certificate, the terms of this Tax Certificate 

will govern. 

 

(c) Bond Compliance Officer.  The Issuer when necessary to fulfill its Post-Issuance Tax 

Requirements will, through its Bond Compliance Officer, sign Form 8038-T in connection with the payment 

of arbitrage rebate or yield reduction amounts, participate in any federal income tax audit of the Bonds or 

related proceedings under a voluntary compliance agreement procedure (VCAP) or undertake a remedial 

action procedure pursuant to Regulations § 1.141-12.  In each case, all costs and expenses incurred by the 

Issuer shall be treated as a reasonable cost of administering the Bonds and the Issuer shall be entitled to 

reimbursement and recovery of its costs to the same extent as provided in the Ordinance or state law. 

 

Section 4.2. Record Keeping, Use of Bond Proceeds and Use of Financed Facility. 

 

(a) Record Keeping.  The Bond Compliance Officer will maintain the Tax-Exempt Bond File 

for the Bonds in accordance with the Compliance Procedure.  Unless otherwise specifically instructed in 

advice or a written Opinion of Bond Counsel or to the extent otherwise provided in this Tax Certificate, the 

Bond Compliance Officer shall retain records related to the Post-Issuance Tax Requirements until three 

years following the final maturity of (1) the Bonds or (2) any obligation issued to refund the Bonds.  Any 

records maintained electronically must comply with Section 4.01 of Revenue Procedure 97-22, which 

generally provides that an electronic storage system must (A) ensure an accurate and complete transfer of 

the hardcopy records which indexes, stores, preserves, retrieves and reproduces the electronic records, 

(B) include reasonable controls to ensure integrity, accuracy and reliability of the electronic storage system 

and to prevent unauthorized alteration or deterioration of electronic records, (C) exhibit a high degree of 

legibility and readability both electronically and in hardcopy, (D) provide support for other books and 

records of the Issuer, and (E) not be subject to any agreement that would limit the ability of the IRS to 

access and use the electronic storage system on the Issuer’s premises. 

 

(b) Accounting and Allocation of Bond Proceeds and Qualified Equity to Expenditures.  The 

Bond Compliance Officer will account for the investment and expenditure of Bond proceeds in the level of 

detail required by the Compliance Procedure.  The Bond Compliance Officer will supplement the expected 

allocation of Bond proceeds and Qualified Equity to expenditures with a Final Written Allocation as 

required by the Compliance Procedure.  A sample form of Final Written Allocation is attached as Exhibit F.   

 

(c) Annual Compliance Checklist.  Attached as Exhibit E is a sample Annual Compliance 

Checklist for the Bonds.  The Bond Compliance Officer will prepare and complete an Annual Compliance 

Checklist for the Project at least annually in accordance with the Compliance Procedure.  If the Annual 

Compliance Checklist identifies a deficiency in compliance with the requirements of this Tax Certificate, 

the Bond Compliance Officer will take the actions identified in advice of Bond Counsel or as described in 

the Compliance Procedure to correct any deficiency. 

 

(d) Opinions of Bond Counsel.  The Bond Compliance Officer is responsible for obtaining and 

delivering to the Issuer any advice or Opinion of Bond Counsel required under the provisions of this Tax 

Certificate or the Annual Compliance Checklist. 

 

Section 4.3. Temporary Periods/Yield Restriction.  Except as described below, the Issuer will 

not invest Gross Proceeds at a Yield greater than the Yield on the Bonds: 

 

(a) Project Fund and Costs of Issuance.  Bond proceeds deposited in the Project Fund 

or used to pay costs of issuing the bonds and Investment earnings on those proceeds may be 

invested without Yield restriction for up to three years following the Issue Date.  If any unspent 

106

Item 6.



 

-13- 

proceeds remain after three years, those amounts may continue to be invested without Yield 

restriction so long as the Issuer pays to the IRS all yield reduction payments in accordance with 

Regulations § 1.148-5(c).  These payments are required whether or not the Bonds are exempt from 

the arbitrage rebate and yield reduction amounts requirements of Code § 148. 

 

(b) Debt Service Fund.  To the extent that the Debt Service Fund qualifies as a Bona 

Fide Debt Service Fund, money in such account may be invested without Yield restriction for 13 

months after the date of deposit.  Earnings on such amounts may be invested without Yield 

restriction for one year after the date of receipt of such earnings. 

 

(c) Minor Portion.  In addition to the amounts described above, Gross Proceeds not 

exceeding the Minor Portion may be invested without Yield restriction. 

Section 4.4. Procedures for Establishing Fair Market Value. 

 

(a) General.  No Investment may be acquired with Gross Proceeds for an amount (including 

transaction costs) in excess of the fair market value of such Investment, or sold or otherwise disposed of 

for an amount (including transaction costs) less than the fair market value of the Investment.  The fair 

market value of any Investment is the price a willing buyer would pay to a willing seller to acquire the 

Investment in a bona fide, arm’s-length transaction.  Fair market value will be determined in accordance 

with Regulations § 1.148-5. 

 

(b) Established Securities Market.  Except for Investments purchased for a Yield-restricted 

defeasance escrow, if an Investment is purchased or sold in an arm’s-length transaction on an established 

securities market (within the meaning of Code § 1273), the purchase or sale price constitutes the fair market 

value.  Where there is no established securities market for an Investment, market value must be established 

using one of the paragraphs below.  The fair market value of Investments purchased for a Yield-restricted 

defeasance escrow must be determined in a bona fide solicitation for bids that complies with Regulations 

§ 1.148-5. 

 

(c) Certificates of Deposit.  The purchase price of a certificate of deposit (a “CD”) is treated 

as its fair market value on the purchase date if (1) the CD has a fixed interest rate, a fixed payment schedule, 

and a substantial penalty for early withdrawal, (2) the Yield on the CD is not less than the Yield on 

reasonably comparable direct obligations of the United States, and (3) the Yield is not less than the highest 

Yield published or posted by the CD issuer to be currently available on reasonably comparable CDs offered 

to the public. 

 

(d) Guaranteed Investment Contracts.  The purchase price of a Guaranteed Investment 

Contract is treated as its fair market value on the purchase date if all of the following requirements are met: 

 

(1) Bona Fide Solicitation for Bids.  The Issuer makes a bona fide solicitation for the 

Guaranteed Investment Contract, using the following procedures: 

 

(A) The bid specifications are in writing and are timely forwarded to potential 

providers, or are made available on an internet website or other similar electronic media 

that is regularly used to post bid specifications to potential bidders.  A writing includes a 

hard copy, a fax, or an electronic e-mail copy. 

 

107

Item 6.



 

-14- 

(B) The bid specifications include all “material” terms of the bid.  A term is 

material if it may directly or indirectly affect the Yield or the cost of the Guaranteed 

Investment Contract. 

 

(C) The bid specifications include a statement notifying potential providers 

that submission of a bid is a representation (i) that the potential provider did not consult 

with any other potential provider about its bid, (ii) that the bid was determined without 

regard to any other formal or informal agreement that the potential provider has with the 

Issuer or any other person (whether or not in connection with the bond issue), and (iii) that 

the bid is not being submitted solely as a courtesy to the Issuer or any other person, for 

purposes of satisfying the requirements of the Regulations. 

 

(D) The terms of the bid specifications are “commercially reasonable.”  A term 

is commercially reasonable if there is a legitimate business purpose for the term other than 

to increase the purchase price or reduce the yield of the Guaranteed Investment Contract. 

 

(E) The terms of the solicitation take into account the Issuer’s reasonably 

expected deposit and draw-down schedule for the amounts to be invested. 

 

(F) All potential providers have an equal opportunity to bid.  If the bidding 

process affords any opportunity for a potential provider to review other bids before 

providing a bid, then providers have an equal opportunity to bid only if all potential 

providers have an equal opportunity to review other bids.  Thus, no potential provider may 

be given an opportunity to review other bids that is not equally given to all potential 

providers (that is no exclusive “last look”).   

 

(G) At least three “reasonably competitive providers” are solicited for bids.  A 

reasonably competitive provider is a provider that has an established industry reputation as 

a competitive provider of the type of Investments being purchased. 

 

(2) Bids Received.  The bids received must meet all of the following requirements: 

 

(A) At least three bids are received from providers that were solicited as 

described above and that do not have a “material financial interest” in the issue.  For this 

purpose, (i) a lead underwriter in a negotiated underwriting transaction is deemed to have 

a material financial interest in the issue until 15 days after the Issue Date of the issue, 

(ii) any entity acting as a financial advisor with respect to the purchase of the Guaranteed 

Investment Contract at the time the bid specifications are forwarded to potential providers 

has a material financial interest in the issue, and (iii) a provider that is a related party to a 

provider that has a material financial interest in the issue is deemed to have a material 

financial interest in the issue. 

 

(B) At least one of the three bids received is from a reasonably competitive 

provider, as defined above. 

(C) If an agent or broker is used to conduct the bidding process, the agent or 

broker did not bid to provide the Guaranteed Investment Contract. 

 

108

Item 6.



 

-15- 

(3) Winning Bid.  The winning bid is the highest yielding bona fide bid (determined 

net of any broker’s fees). 

 

(4) Fees Paid.  The obligor on the Guaranteed Investment Contract certifies the 

administrative costs that it pays (or expects to pay, if any) to third parties in connection with 

supplying the Guaranteed Investment Contract. 

 

(5) Records.  The Issuer retains the following records with the Bond documents until 

three years after the last outstanding Bond is redeemed: 

 

(A) A copy of the Guaranteed Investment Contract. 

 

(B) The receipt or other record of the amount actually paid for the Guaranteed 

Investment Contract, including a record of any administrative costs paid by the Issuer, and 

the certification as to fees paid, described in paragraph (d)(4) above. 

  

(C) For each bid that is submitted, the name of the person and entity submitting 

the bid, the time and date of the bid, and the bid results. 

 

(D) The bid solicitation form and, if the terms of the Guaranteed Investment 

Contract deviated from the bid solicitation form or a submitted bid is modified, a brief 

statement explaining the deviation and stating the purpose for the deviation. 

 

(e) Other Investments.  If an Investment is not described above, the fair market value may be 

established through a competitive bidding process, as follows: 

 

(1) at least three bids on the Investment must be received from persons with no 

financial interest in the Bonds (e.g., as underwriters or brokers); and 

 

(2) the Yield on the Investment must be equal to or greater than the Yield offered under 

the highest bid. 

 

Section 4.5. Certain Gross Proceeds Exempt from the Rebate Requirement. 

 

(a)  General.  A portion of the Gross Proceeds of the Bonds may be exempt from rebate 

pursuant to one or more of the following exceptions.  The exceptions typically will not apply with respect 

to all Gross Proceeds of the Bonds and will not otherwise affect the application of the Investment limitations 

described in Section 4.3.  Unless specifically noted, the obligation to compute, and if necessary, to pay 

rebate as set forth in Section 4.6 applies even if a portion of the Gross Proceeds of the Bonds is exempt 

from the rebate requirement.  To the extent all or a portion of the Bonds is exempt from rebate the Rebate 

Analyst may account for such fact in connection with its preparation of a rebate report described in 

Section 4.6.  The Issuer may defer the final rebate Computation Date and the payment of rebate for the 

Bonds to the extent permitted by Regulations §§ 1.148-7(b)(1) and 1.148-3(e)(2) but only in accordance 

with specific written instructions provided by the Rebate Analyst.  

 

(b)  Applicable Spending Exceptions. 

 

(1) The Issuer expects that at least 75% of the Available Construction Proceeds will 

be used for construction or rehabilitation expenditures for property owned by the Issuer. 

109

Item 6.



 

-16- 

(2) The following optional rebate spending exceptions can apply to the Bonds: 

 

 6-month spending exception (Code § 148(f)(4)(B) and Regulations § 1.148-7(c)). 

 18-month spending exception (Regulations § 1.148-7(d)). 

 2-year spending exception (Code § 148(f)(4)(C) and Regulations § 1.148-7(e)). 

 (c) Special Elections Made with Respect to Spending Exception Elections.  No special 

elections are being made in connection with the application of the spending exceptions.   

(d)  Bona Fide Debt Service Fund.  To the extent that the Debt Service Fund qualifies as a Bona 

Fide Debt Service Fund, Investment earnings in the fund cannot be taken into account in computing 

arbitrage rebate and yield reduction amounts (1) with respect to such portion that meets the 6-month 

spending exception, 18-month spending exception or 2-year spending exception, or (2) for a given Bond 

Year, if the gross earnings on the Debt Service Fund for such Bond Year are less than $100,000.  If the 

average annual debt service on the Bonds does not exceed $2,500,000, the $100,000 earnings test may be 

treated as satisfied in every Bond Year. 

 

(e) Documenting Application of Spending Exception.  At any time prior to the first 

Computation Date, the Issuer may engage the Rebate Analyst to determine whether one or more spending 

exceptions has been satisfied, and the extent to which the Issuer must continue to comply with Section 4.6.   

 

(f)   General Requirements for Spending Exception.  The following general requirements apply 

in determining whether a spending exception is met.  

 

(1) Using Adjusted Gross Proceeds or Available Construction Proceeds to pay 

principal of any Bonds is not taken into account as an expenditure for purposes of meeting any of 

the spending tests. 

 

(2) The 6-month spending exception generally is met if all Adjusted Gross Proceeds 

of the Bonds are spent within six months following the Issue Date.  The test may still be satisfied 

even if up to 5% of the sale proceeds remain at the end of the initial 6-month period, so long as this 

amount is spent within one year of the Issue Date. 

 

(3) The 18-month spending exception generally is met if all Adjusted Gross Proceeds 

of the Bonds are spent in accordance with the following schedule: 

 

 

Time Period 

After the 

Issue Date 

Minimum 

Percentage of 

Adjusted Gross 

Proceeds Spent 

6 months 15% 

12 months 60% 

18 months (Final) 100% 

 

(4) The 2-year spending exception generally is met if all Available Construction 

Proceeds are spent in accordance with the following schedule: 

 

110

Item 6.



 

-17- 

 

Time Period 

After the 

Issue Date 

Minimum 

Percentage of 

Available Construction 

Proceeds Spent 

6 months 10% 

12 months 45% 

18 months 75% 

24 months (Final) 100% 

 

(5) For purposes of applying the 18-month and 2-year spending exceptions only, the 

failure to satisfy the final spending requirement is disregarded if the Issuer uses due diligence to 

complete the Financed Facility and the failure does not exceed the lesser of 3% of the aggregate 

issue price of the Bonds or $250,000.  No such exception applies for any other spending period. 

 

(6) For purposes of applying the 18-month and 2-year spending exceptions only, the 

Bonds meet the applicable spending test even if, at the end of the final spending period, proceeds 

not exceeding a Reasonable Retainage remain unspent, so long as such Reasonable Retainage is 

spent within 30 months after the Issue Date in the case of the 18-month exception or three years 

after the Issue Date in the case of the 2-year spending exception. 

Section 4.6. Computation and Payment of Arbitrage Rebate and Yield Reduction 

Amounts. 

 

(a) Rebate Fund.  The Issuer will keep the Rebate Fund separate from all other funds and will 

administer the Rebate Fund under this Tax Certificate.  Any Investment earnings derived from the Rebate 

Fund will be credited to the Rebate Fund, and any Investment loss will be charged to the Rebate Fund. 

 

(b) Computation of Rebate Amount.  The Issuer will provide the Rebate Analyst Investment 

reports relating to each fund held by it that contains Gross Proceeds of the Bonds together with copies of 

Investment reports for any funds containing Gross Proceeds that are held by a party other than the Issuer 

annually as of the end of each Bond Year and not later than 10 days following each Computation Date.  

Each Investment report provided to the Rebate Analyst will contain a record of each Investment, including 

(1) purchase date, (2) purchase price, (3) information establishing the fair market value on the date such 

Investment was allocated to the Bonds, (4) any accrued interest paid, (5) face amount, (6) coupon rate, 

(7) frequency of interest payments, (8) disposition price, (9) any accrued interest received, and 

(10) disposition date.  Such records may be supplied in electronic form.  The Rebate Analyst will compute 

rebate following each Computation Date and deliver a written report to the Issuer together with an opinion 

or certificate of the Rebate Analyst stating that arbitrage rebate and yield reduction amounts were 

determined in accordance with the Regulations.  Each report and opinion will be provided not later than 45 

days following the Computation Date to which it relates.  In performing its duties, the Rebate Analyst may 

rely, in its discretion, on the correctness of financial analysis reports prepared by other professionals.   

 

(c) Rebate Payments.  Within 60 days after each Computation Date, the Issuer will pay to the 

United States the rebate and yield reduction amount then due, determined in accordance with the Regulations.  

Each payment must be (1) accompanied by IRS Form 8038-T and such other forms, documents or certificates 

as may be required by the Regulations, and (2) mailed or delivered to the IRS at the address shown below, 

or to such other location as the IRS may direct: 

Internal Revenue Service Center 

Ogden, UT 84201 

111

Item 6.



 

-18- 

Section 4.7. Successor Rebate Analyst.  If the firm acting as the Rebate Analyst resigns or 

becomes incapable of acting for any reason, or if the Issuer desires that a different firm act as the Rebate 

Analyst, then the Issuer by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing delivered to the firm then 

serving as the Rebate Analyst will name a successor Rebate Analyst.  In each case the successor Rebate 

Analyst must be a firm of nationally recognized bond counsel or a firm of independent certified public 

accountants and such firm must expressly agree to undertake the responsibilities assigned to the Rebate 

Analyst hereunder.   

 

Section 4.8. Filing Requirements.  The Issuer will file or cause to be filed with the IRS such 

reports or other documents as are required by the Code in accordance with advice of Bond Counsel. 

 

Section 4.9. Survival after Defeasance.  Notwithstanding anything in the Ordinance to the 

contrary, the obligation to pay arbitrage rebate and yield reduction amounts to the United States will survive 

the payment or defeasance of the Bonds. 

 

 

ARTICLE V 

 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 

Section 5.1. Term of Tax Certificate.  This Tax Certificate will be effective concurrently with 

the issuance and delivery of the Bonds and will continue in force and effect until the principal of, redemption 

premium, if any, and interest on all Bonds have been fully paid and all such Bonds are canceled; provided 

that, the provisions of Article IV regarding payment of arbitrage rebate and yield reduction amounts and 

all related penalties and interest will remain in effect until all such amounts are paid to the United States 

and the provisions of Section 4.2 relating to record keeping shall continue in force for the period described 

therein for records to be retained. 

 

Section 5.2. Amendments.  This Tax Certificate may be amended from time to time by the 

Issuer without notice to or the consent of any of the bondholders, but only if such amendment is in writing 

and is accompanied by an Opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that, under then existing law, assuming 

compliance with this Tax Certificate as so amended such amendment will not cause interest on any Bond 

to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes.  No such amendment will become effective 

until the Issuer receives this Opinion of Bond Counsel. 

 

Section 5.3. Opinion of Bond Counsel.  The Issuer may deviate from the provisions of this 

Tax Certificate if furnished with an Opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the proposed deviation will 

not adversely affect the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax 

purposes.  The Issuer will comply with any further or different instructions provided in an Opinion of Bond 

Counsel to the effect that the further or different instructions need to be complied with in order to maintain 

the validity of the Bonds or the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds. 

Section 5.4. Reliance.  In delivering this Tax Certificate the Issuer is making only those 

certifications, representations and agreements as are specifically attributed to it in this Tax Certificate.  The 

Issuer is not aware of any facts or circumstances which would cause it to question the accuracy of the facts, 

circumstances, estimates or expectations of any other party providing certifications as part of this Tax 

Certificate and, to the best of its knowledge, those facts, circumstances, estimates and expectations are 

reasonable.  The Issuer understands that its certifications will be relied upon by Bond Counsel in rendering 

112

Item 6.



 

-19- 

its opinion as to the validity of the Bonds and the exclusion from federal gross income of the interest on the 

Bonds. 

 

Section 5.5. Severability.  If any provision in this Tax Certificate or in the Bonds is determined 

to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions 

will not be affected or impaired. 

 

Section 5.6. Benefit of Agreement.  This Tax Certificate is binding upon the Issuer and its 

respective successors and assigns and inures to the benefit of the owners of the Bonds.  Nothing in this Tax 

Certificate or in the Ordinance or the Bonds, express or implied, gives to any person, other than the owners 

of the Bonds, any benefit or any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under this Tax Certificate.   

 

Section 5.7. Default, Breach and Enforcement.  Any misrepresentation of the Issuer 

contained herein or any breach of a covenant or agreement contained in this Tax Certificate may be pursued 

by the bondholders pursuant to the terms of the Ordinance or any other document which references this Tax 

Certificate and gives remedies for a misrepresentation or breach thereof. 

 

Section 5.8. Execution in Counterparts.  This Tax Certificate may be executed in any number 

of counterparts, each of which so executed will be deemed to be an original, but all such counterparts will 

together constitute the same instrument. 

 

Section 5.9. Governing Law.  This Tax Certificate will be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Missouri. 

 

Section 5.10. Electronic Transactions.  The transaction described in this Tax Certificate may 

be conducted, and related documents may be sent, received or stored, by electronic means. 

 

 

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

 

113

Item 6.



 

S-1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Mayor and Finance Director of the Issuer, by their 

execution of this Tax Certificate, hereby make the foregoing certifications, representations, and agreements 

contained in this Tax Certificate on behalf of the Issuer, as of the Issue Date. 

 

 

CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 

 

 

 

By:        

Title:   Mayor 

 

 

 

 

By:        

Title:   Finance Director, as Bond Compliance Officer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

114

Item 6.



 

A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE AND PROOF OF BOND YIELD 

 

 

 

 

 

 

115

Item 6.



 

B-1 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

 

IRS FORM 8038-G 

116

Item 6.



 

C-1 

 

EXHIBIT C 

 

 

COPY OF RESOLUTION OF OFFICIAL INTENT

117

Item 6.



 

D-1 

 

EXHIBIT D 

 

 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY COMPRISING  

THE PROJECT AND FINANCED FACILITY 

 

 

 

[See Attached Spreadsheet.] 

 

 

 

  

118

Item 6.



 

E-1 

EXHIBIT E 

 

 

SAMPLE ANNUAL COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST 
 

Name of tax-exempt bonds (“Bonds”) financing 

the Project: 

$[*Principal Amount*] Special Obligation 

Bonds, Series 2022 

Issue Date of Bonds: February ___, 2022 

Placed in service date of Project:       

Name of Bond Compliance Officer:       

Period covered by request (“Annual Period”):       

 

Item Question Response 

1 

Ownership 

Was the entire Project owned by the Issuer during the entire 

Annual Period?  If “Yes,” skip to Item 2. 

 

 Yes 

 No 

 If answer above was “No,” was advice of Bond Counsel 

obtained prior to the transfer?   

 

If “Yes,” include a description of the advice in the Tax-Exempt 

Bond File. 

 

If “No,” contact Bond Counsel and include description of 

resolution in the Tax-Exempt Bond File. 

 Yes 

 No 

 

   

2 

Leases & 

Other Rights 

to Possession 

During the Annual Period, was any part of the Project leased at 

any time pursuant to a lease or similar agreement for more than 

50 days?  If “No,” skip to Item 3. 

 Yes 

 No 

 If answer above was “Yes,” was advice of Bond Counsel 

obtained prior to entering into the lease or other arrangement?   

 

If “Yes,” include a description of the advice in the Tax-Exempt 

Bond File. 

 

If “No,” contact Bond Counsel and include description of 

resolution in the Tax-Exempt Bond File. 

 Yes 

 No 

 

   

119

Item 6.



 

E-2 

Item Question Response 

3 

Management 

or Service 

Agreements 

During the Annual Period, has the management of all or any 

part of the operations of the Project (e.g., operations, 

maintenance, etc.) been assumed by or transferred to another 

entity?  If “No,” skip to Item 4. 

 

 Yes 

 No 

 

 If answer above was “Yes,” was advice of Bond Counsel 

obtained prior to entering into the Management or Service 

Agreement?   

 

If “Yes,” include a description of the advice in the Tax-Exempt 

Bond File. 

 

If “No,” contact Bond Counsel and include description of 

resolution in the Tax-Exempt Bond File. 

 Yes 

 No 

 

   

4 

Other Use 

Was any other agreement entered into with an individual or 

entity that grants special legal rights to the Project?  If “No,” 

skip to Item 5. 

 

 Yes 

 No 

 If answer above was “Yes,” was advice of Bond Counsel 

obtained prior to entering into the agreement?   

 

If “Yes,” include a description of the advice in the Tax-Exempt 

Bond File. 

 

If “No,” contact Bond Counsel and include description of 

resolution in the Tax-Exempt Bond File. 

 Yes 

 No 

 

   

5 

Arbitrage 

& Rebate 

Have all rebate and yield reduction calculations mandated in 

the Federal Tax Certificate been prepared for the current year?   

 

 Yes 

 No 

 If “No,” contact the Rebate Analyst and incorporate report or 

include description of resolution in the Tax-Exempt Bond File. 

 

 

 

Bond Compliance Officer: ____________________________ 

 

Date Completed:  ____________________________ 

 

120

Item 6.



 

F-1 

EXHIBIT F 

 

 

SAMPLE FINAL WRITTEN ALLOCATION  

 

$[*Principal Amount*] 

City of Republic, Missouri 

Special Obligation Bonds 

Series 2022 

 

Final Written Allocation 
 

The undersigned is the Bond Compliance Officer of the City of Republic, Missouri (the “Issuer”), 

and in that capacity is authorized to execute federal income tax returns required to be filed by the Issuer 

and to make appropriate elections and designations regarding federal income tax matters on behalf of the 

Issuer.  This allocation of the proceeds of the bond issue referenced above (the “Bonds”) is necessary for 

the Issuer to satisfy ongoing reporting and compliance requirements under federal income tax laws. 

 

Purpose.  This document, together with the schedules and records referred to below, is intended to 

memorialize allocations of Bond proceeds to expenditures for purposes of §§ 141 and 148 of the Internal 

Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”).  All allocations are or were previously made no later 

than 18 months following the date the expenditure was made by the Issuer or, if later, the date the Project 

was Placed in Service (both as defined below), and no later than 60 days following the 5th anniversary of 

the Issue Date of the Bonds (as defined below). 

 

Background.  The Bonds were issued on February ___, 2022 (the “Issue Date”) pursuant to an 

ordinance adopted by the Issuer on February ___, 2022.  The Bonds were issued in order to provide funds 

to (a) pay the costs of improving the Issuer’s sewerage system and acquiring, constructing and equipping a 

public works facility (the “Project”) and (b) pay the costs of issuing the Bonds.  All Bond proceeds were 

deposited to the Project Fund. 

 

Sources Used to Fund Project Costs and Allocation of Proceeds to Project Costs.  The costs of the 

Project were paid from sale proceeds of the Bonds, the earnings from the investment of sale proceeds of 

the Bonds, and other funds of the Issuer as shown on Exhibit A. 

 

Identification of Financed Facility.  The portions of the Project financed from Bond proceeds (i.e., 

the “Financed Facility” referenced in the Federal Tax Certificate) are listed on page 1 of Exhibit B.   

 

Identification and Timing of Expenditures for Arbitrage Purposes.  For purposes of complying with 

the arbitrage rules, the Issuer allocates the proceeds of the Bonds to the various expenditures described in 

the invoices, requisitions or other substantiation attached as Exhibit B.  In each case, the cost requisitioned 

was either paid directly to a third party or reimbursed the Issuer for an amount it had previously paid or 

incurred.  Amounts allocated to interest expense are treated as paid on the interest payment dates for the 

Bonds.   

 

Placed in Service.  The Project was Placed in Service on the date set out on Exhibit B.  For this 

purpose, the Financed Facility is considered to be “Placed in Service” as of the date on which, based on all 

the facts and circumstances:  (a) the constructing, extending, improving, equipping and furnishing of the 

Financed Facility has reached a degree of completion which would permit its operation at substantially its 

designed level, and (b) the Financed Facility is, in fact, in operation at that level.  

 

121

Item 6.



 

F-2 

This allocation has been prepared based on statutes and regulations existing as of this date.  The 

Issuer reserves the right to amend this allocation to the extent permitted by future Treasury Regulations or 

similar authorities.   

 

CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 

 

 

 

By:        

Name: _______________________________________ 

Title: _______________________________________ 

 

Dated:  ____________________ 

 

 

Name of Legal Counsel/Law Firm Reviewing Final Written Allocation: 

________________________________________________________ 

Date of Review:  __________________________________________ 

 

 

122

Item 6.



 

F-3 

EXHIBIT A 

TO FINAL WRITTEN ALLOCATION 

 

 

ALLOCATION OF SOURCES AND USES 

 

 

 

 

123

Item 6.



 

F-4 

EXHIBIT B 

TO FINAL WRITTEN ALLOCATION 

 

 

IDENTIFICATION OF FINANCED FACILITY 

& 

DETAILED LISTING OF EXPENDITURES 

 

 

 

124

Item 6.



 

G-1 

 

EXHIBIT G 

 

 

COMPLIANCE PROCEDURE 

125

Item 6.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 22-R-03 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the Republic Fire 
Chief to Apply for the Department of Homeland Security SAFER Grant 
(Staffing for Adequate Fire and emergency Response). 

Submitted By: Duane Compton, Fire Chief 

Date: January 18, 2022 
 

Issue Statement 

The Republic Fire Department is requesting authorization to apply for the Department of Homeland 
Security, Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) Grant. 
 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

If awarded this grant, the Republic Fire Department would add five (5) additional staff in the fourth 

quarter of 2022. The Federal contribution toward the costs of the salaries will diminish over the course 

of the three (3) year period. Federal Reimbursement is as follows; In the first and second years of the 

grant, 75 percent of the usual annual cost of an entry level firefighter. In the third year of the grant, 35 

percent is the Federal match.  

The cost break-down, over the three (3) years, for five (5) staff is as follows. These funds will be paid 

through Public Safety Sales Tax.  

Year One:   City $ 70,007.69  Federal $ 210,023.06 

Year Two: City $ 74,208.89  Federal $ 222,624.45  

Year Three: City $ 204,517.66  Federal $ 110,124.89 

  

It should be noted that this grant only pays for an entry level firefighter’s salary. All cost involved with 

equipping /out fitting the staff members will come from the Fire Sales Tax fund.   

Recommended Action 

Chief Compton recommends approval to authorize the Fire Department to pursue applying for the 

Department of Homeland Security SAFER Grant. 

126

Item 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-03

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE REPUBLIC FIRE CHIEF TO APPLY FOR THE 
DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY SAFER GRANT (STAFFING FOR ADEQUATE FIRE AND 

EMERGENCY RESPONSE) 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called the “City”) is a municipal corporation 
and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized and existing under 
the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to apply for the Department of Homeland Security SAFER Grant 
(Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response); and 

WHEREAS, if awarded, this grant would add five new staff members to the Republic Fire 
Department. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   That Fire Chief Duane Compton is hereby authorized to apply on behalf of the City of 
Republic, Missouri, for the Department of Homeland Security Safer Grant (staffing 
for adequate fire and emergency response), said application to be substantially of 
the form and content of the document attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, this 18th day of January, 2022. 

___________________________________________

Matt Russell, Mayor 
Attest: 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form:  ________________________________, Megan McCullough, City Attorney  

Final Passage and Vote:    

RESOLUTION NO. 22-R-03 

127

Item 7.


	Top
	Item 1.	minutes
	City Council Meeting Minutes Document

	Item 2.	records
	Record Destruction Request 1-18-22

	Item 3.	Addendum #1 - Shuyler Creek Trail Engineering Contract with Olsson
	Adendum #1 - Shuyler Creek Trail - Resolution Exhibit
	22-R-02 engineering for trail
	Supplemental Agreement No. 1 STBG-6900 (813)

	Item 4.	2nd reading of AQNNX 21-011 6400 Block of South Farm Road 89
	ANNX 21-011 Council Report
	ANNX 21-011 Ordinance
	ANNX 21-011 OS4 - Vicinity Map (reduced)
	ANNX 21-011 OS4 - Zoning Map (reduced)

	Item 5.	2nd reading of pictometry
	ITEM-Staff-1c34a86ae8b841b1b6221b5f6e9251d2
	ordinance signed
	Image_001

	Item 6.	Special Obligation Bond Ordinance
	Bond Ordinance - Staff Report
	Ordinance
	Bond Purchase Agreement
	CDU
	FTC

	Item 7.	Duane Compton
	2022 SAFER Grant
	SAFER Grant Resolution (1)

	Bottom

